
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

TRAFFORD PANDEMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Thursday, 15 October 2020 
 

Time:  4.00 p.m. 
 

Place:  Virtual 
The meeting will be streamed live at 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg  
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS)   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
This is to include any Whipping Declarations as set out in Part 4, Section 17 
(b) of the Council’s Constitution which states; 
 
“When considering any matter in respect of which a member of an overview 
and scrutiny committee is subject to a party whip, the member must declare 
the existence of the whip, and its nature before the commencement of the 
committee’s deliberations on the matter. The declaration, and the detail of the 
whipping arrangements, shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.” 
 
 

 

3.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   
 

Any other item or items which by reason of:- 
 
(a) Regulation 11 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 

(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the 
Chairman of the meeting, with the agreement of the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Chairman, is of the opinion should be 
considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency as it relates to a key 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg


Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 15 October 2020 
   

 

 

decision; or 
 
(b) special circumstances (to be specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of 

the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

4.  CALL IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION E/28.09.20/9 SALE MOOR AND HALE 
PLACE PLANS   
 
The Committee are requested to consider the call in of the above Executive 
decision in relation to Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans. 
 

 

(a)   Executive Decision Report   
 

1 - 210 

(b)   Executive Decision Statement   
 

211 - 212 

(c)   Call In Proforma   
 

213 - 214 

(d)   Supplementary Report of the Executive Member for Housing and 
Regeneration   
 

To Follow 

5.  EXCLUSION RESOLUTION   
 
Motion   (Which may be amended as Members think fit): 
 
 That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of 

the remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of 
disclosure of “exempt information” which falls within one or more 
descriptive category or categories of the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, as amended by The Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and specified on the agenda item 
or report relating to each such item respectively. 

 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Committee 
 
Councillors D. Acton (Chair), S.B. Anstee, Dr. K. Barclay, Miss L. Blackburn, 
G. Coggins, J. Dillon, J. Holden, J. Lamb (Vice-Chair), J. Lloyd, J.D. Newgrosh, A. New, 
B. Shaw, R. Thompson, D. Western, A.M. Whyte, A.J. Williams and B.G. Winstanley. 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Alexander Murray, Governance Officer 
Tel:  0161 912 4250 
Email:  alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk  
 

mailto:alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk


Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 15 October 2020 
   

 

 

This agenda was issued on Wednesday, 7 October 2020 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH.  
 
WEBCASTING 
  
This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg.  
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. If you do not wish to have your image captured or if you have any queries 
regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the Democratic Services Officer on 
the above contact number or email democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg
mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:   Executive  
Date:    28 September 2020 
Report for:    Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration 

 
Report Title 
 

Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans 

 
Summary 
 

Our local centres and high streets have never been as vital a resource to local 
communities. The Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans have been developed with the 
involvement of the local community, businesses and stakeholders and identify 
opportunities to improve both centres for those who live, work, visit and spend time 
there. The Place Plans will assist in ensuring both centres met their full potential and 
support the recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
The Place Plans will be a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications in the centres and will sit alongside the Council’s Core Strategy and 
support preparation and delivery of the emerging Trafford Local Plan. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
It is recommended that the Executive 
 
(i) Approves  the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans 
 
(ii) Approves the Action Plans for Sale Moor and Hale and explore measures 
identified to improve both District Centres. 
 
(iii) Agrees to the main improvement areas identified in the Sale Moor and Hale 
Place Plans. 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:   Mike Reed (Strategic Growth Manager)  
   Damien Cutting (Senior Strategic Growth Officer)  

 
Extension:  x4924 
   x2756 
 
Appendix One: Sale Moor Place Plan 
Appendix Two: Hale Place Plan 
Appendix Three: Consultation Summary Sale Moor 
Appendix Four: Consultation Summary Hale 
 
Background Papers: None 

Document Pack Page 1



 2 

 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 
 

The Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans will support 
the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan  
(2019), including the priorities Building Quality, 
Affordable and Social Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing, and Successful and Thriving Places.  
The final Place Plan will support the adopted Core 
Strategy and preparation and delivery of the 
emerging Trafford Local Plan. Delivery of the 
Place Plans will also support the Council’s 
strategy for recovery from COVID-19. 

Relationship to GM Policy or 
Strategy Framework 

At a GM level the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans 
will support the growth ambitions articulated within 
the emerging Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework and the GM Strategy. Specific 
proposals within the Place Plans have been 
developed in the context of the GM 2040 
Transport Strategy, GM Congestion Plan, and 
Made to Move walking and cycling plan to identify 
improvements tackling traffic congestion, promote 
sustainable modes of travel and better integrate 
transport and new developments. 

Financial  The delivery of the Place Plans can be supported 
within existing resources.  The financial 
implications of any specific future developments 
will be assessed at the time. 

Legal Implications: None arising specifically from the contents of this 
report.  There may be requirements for  highway 
and traffic orders in the future when detailed 
proposals are  drawn up. 

Equality/Diversity Implications Equalities Impact Assessments will be completed 
as part of the process to deliver specific proposals 
outlined in the Place Plans. 

Sustainability Implications New development will be carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s sustainability 
principles. The proposals will help deliver the 
Council’s climate change / low carbon agenda and 
the GM Environment Plan by supporting more 
sustainable modes of travel, better use of existing 
land resource and promoting development in 
sustainable urban locations.  

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Existing staff resources are in place to support 
delivery of the Place Plans. 

Risk Management Implications   The delivery of the proposals within the Place 
Plan will be supported by a risk register setting out 
the key risks to delivery and proposed mitigation 
measures. 

Health & Wellbeing Implications None as a consequence of this report. 

Health and Safety Implications None as a consequence of this report. 

Document Pack Page 2



 3 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 In May 2019 Trafford Council appointed Nexus Planning, working alongside 
technical consultants WSP, Gillespies and Buttress Architects, to prepare two Village 
Place Plans for Sale Moor and Hale Village Centres (appendix one and two).  
 

1.2 The Place Plans will help guide future policy, actions and investment within the 
village centres and assist in ensuring that Sale Moor and Hale best meet their full 
potential as centres that serve their local communities. They will seek to make Sale 
Moor and Hale sustainable and viable centres, well equipped to meet the current and 
future needs of its residents and visitors, and effectively support local businesses.  
 

1.3 We are in a period of uncertainty following the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
which has substantially altered people’s way of life and how they use local centres. It 
has had a significant economic impact and affected the operation of retailers and 
service providers across the country. The Place Plans form part of the Council’s 
wider response to these challenges in Sale Moor and Hale.  
 

1.4 The Place Plans have been prepared alongside the local community with a 
significant amount of engagement, including approximately 400 attendees at 
consultation events and 404 questionnaire responses. Meetings have also been held 
with ward members and local stakeholders. A summary of the consultation process 
is set out in appendix three. 

 
2.0 Purpose of the Place Plans 
 
2.1 The Place Plans have been developed to improve the village centres of Sale Moor 

and Hale as places to be, live, work, shop, eat and drink, and support the local 
community. The focus of the Place Plans are to:  
 

 Establish a clear vision and development strategy for the areas which is 
reflected in approaches to development management, design, investment, 
partnership working, transport and other matters;  

 Provide confidence to partners in the prospects for Sale Moor and Hale and to 
encourage further investment;  

 Establish clear development and design principles to be used as a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications; 

 Support the preparation and delivery of Trafford’s new Local Plan - ensuring 
new development is supported by the necessary infrastructure, including 
identifying requirements for development contributions (including CIL, S106 
and on site design); 

 Identify the focus for public sector investment and support in unlocking the 
potential of Sale Moor and Hale; and 

 Provide a focus for on-going stakeholder and public engagement in delivering 
the vision for Sale Moor and Hale. 

 
3.0 Community Village Place Plans 

 
3.1 Community engagement has been integral to the entire process of creating the Place 

Plans and involving the local community from the outset was fundamental in 
preparing the Plans. Some of the proposals gained support as well as challenging 
opinions from some members of the local community. There were four integral 
stages to the engagement strategy in the production of the Place Plans from June 
2019 through to July 2020.  

Document Pack Page 3



 4 

 
3.2 Stage 1 Involved a baseline analysis and initial engagement to reach out to the 

community and to gain an initial insight into the issues that the Plans needs to 
address. Business and community surveys were distributed electronically and by 
hand between June and September 2019. This comprised consultations with a range 
of stakeholders including, but not limited to: 
 

 Local Businesses and Traders of Sale Moor Village Centre 

 Local Councillors and Members 

 Local Groups & Service Providers 

 Property owners (freehold and leaseholders if known) 

 Local Schools & Churches 

 Residents and wider community 

 Trafford Council 
 

3.3 This stage concluded with a Members Update in October 2019. 
 

3.4 Stage 2 Involved the production of the draft Village Plans and engagement with 
relevant stakeholders through workshops and meetings at the Waterside, Sale and 
Hale Bowling Club. This stage was undertaken between October and December 
2019. 
 

3.5 Stage 3 of the community engagement process took place in January 2020. This 
period of public engagement comprised of public consultation over four weeks, 
focussed on an exhibition day at Sale Moor Methodist Church and staying with the 
Bowling Club in Hale.  
 

3.6 Stage 4 - the final Village Plans were under executive review in September 2020. 
 

3.7 The full findings, including the community survey and SWOT analysis undertaken, 
have formed the evidence base for the preparation of the Village Place Plans and 
can be found in Appendix 3.  
 

Table 1: Stage 1 Consultation and Engagement – June to December 2019 
 
Consultation Stage 1 Activity Outcome 

Initial Engagement 
 
June - November 2019 

Baseline Analysis and Initial 
Engagement: 

 Retail health checks 

 Car parking Survey (Hale 
only) 

 Demographic review 

 Planning policy review 

 Review Accessibility and 
movement patterns 

 Review streetscape, urban 
design and public realm 

 Business and community 
surveys 

 Walk-arounds and door 
knocking with businesses 

 Meetings with stakeholders 

 Ongoing meetings with ward 
members 

 Meetings with Trafford 

 516 responses from the 
Hale community and 318 
responses from Sale 
Moor community. 

 In-depth discussions with 
ward members, 
stakeholders and local 
businesses. 

Document Pack Page 4



 5 

Council officers 

Preparation of Draft 
Village Plans  
 
November 2019 – 
December 2019  

Production of draft Village Plans 
and engagement with Council 
officers, stakeholders and 
consultees throughout. 

Responses that will feed into 
preparing final Place Plans 
for Hale and Sale Moor. 

 
3.8 A summary of the main findings of the consultation and engagement activity is set 

out in Tables 2 and 3 below.  
 
Table 2: Stage 2 Consultation and Engagement Summary - Hale Village Centre 
 
Likes Dislikes Improvements 

 Proximity to home 

 The range of places to 
eat and drink 

 The selection of 
independents 

 Quality of the shops and 

offer 

 General cleanliness 

 The village isn’t too busy 

 The overall parking 
options 

 Community facilities - the 
library and bowling green 

 Everything!  

 The cost and/or amount 
of parking 

 Road congestion 

 Lack of choice of shops 

 Poor quality greenspace 

 Lack of secure/clean 
toilets 

 Run down appearance of 
shops 

 Dirty shopping 
streets/litter 

 Safety and ease of 
accessibility by bike  

 

 More independent 
retailers 

 More parking 

 Cheaper parking 

 Better street furniture 

 More outdoor spaces 

 More family orientated 
facilities 

 Cleaner Streets 

 Control on anti-social 
behavior 

 Increasing the 
opportunities to travel 
safely to Hale by bike  

 
Table 3: Stage 2 Consultation and Engagement Summary - Sale Moor Village Centre 
 
Likes Dislikes Improvements 

 Proximity to home 

 Selection of independents 

 Quality of shops 

 Parking options 

 The village isn’t too busy 

 Nice street furniture 

 Range of places to eat 
and drink 

 Good public transport 

 Feels safe and presence 
of Police 

 Close to work 

 Everything! 

 Road congestion 

 Run down appearance of 
the shops 

 Inadequate range of 
places to eat and drink 

 Lack of choice shops 

 Insufficient greenspace 

 Lack of clean/secure 
toilets 

 Lack of street furniture 

 The cost/amount of 
parking 

 Lack of a larger 
supermarket 

 Lack of accessibility 
throughout the village• 
Unsafe cycle routes  

 

 More independent 
retailers 

 More places to eat and 
drink 

 Cleaner streets 

 Better street furniture and 
floral displays 

 More family orientated 
facilities 

 More outdoors spaces 

 More control on anti-
social behaviour and 
more security measures 

 More parking 

 More national multiple 
operators 

 More frequent bus 
services 

 Safer cycle routes 
through the village.  

 
 

3.9 At the Stage 3 consultation on the draft Place Plans, there were 132 responses to 
the survey in Hale and this time there were more responses in Sale Moor with 272 
completed in total. Some of the findings included: 

Document Pack Page 5



 6 

 

 Vision: 63.64% of respondents think that the vision for Hale Village Centre 
appropriately reflects the aspirations of the local community. The figure was a 
little higher in Sale Moor, 71.69%. 

 Offer of the Centres: 59.85% of respondents in Hale agree or strongly agree 

with the objectives of the Place Plan and how these appropriately pick up the 

detail of the Vision for the village. This is compared to 63.97% in Sale Moor. 

 Movement: In Hale, 49.24% agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the 

Place Plan that regard movement. In Sale Moor, 57.72% agree or strongly 

agree with the objectives. 

 Streetscape: 61.36% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the 

objectives of the Place Plan that concern the streetscape. It was a similar 

figure in Sale Moor, 63.60% 

 Public Realm: 59.09% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the 

objectives of the Place Plan which concern the public realm. Just slightly 

higher at 62.50% in Sale Moor.  

3.10 In Sale Moor, the major proposals include the gyratory and associated highways in 
and around the village. Of the 84.56% who chose a preferred option, 30.43% stated 
that they preferred Option 1, whilst 69.57% stated that their preference is Option 2. 
Option 2 is the preferred choice presented in the final Place Plan. Further options 
relating to a Movement Strategy at Northenden Road East and Northenden Road 
High Street were considered at the consultation. Of the 87.86% who answered this 
question, 21.33% chose option 1 as their preferred choice whilst the majority 
(57.32%) cited Option 2 as their preferred choice of movement strategy. Option 2 the 
preferred option presented in the final Place Plan for Sale Moor.  
 

3.11 Around the Bowling Green in Hale, 73.48% who answered when asked which option 
they preferred, 52.58% of respondents prefer Option 1, whilst 47.42% of respondents 
prefer Option 2. Option 1is the preferred option presented in the final Place Plan. 
 

3.12 Of the 47.72% who chose a preferred option for the Hale Clock Tower Square, 
46.03% prefer Option 1 whilst 53.97% prefer Option 2. 36.36% stated that they did 
not have a preference between the two options. Option 2 is the preferred option 
presented in the final Place Plan. 
 

3.13 Two consultation events were held in both centres; one at Sale Moor Methodist 
Church and the other at Hale Bowling Club; both were very well attended. There 
were a number of local businesses in both Sale Moor and Hale that challenged some 
of the proposals. In both centres, their main concerns were in relation to parking. 
Some businesses felt that any loss of parking would have an adverse impact on their 
business. It was stressed that in both centres, whilst some spaces may be 
reallocated elsewhere, overall there will be no net loss of parking spaces. The 
reallocation of parking spaces is to ensure that more space can be given over to 
pedestrians and that the cycle lane can be implemented in Sale Moor. The 
challenges raised, as well as the results of the surveys, have been used to guide the 
final proposals in both centres 
 

4.0 Vision and Objectives 
 

4.1 The vision and objectives will lay a basis for decision making and establish a focus 
for future improvements. Through in-depth community engagement, a range of 
actions and improvements have been identified to improve the overall physical, 

Document Pack Page 6



 7 

economic and social aspects of Sale Moor and Hale and to help address their local 
needs. This is set out in detail at Section 5 of the Place Plans. 
 

4.2 The vision for Sale Moor is as follows: 
 

‘Sale Moor will be a thriving village centre with community at its heart that attracts 
independent businesses and welcomes visitors from outside of the area. People will 
be able to move about freely and Sale Moor will become accessible to all at all times 
of the day, with sustainable movement at its heart. The village will continue to grow 
as a diverse centre, including a reinvigorated evening economy and will meet the 
needs of the entire catchment. It will evolve through strong community partnerships, 
along with physical and aesthetic improvements’. 

 
4.3 The vision for Hale is as follows: 

 
‘Hale Village will continue to support its active and diverse community and will be a 
lively and well-liked destination, accessible to everyone at all times of day. The 
village centre will build on its good access by train and bus, and promote sustainable 
modes of transport through the encouragement of access to and within the centre by 
foot and bicycle, and a move away from the reliance on cars. Pedestrian and cycle 
access through the village will be safe and secure. Through the improvement of the 
physical appearance and public realm of the village and the delivery of additional and 
enhanced community space, the village will be the preferred choice for Hale 
residents and beyond, meeting both retail and leisure needs and promoting a thriving 
village centre. The centre will be family friendly, through the creation of new 
community spaces. It is vital that the centre meets the requirements of the future 
generations, through the delivery of a sustainable agenda, whilst protecting Hale’s 
important heritage.’ 
 

4.4 A number of objectives have been agreed through consultation for both centres 
under the themes of ‘Offer’, ‘Movement’, ‘Streetscape’ and ‘Public Realm’. For both 
centres, the objectives have been agreed through consultation in order to include a 
set of achievable and tangible targets.  

 
5.0 Identified Opportunities 

 
Improvement Areas 
 

5.1 The Spatial Framework and development strategy for Sale Moor and Hale are set 
out in Section 6 and Section 7 of the Place Plans. 
 

5.2 The main areas for improvements identified within the Sale Moor Place Plan are: 
 

 Sale Moor Gyratory and Northenden Road: Closure of the high street to 
through traffic with main vehicle movements directed around the centre. There 
is an opportunity through the GM Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) for a new bi-
directional cycle lane from Sale running along Northernden Road onto Sale 
Water Park, with associated improvements to the pedestrian and cycle 
environment.  

 Warrener Street: The redefining of the highway through Sale Moor will 
enable the creation of a new village square as a focal point and provide a 
connection to any new development opportunity delivered on the Warrener 
Street car park site. No specific scheme has been agreed for the site as part 

Document Pack Page 7



 8 

of the Place Plan but the site could deliver a mix of residential, retail and 
community uses to support the Sale Moor whilst retaining car parking.  

 
5.3 The main areas for improvements are identified within the Hale Place Plan are: 

 
 Hale Bowling Club and Surrounds: There are opportunities to make this 

area of green space more inclusive for all to use with a shared surface to 
make movements on both sides of Ashley Road safer, informal play space, 
tree planting and high quality paving that helps to make the space more 
attractive. There are further options for alternative temporary seasonal uses of 
the green itself to support the wider centre.  

 Clock Tower Area: There are opportunities for improvement of this area as a 
focal point and gateway for the centre with the space surrounding the clock 
tower better utilised. Rationalisation of the highway layout and the space 
surrounding the clock tower alongside wider footways, tree planting and the 
creation of a new ‘village green’ will provide spill out space for hospitality 
businesses and act as an area for potential events. Any detailed proposals 
which involve the relocation of car parking spaces will not result in any fewer 
spaces in the area. 

 
Movement Strategy 

 
5.4 At present, both centres are heavily dominated by cars with a poor environment for 

pedestrians and cyclists. The detailed movement strategy is set out in Section 8 of 
the Place Plans. 
 

5.5 In Sale Moor the existing highways layout creates a poor pedestrian and cyclist 
experience with the central reservation and guard railing acting as barriers to 
movement and increasing vehicle speeds. Footways are narrow and there is limited 
street greening, limited cycle parking and poor quality paving. The proposed changes 
will support a widening of footpaths, creation of spill out space for businesses, 
provision of a bi-directional cycle lane, tree planting and an improved public realm. 
 

5.6 In Hale the movement strategy is focused on Ashley Road with proposals to reduce 
the road width and vehicle speeds, a widening of footways to improve the pedestrian 
experience and provide spill out space to businesses with tree planting to improve 
the physical environment.  
 
Shop Frontages 

 
5.7 Shop frontage strategies, consistent with the emerging Trafford Design Guide 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), have been developed for both centres as 
part of the Place Plans. The shop frontage strategies are set out in Section 9 of the 
Place Plans and will provide for: 
 

 Rationalisation of shopfronts with the option to colour within a certain palette 
 Clear visibility into the shops and omission of vinyls, 
 Control of font and text to shop frontages 
 Common awning positions with variety of colour 
 Consistent painting of the brickwork and signage to provide an identity. 

 
6.0 Action Plans 

 

Document Pack Page 8



 9 

6.1 The Place Plans are supported by specific action plans that provide an indicative 
phasing strategy and set out how certain projects identified in the Plan will be 
delivered. Both action plans can be found at Section 10 of the Place Plans. 
 

6.2 It will be important that the detail and actions within the Place Plan are brought 
forward through the Council’s emerging Local Plan to ensure that specific planning 
policies support the delivery of key projects and the success of both centres. 
 

7.0 Wider Corporate Links 
 
7.1 The Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans will be consistent with the Council’s Corporate 

Plan (2019) and the Trafford Economic and Housing Growth Framework (2018). The 
Place Plans will sit alongside the adopted Core Strategy and the emerging Local 
Plan, once adopted. The Place Plans are aligned with the principles in the emerging 
Trafford Design Guide SPD. Delivery of the Place Plans will also support the 
Council’s emerging strategy for recovery from COVID-19. 
 

7.2 At a GM level, it will support the growth ambitions articulated within the GM Strategy 
and GM Local Industrial Strategy, whilst supporting the urban capacity work, housing 
and employment numbers for the emerging Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
(GMSF). Specific proposals within the Place Plans will be developed in the context of 
the GM 2040 Transport Strategy, GM Congestion Plan, and Made to Move walking 
and cycling plan to identify improvements tackling traffic congestion, promote 
sustainable modes of travel and to better integrate transport and new developments.  

 
8.0 Other Options 

 
8.1 The other options are to do nothing, rely on the new Local Plan or prepare a different 

strategy. Doing nothing would not deliver the change required in Sale Moor and Hale 
to create successful and viable centres in the long term that will support local 
communities and ensure businesses are able to thrive.  

 
8.2 Sale Moor and Hale centres are not identified as Strategic Locations in the adopted 

Core Strategy and so both centres need area specific proposals to bring forward 
appropriate regenerative development in the area. To rely on the new Local Plan to 
bring forward the proposals for Sale Moor and Hale would present too much risk of a 
delay as this document is reliant on the production of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (GMSF) and its associated timetable. 
 

8.3 A different strategy could be approved; however the final Place Plans presented 
have been prepared to reflect the consultation feedback received. 
 

Reasons for Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to approve the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans to enable delivery 
of the vision and objectives for both centres. 
 
Key Decision yes 
 
If Key Decision, has 28-day notice been given? yes 
 
Finance Officer Clearance …PC……… 

Legal Officer Clearance …CK……… 
 

Document Pack Page 9



 10 

 

DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE  

 
To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the 
Executive Member has cleared the report. 

Document Pack Page 10



Sale Moor Village Place Plan
Final
September 2020

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 11



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 12



Contents

1.   Introduction      6

2.  Sale Moor Village     10

3.  Community Activity     16

4.  Baseline Analysis     24

5.  The Vision  and Objectives    34

6.  Development Strategy    40

7.  Movement Strategy     54

8.  Shopfront Strategy     62

9.  Action Plan      68

    

Contents D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 13



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 14



Introduction

01

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 15



6
Sale Moor Village Place Plan

1.  Introduction

1.1  Introduction

Nexus Planning (‘Nexus’) was appointed by Trafford Council 
in 2019, working alongside technical consultants WSP, 
Gillespies and Buttress Architects, to prepare a Village Place 
Plan for Sale Moor Village Centre.

The Place Plan has been commissioned to help guide future 
policy, action and investment within the village centre 
and assist in ensuring that Sale Moor best meets its full 
potential. The Village Place Plan will seek to make Sale Moor 
a sustainable centre, which is well equipped to meet the 
current and future needs of its residents and visitors, and 
which effectively supports the role of local businesses.

We are in a period of uncertainty following the restricting 
of movement related to the COVID-19 pandemic which has 
substantially altered people’s way of life and impacted on 
the operation of retailers and service providers across the 
country. Sale Moor is certainly no exception to this. Indeed, 
a number of operators have particular concerns about 
how COVID could impact on their operations and ongoing 
viability of businesses. Whilst the precise future of high 
streets is unclear, we are also experiencing some positives 
from the situation through the reduction in car movements, 
more sustainable working environments and patterns and 
significant improvements to our local environment.

In this context, the Village Place Plan will guide meaningful 
and lasting change and enhancement of Sale Moor village 
centre. The vision and objectives are intended to lay a 
basis for decision making and establish a focus for future 
improvement efforts. 

The village centre currently comprises a range of 
independent convenience operators, local day-to-day 
amenities including a Post Office, small convenience stores 
and hair and beauty salons, public houses and cafes. The 
centre serves a relatively densely populated catchment area, 
a lot of which is within walking distance of the centre. The 
centre is also in proximity to a number of schools, religious 
buildings and parks.

1.2  Context

We are living in a time of dramatic structural change in our 
town centres, brought about by factors largely out of local 
control, including:

• COVID-19 - the recent pandemic has had an unexpected 
and irreversible impact on the way we shop and therefore 
the future of our high streets. We are yet to witness how 
high streets will recover and adapt but we must plan for 
the future of our town centres taking this into account. 
This relates not only to the way operators operate moving 
forward and a likely shift in the way we spend our money, 
but also a complete change in the way we move around 
and work;

• Out of town retail parks, with free parking and which 
offer a broad mix of retail and leisure, continue to create 
destinations to the detriment of traditional centres. In 
particular, large format convenience destinations have 
had substantial implications on the vitality of smaller 
centres, through the drawing of trade away from the 
smaller convenience destinations;

• Technological changes have over the past few years, seen 
a major shift to on-line shopping, in many cases, negating 
the need for bricks and mortar. This is likely to continue;

• The national business rates’ regime has hampered start-
ups and has driven other retailers from the high street;

• Prevailing economic conditions since 2008 and 
throughout the recent pandemic have led to many high 
profile national retailers either going into administration 
or undertaking financial restructuring at a cost of 
thousands of jobs; and

• Consequently the number and type of shops being 
occupied in town centres has continued to decline and/
or change at a faster rate than ever before. The structure 
of town centres has changed from a simple goods’ 
transaction to a more complex mix of retail, leisure, food 
and drink, events, commercial, residential, health and 
education.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 16



Sale Moor Village Place Plan 
7

1.3  What is a Village Place Plan?

There has been a lot of community activity in Sale Moor over 
recent years and it is vital that we now identify local issues 
with a view to creating a place plan to move forward. 

The development of this plan has been led by local residents 
and prepared in partnership with the Council and other 
community planning partners. It has been brought about 
due to the need to improve the village centre as a place to 
be, a place to shop, eat and drink, and a place to support the 
local community. The focus of the Village Place Plan is to:

1. Establish a clear Vision and development strategy for the 
area which is reflected in approaches to development 
management, design, investment, partnership working, 
transport and other matters; 

2. Provide confidence to partners in the prospects for Sale 
Moor and to encourage further investment; 

3. Establish clear development and design principles to be 
used as a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications; 

4. Support the delivery of Trafford’s new Local Plan - 
ensuring new development is supported by the necessary 
infrastructure, including identifying requirements for 
development contributions (including CIL, S106 and on 
site design);Identify the focus for public sector investment 
and support in unlocking the potential of Sale Moor; and 

5. Provide a focus for on-going stakeholder and public 
engagement in delivering the Vision for Sale Moor.

1.4  The Need for a Village Place Plan

The village centre has a pivotal role to play in driving the 
local economy and providing the residents with a thriving 
urban centre which meets their needs in terms of retail, 
leisure, business, social and cultural activities.

This plan is an important step for Sale Moor. It consolidates 
everything we know about the circumstances, needs and 
aspirations in the village. It provides a basis for regeneration 
of the village and is the ‘blueprint’ for action.

Stakeholders have been very active within the village for 
a number of years, bringing with it a range of community 
events and activities, festive improvements and a wider basis 
from which residents and businesses can ‘have their say’. It is 
from this evident stakeholder involvement and overall desire, 
that this Village Place Plan has come about.

There are a range of factors which have led to the current 
‘make up’ of the village centre, all of which are covered 
in more detail throughout this Plan. The principal reasons 
include:

• The impact of larger centres in the Borough and further 
afield in drawing shoppers and associated expenditure 
away from Sale Moor. In particular, the larger centres 
of Sale, Altrincham, Manchester city centre and the 
Trafford Centre all claim some of the residents’ available 
expenditure. Whilst not all of this could realistically be 
‘clawed back’ into the village, there is an opportunity to 
improve the commercial and community offer within the 
centre so as to draw some of the expenditure back.

• Issues relating to the highways network within the village 
and associated safety concerns from residents. The 
gyratory acts as a barrier and a substantial hindrance to 
overall movement and accessibility within the centre.

• The failure to deliver a complementary development 
on the Warrener Street car park, and yet an 
acknowledgement that a new scheme with at least an 
element of commercial floorspace, would improve the 
village as a destination.

Background to the Village Place Plan

1.5  The Three Features of the Plan

This Village Place Plan has drawn inspiration from Sale 
Moor’s current strengths, and acknowledges where 
improvements are possible, with three features guiding the 
assessment of the Village:

1. Movement – how people interact and use Sale Moor 
from the surrounding residential catchments and further 
afield.

2. Public realm – how Sale Moor works for pedestrians, 
bicycles, cars and buses, and how these link with the 
gyratory system within the village.

3. Streetscape – how we can plan for the future of Sale 
Moor having regard to overall aesthetics, which will 
in turn attract new operators and retain those already 
present.

1.6  Delivering the Village Plan

The Village Place Plan for Sale Moor sets out a vision for 
how the local area can continue to improve and sustainably 
develop. Through in-depth community engagement, a range 
of key actions and improvements have been identified to 
improve the overall physical, economic and social aspects 
of Sale Moor and help address local needs. Agreeing 
priorities and developing a village place plan also provides 
opportunities for funding by providing a central point of 
reference for future investment throughout the area, whether 
through public sector, private sector or the community and 
voluntary sector.

The outputs of the document will be a focused strategy 
for the centre, through its delivery as part of a joined-up 
strategy, which will support the overriding objective of 
achieving a centre which is vibrant, sustainable and well 
equipped to meet the expectations of its residents and 
visitors.

The village plan is not inflexible or prescriptive, nor does it 
represent a commitment to funding by the Council. However, 
there is substantial investment already approved within the 
village through the delivery of the MCF cycle and pedestrian 
link from Sale town centre to the Waterpark.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 17



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 18



Sale Moor Village

02

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 19



10

2. Sale Moor Village
2.1  Sale Moor’s Identity

Sale Moor is led by its own community and the associated 
community spirit and their collective input is vital to its 
future success. Without the strong community spirit, the 
village centre would not be in the same position that it is in 
today. 

Sale Moor features a number of invaluable operators who 
have occupied units for a number of years, even decades, 
and are valued by the local community. Nurturing these 
businesses is key to securing the future success of the village. 

The centre provides a range of facilities and amenities which 
meet residents’ day-to-day needs, and is a vital ‘heart’ to 
Sale Moor. In this regard, the centre benefits from a high 
level of walk-in catchment and residential areas which are in 
proximity to the services. As such, the centre is able to draw 
on a diverse mix of customers with varying needs and levels 
of available expenditure.

The centre benefits from key leisure uses in the public 
houses and café culture, with a range of key independent 
operators. Its identity is what has kept the village progressing 
and is what needs to be protected moving forward.

The overall layout and wider aesthetics make Sale Moor 
unique, and is something which must not be lost altogether. 
However, there are key concerns over the overall safety and 
ease of access through the centre, which need exploring and 
improving.

Sale Moor’s identity will be an important ‘thread’ running 
through the formulation of the village place plan and the 
delivery of the vision and objectives, ensuring that although 
the centre needs to be improved to nurture its health, it also 
needs to protect its wider identity and heritage.

2.2  History of Sale Moor

The Manchester, South Junction and Altrincham Railway 
opened in 1849 and led to the ‘middle classes’ using Sale as 
a commuter town, a residence away from their place of work. 
When the railway opened, Sale Moor was closest to the Sale 
train station. 

As such, the railway station was originally named Sale Moor 
before it was renamed to Sale in 1856. 

The tramway between Manchester and Stretford was 
completed in 1901, with services extended to Sale in 1907 
and along Northenden Road to Sale Moor in 1912. Sale 
Moor’s line only had a single track. 

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

Source: Trafford Lifetimes

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 20



11

2.3  Key Assets in the wider Sale Moor Village

• Trinity House is Grade II Listed
 Formerly a Methodist chapel, Trinity House was built in   
 1875

• Church of St Anne is Grade II Listed.
 St Annes Church was opened for worship in 1854, built   
 as the Church of St Martins. 

• War Memorial Cross in the Grounds of the Church of St 
Anne is Grade II Listed.
 The War Memorial Cross was erected in June 1920 to  
 commemorate members of the church who fell in the 
Great  War between 1914 and 1919.

• Sale Moor Methodist Church
Sale Moor Methodist Church was built in 1839, originally 
functioning as a Primitive Methodist Church. 

• Trinity Methodist Church
Trinity Methodist Church first opened for worship on 
Northenden Road in 1875 when the congregation from 
the Broad Lane Chapel, built in 1820, moved into its new 
premises. In 1980, the main Church building was sold and 
worship continued in the converted Church hall. 

• Holy Family Catholic Church
The years following the Second World war saw 
considerable expansion in the population of the parish 
for St Joseph’s Catholic Church Sale, which still consisted 
of Sale Moor, and the creation of three new parishes, 
including Holy Family in Sale Moor with its related 
primary school.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Sale Moor’s Key Assets D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 21



12

Sale Moor’s Accessibility

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

2.4  Sustainable Transport

In January 2020 the ‘Change a region to change a nation’ 
report was published by the GMCA. The report found that 
congestion costs Greater Manchester £1.3 billion annually, 
and poor air quality contributes to around 1,200 premature 
deaths annually across the region. These facts, coupled 
with strong public support for increased cycling and 
pedestrian infrastructure, have driven Greater Manchester 
to set ambitious targets in its 2040 Transport Strategy to 
increase the amount of sustainable journeys by 50%. This sits 
alongside an ambition for Manchester to be carbon neutral 
by 2038.

To achieve this TfGM wants to:

• Make walking and cycling the natural choice for short 
journeys.

• Ensure that new developments support sustainable 
transport, and that our town centres are attractive and 
well connected.

• Transform public transport capacity and active travel in 
the Regional Centre of Greater Manchester.

• Offer good alternatives to the car for travel across the 
city-region.

• Enable good orbital connections between town centres.
• Maximise the efficiency and reliability of our existing 

transport networks.
• Move and manage freight in the most sustainable and 

efficient ways.
• Research and harness future technology, innovations and 

digital connectivity

The need to increase pedestrian and cyclist movement in 
the centres is therefore well established and is a key aim 
for policy makers over the coming years, and was true even 
before the impacts of Covid-19 and the social distancing 
required for safe movement.  Indeed, since lockdown 
measures were announced in March 2020, vehicular 
movements have decreased by about 60% with increases 
in cycling up 42% and walking and cycling accounting 
for approximately 33% of all travel. In summary, there 
is a pressing need to increase pedestrian and cycling 
infrastructure, particularly in our centres.

To facilitate and deliver safer movement, TfGM has 
announced the #SafeStreetsSaveLives campaign. Through 
the provision of £5million of emergency funding made 
available to Greater Manchester’s local authorities, measures 
will be implemented to give people more space to walk 
and cycle more and to make them safer. Examples may 
include closing streets to motor traffic, widening pavements, 
decluttering street furniture and traffic calming measures on 
residential streets. Indeed, as of May 2020 temporary social 
distancing measures have been introduced on six roads 
throughout Trafford to enable socially-distanced cycling and 
walking. 

2.5  The Mayor of Greater Manchester’s 
Challenge Fund

Whilst the development of the Village Place Plan has been 
underway, Trafford Council have received confirmation that 
their application to create a safe, high-quality and attractive 
walking and cycling route linking Sale town centre, Sale 
Moor and Sale Water Park has been successful.  The overall 
scheme is budgeted at £10.4m, with £8.4m sourced from the 
Mayor of Greater Manchester’s Challenge Fund and a further 
£2m from local contributions.

The Place Plan design team have met with Trafford Council / 
Amey officers responsible for the MCF scheme and ensured 
that the Place Plan and the MCF scheme are well aligned in 
terms of their overall objectives of reducing the dominance 
of the vehicle within Sale Moor, and encouraging access by 
active travel modes. Full details in respect of the scheme are 
provided later in the Place Plan.

The current MCF scheme includes a two-way on street 
cycle route being created, together with new crossings and 
amendments to the paving within the village centre.  The 
route has not been finalised and will be subject to modelling 
and design.  However, the route will add to and compliment 
improved public realm measures in the Sale Moor village 
centre.

Full details in respect of the scheme are provided later in the 
Place Plan.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 22



13

Sale Moor’s Accessibility

2.6  Accessibility of Sale Moor

Sale Moor Village is located approximately 1km from Sale, 
Northern Moor and Sale Water Park Tram Stops. The village 
centre is serviced by several bus routes which provide services 
between Wythenshawe, Altrincham, Sale, Eccles and the Intu 
Trafford Centre.

Direct bus services are available from within Sale Moor to 
destinations including Altrincham, Sale, Manchester and 
Stockport. Sale Moor is therefore well served by public 
transport with frequent bus services throughout the day.  

There is also a considerable amount of on-street car parking 
and a number of moderately sized car parks in Sale Moor.
Given the centre’s location Sale Moor is well integrated with 
the surrounding residential areas and is easily accessible from 
them. However its walkability is reduced by the major routes 
that run through the centre and physical barriers, inhibiting 
pedestrian access and movement. There are also three 
Council-owned car parks in Sale Moor, which are:

• Warrener Street Car Park;
• James Street Car Park; and
• Hampson Street Car Park.

The guard railing that separates eastbound and westbound 
traffic through the gyratory system is likely to be a barrier to 
pedestrian movement and reduces the attractiveness of the 
street scene. 

There are five zebra crossings within the study boundary, each 
of which have dropped kerbs, red tactile paving, directional 
studs and zigzag lines.

An on-road cycle route, partly marked in green, is available 
from the zebra crossing on B5166 Northenden Road along 
the A6144 Old Hall Road to M60 junction 6. However, the 
dominance of on-street parking may deter people to cycle to 
Sale Moor due to concerns over ‘car dooring’ and safety in 
general.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 23



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 24



Community Activity

03

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 25



16

3. Community Activity
3.1  The Need for Partnership

The Plan is intended as a guide to help all partners work 
effectively together to deliver the change and improvement 
that is required. 

There are a diverse range of public and private sector 
bodies which have a stake in the future of Sale Moor village 
centre. A co-ordinated and comprehensive approach to the 
improvement of the village centre can only be achieved by 
a strong partnership approach - led by Trafford Council, 
working together with private landowners, local businesses, 
service providers, developers and all other stakeholders.

Crucially we need to grow and develop these partnerships 
effectively if we are to successfully collaborate on 
implementing the Place Plan. Put simply, without the input 
from these relevant stakeholders, the formation of the plan 
could not have taken place. 

The views and expressions of the stakeholders have been 
fed into the Plan, considered alongside the project team’s 
and Trafford Council’s own professional views in respect of 
the key aspects of the villages. This has been supported by 
analysis of the streetscape and public realm, analysis of the 
current health of the centre and an analysis of the shopping 
and leisure patterns within the borough and the particular 
catchment of the village.

Key stakeholders engaged as part of the process include:

• We Are Sale Moor;
• Sale Moor Community Partnership;
• Friends of Worthington Park;
• Friends of Moor Nook Park;
• Users of the Sale Moor Community Centre;
• Local Primary and Secondary Schools;
• Religious Institutions; and
• Local Community Groups.

3.2  Community Consultation and    
Engagement Process

Community engagement is integral to the entire process 
of creating a Place Plan and has been undertaken from the 
outset. There are four integral stages to the engagement 
strategy throughout the production of the Place Plan from, 
June 2019 through to July 2020. We provide a summary of 
the stages below

Stage 1 involved a baseline analysis and initial engagement. 
To reach out to the community to gain an initial insight 
into the issues that the Plan needs to address, business and 
community surveys were undertaken between June and 
September 2019. This comprised consultations with a range 
of stakeholders including, but not limited to:

• Local Businesses and Traders of Sale Moor Village Centre
• Local Councillors and Members 
• Local Groups & Service Providers
• Property owners (freehold and leaseholders if known)
• Local Schools & Churches
• Residents and wider community
• Trafford Council 

This stage concluded with a Members Update in October 
2019 to ascertain the direction of the document, feedback 
and the key considerations for the Sale Moor Place Plan.

Stage 2 involved the production of a draft Village Plan, and 
engagement with relevant stakeholders through workshops 
and meetings at Waterside Arts Centre.  These were 
undertaken between October and December 2019.

Stage 3 of the community engagement process took 
place in January 2020. This period of public engagement 
comprised of public consultation over four weeks, focussed 
on an exhibition day. The feedback has been analysed and 
considered in detail in order to create a final Sale Moor 
Village Place Plan.

Stage 4 - the final Village Plan will be under executive review 
in September 2020. 

3.3 Round 1 - Summary of Consultation

As part of the consultation process for the Sale Moor Village 
Place Plan, the project team issued both local community 
and business surveys to the community and businesses 
within the village centre. The first consultation period ran 
from 8th August to 20th September 2019 and the surveys 
were publicised via online sources, the Council’s website 
and social media accounts, circulation by local community 
groups and organisations and through hand-delivery within 
the village itself including paper copies and a deposit box at 
Sale Library.

The first round of consultation sought views from the local 
residents, businesses and other stakeholders on the overall 
strengths and weaknesses of the centre and how we could 
work together to help improve the centre in the future.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 26



17
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

3.4 Key Findings

• A total of 47% of respondents answered that they visit the centre more than once 
a week with a small percentage, 2.3%, saying they only go monthly. 27% an-
swered that they visit daily.

• A total of 79% of respondents said that they walk to the village, with a further 
44% who drive, with just 5% who cycle. Only a small amount of people - 2% of 
respondents - said they got there via public transport. 

• When asked where respondents typically park, there were numerous answers to 
this question. Approximately 72, or 25% of the respondents mentioning that they 
either typically park at the Warrener Street car park or that they sometimes park 
there.

• When asked what was the reason for their last visit to Sale Moor, the majority - 
73% - answered to buy food and grocery items (non take-away), 20% for person-
al services (eg hairdressers), 11% eat out / drinking and a small percentage, 2% 
work there.

• A total of 39% of respondents stated that they would begin to cycle to Sale Moor 
if the cycle routes were safer. There were also a number of respondents stating 
that the village is a little daunting or dangerous to cycle around or to.

• When the respondents were asked what they like about Sale Moor Village, the 
top answers were:

90% stated they liked that the centre is close to home/convenient;
54% stated they liked the selection of independent operators;
24% stated they like the quality of shops;
23% stated they liked the parking options; and
18% stated they liked it because it is not too busy.

• When asked about their dislikes about Sale Moor Village the respondents stated:

55% disliked the road congestion;
43% disliked the run down appearance of shops;
30% disliked the inadequate range of places to eat and drink; and 
25% disliked the fact there is a lack of choice of shops.

• When asked what could be done to improve Sale Moor Village, the respondents 
stated:

64% said they would like to see more independent retailers;
40% stated they would like more places to eat and drink;
29% said better street furniture and floral displays; 
28% wanted cleaner streets / removal of litter; 
26% wanted more family orientated facilities; and
20% stated they would like to see more outdoor spaces.

Round 1 - Consultation with the Community and Businesses D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 27



18

3.5 Visiting the Community

As part of the engagement strategy, we also reached out 
to local schools within Sale Moor to better understand the 
views of the younger generation in forming a plan for Sale 
Moor. Nexus visited St. Annes Primary School and provided 
a presentation on general town planning matters and 
spent time in a workshop asking the pupils to provide their 
thoughts on the current status of the village and how it could 
be improved.

Key outcomes from this aspect of the consultation are:

• That the children would like to see a safer and more 
accessible village

• That the village is missing a diverse mix of comparison 
operators

• Of those who go out to eat at a restaurant/pub, they 
principally visit Altrincham and Sale for these purposes, 
alongside Charley’s Corner

• There is a lack of greenspace/ landscaping in the village
• The current layout is not easy to navigate and the barriers 

are unattractive to the overall aesthetics of the centre

Round 1 - Talking to the Local Community

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 28



19

Strengths
• Good provision of independent operators, 

some of which have been in the village 
for a number of years

• Good community feel and local walk-in 
catchment

• Good proximity to the M60 and local 
public transport modes

• Good local schools
• High quality local greenspaces 
• Popular pubs
• Engaged local councillors and other 

stakeholder groups

Weaknesses
• The gyratory system makes the centre 

too traffic-heavy
• Safety issues associated with the 

gyratory and lack of opportunity to cross 
the main streets within the centre

• Shop frontages appear a little tired
• Wide range of demographics surrounding 

the centre – difficult to cater for everyone
• Cars travel too fast through the village
• Lack of business/investor buy-in in the 

centre
• Property prices high for first time buyers/

renters
• High number of takeaways, which are 

popular with local school pupils
• Limited good quality food and drink 

offering for a catchment of its size
• Overall aesthetics are considered to be 

relatively low

Opportunities
• Warrener Street car park – opportunities 

to deliver a mixed-use development
• Need for an improved retail and leisure 

offer
• Opportunity to create its own ‘USP’
• Opportunity to slow the traffic down 

through shared-surfaces
• A farmers market or weekly market will 

attract residents into the centre
• High concentration of young people in the 

catchment but little to attract them into 
the village

• A community ‘hub’ and noticeboard

Threats
• Competition from larger centres such as 

Sale and Altrincham
• Car parking issues – limited residential 

parking and shoppers tend to park on 
surrounding streets rather than pay for 
parking

• Brexit and the implications on smaller 
centres

• Altrincham Market is perceived as a 
reason for not being able to have a 
market due to the historic ‘market licence’

SALE MOOR VILLAGE PLAN 
ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY - BASELINE 
ANALYSIS (Nov 2019)

LIKES

• Proximity to home

• Selection of independents

• Quality of shops

• Parking options

• The village isn’t too busy

• Nice street furniture

• Range of places to eat and drink

• Good public transport

• Feels safe and presence of 
Police

• Close to work

• Everything!

DISLIKES

• Road congestion
• Run down appearance of the 

shops
• Inadequate range of places to 

eat and drink
• Lack of choice shops
• Insufficient greenspace
• Lack of clean/secure toilets
• Lack of street furniture
• The cost/amount of parking
• Lack of a larger supermarket
• Lack of accessibility 

throughout the village
• Unsafe cycle routes

IMPROVEMENTS

• More independent retailers
• More places to eat and drink
• Cleaner streets
• Better street furniture and floral 

displays
• More family orientated facilities
• More outdoors spaces
• More control on anti-social 

behaviour and more security 
measures

• More parking
• More national multiple operators
• More frequent bus services
• Safer cycle routes through the 

village

WHAT YOU TOLD US:

HOW DID WE ENGAGE?

Website Links & Trafford 
Council website

Social Media - Facebook and 
Twitter

Questionnaire available 
online and in paper format 
in Sale Library and Sale Moor 
Community Centre

318

Stakeholder Assistance - 
Questionnaires delivered to 
businesses

Meetings with Ward 
Members and Stakeholders

Total number of responses 
received

Consultation period ran from 
8th August to 20th September

NEXT STEPS

The Project Team will continue to engage with the local community and businesses whilst 

preparing the Draft Sale Moor Village Place Plan. You will have further opportunities to comment 

on the Plan as we move through the process, towards the end of 2019 / beginning of 2020.

HEATHER LINDLEY-CLAPP

T: 0161 819 6570

E: salemoorvillage@nexusplanning.co.uk

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Round 1 - Overarching Messages from the Local Community and Businesses D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 29



20

3.6  Consultation on the Draft Plan

The Draft Sale Moor Village Place Plan was published for 
consultation at the end of 2019, and a public consultation 
event was held in Sale Moor Methodist Church.

The purpose of the event was to present the initial proposals 
and ask the community’s views on the overarching Vision 
and Objectives and Options for improvements to the centre. 

The event was very well attended by the local community 
and local business owners and we gathered a range 
of constructive and very invaluable feedback from the 
attendees.

The feedback from the event and the online questionnaire 
has been fully analysed as part of the formulation of the final 
Sale Moor Village Place Plan.

Round 2 - Talking to the Local Community

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 30



21
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Round 2 Public Consultation - Overarching Conclusions

Summary of Key    
Responses

Traffic is an ongoing issue. 
This needs to be slowed down 
or diverted away from Sale 
Moor centre, and the centre 
made more pedestrian and 
cycle friendly. Accessibility 
and the public realm must be 
prioritised to help businesses.

It would be good to help 
to support local businesses 
through the improvement of 
the Village Centre. The com-
munity spirit will be support-
ed further along with the local 
independent businesses.

The centre needs a sense of 
cohesion and a theme run-
ning through as opposed to 
the miss-match of stores and 
identities it currently has. It 
needs a sense of place and 
purpose that all residents can 
be proud of and champion. 

Concerns around the loss of 
on-street parking as a result 
of the proposed cycle and 
pedestrian improvements 
through the centre as part 
of the MCF work. This could 
have an impact on businesses 
who rely on short-stay park-
ing for their customers.

The improvements to the 
shop fronts are welcomed but 
further consideration is need-
ed in terms of how this would 
be funded and implemented.

The overall highways safety as 
a direct result of the propos-
als needs serious considera-
tion. The safety of pedestrians 
is key to helping to encour-
age additional footfall in the 
centre, which will also help to 
support the local businesses.

Full consideration should be 
given to the types of uses 
proposed at Warrener Street. 
Any proposal must not com-
pete directly with the existing 
offer within Sale Moor which 
would be to the detriment of 
the village

Full consideration also needs 
to be given to how existing 
businesses are serviced should 
the cycle route be implement-
ed in the village centre. This 
also includes additional traffic 
along existing surrounding 
residential streets.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 31



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 32



Baseline Analysis

04

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 33



24

4. Baseline Analysis

4.1 Setting the Scene

A key part of the formulation of the Place Plan is the 
undertaking of a range of baseline analysis in relation to the 
village centre. 

The baseline analysis for the purpose of the Place Plan has 
been to:

• Undertake an updated healthcheck of the centre, using 
the latest analysis and previous work in analysing the 
centre as part of the Trafford Retail and Leisure Study 
2019. The healthcheck analysis follows the guidance as 
set out in the Town Centres and Retail Planning Practice 
Guidance, which provides a series of indicators to be used 
in assessing the vitality and viability of the centre.

• Undertake a more detailed review of shopping and leisure 
patterns of those who live in and surrounding Sale Moor, 
using the detailed breakdown of trips from the Trafford 
Retail and Leisure Study 2019.

• Reviewing the demographics of the Sale Moor Ward (and 
surrounding wards) to better understand the needs and 
requirements of the local catchment.

• Review the existing and emerging planning policies of 
relevance to the village centre, and understand where and 
how this Plan will assist the Council in formulating new 
policies in the new development plan.

• Review existing accessibility and movement patterns 
throughout the centre as part of the wider movement 
strategy for the Plan.

• Review the existing streetscape and urban design 
concepts within the village, to feed into the associated 
strategy.

• Review the existing public realm and landscaping aspects 
of the centre and better understand how these may be 
moulded and improved within the centre as part of the 
Plan.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

4.2 Implications of COVID-19

The immediate and direct implications of the outbreak have 
been two-fold, both resulting in reduced demand in the 
short term. Firstly, the necessary social distancing measures 
impact customer access and interactions within stores, 
restaurants and other high street facilities. Additionally, and 
more significantly in the long-term, the reduction of an office 
based-workforce across larger centres has led to a stark 
reduction in demand for high street amenities from workers. 
On the other hand, this has led to increased ‘hyperlocalism’, 
as home workers frequent local high streets instead of 
facilities focussed around a commute -  a direct benefit for 
the centres such as Sale Moor.

Alongside this we can also point to an increase in community 
cohesion and partnerships amongst high street occupiers, as 
well as between high streets and local residents. 

In a number of cases, high street operators have adapted 
to the COVID-19 outbreak by pivoting to an online model 
(which will likely remain as an additional revenue stream 
for a number of businesses in the future) and increased 
communication of opening hours and operating procedures. 
This has led to new level of customer interaction for some 
high street occupiers, while others have understandably 
reduced communication whilst focussing on other priorities 
during the outbreak. Many businesses are also diversifying 
their offer and adding, often informal, home delivery 
services.

There is a need for flexibility in centres, which needs to be 
adaptable to a number of uses to address a wide range of 
future needs. This is ever important following the COVID-19 
pandemic and as we witness the ‘recovery’ within Sale Moor. 
Indeed, vital and viable centres need a varied mix of uses 
and there is also an identified need to concentrate multi-
functional public services in town centre locations to realise 
agglomeration benefits.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 34



25

Population aged 80 or more years at 2017 in Sale Moor Ward
Source: Trafford JSNA 

Index of Multiple Deprivation at 2017 in Sale Moor Ward
Source: Trafford JSNA

4.3	 Community	Profile	–	Demographics

Sale Moor is situated to the east of the borough and shares a 
large part of its boundary with Manchester. 

Its northern boundary is the River Mersey and Sale Golf 
Course. The remaining boundaries are adjacent to residential 
areas on Northern Moor in Manchester and Sale. 

The M60 motorway runs through the ward and separates the 
main residential area from Sale Golf Course and the Mersey 
Valley 

Key demographic facts from Trafford ward profiling:

• As of 2017, the Sale Moor Ward is estimated to have a 
population of 10,744. adjacent is the Brooklands Ward 
with 10,701 and the Priory Ward with 11,633 residents.

• Just 2.1% of Sale Moor’s population travel to work by 
bicycle, however 24.2% of households in Sale Moor have 
no vehicle.

• Sale Moor has the second highest percentage of Green 
Space in the borough, with 21.7% of its area covered by 
green space.

• 21.4% of the residents in the Sale Moor ward have no 
qualifications, which is the sixth highest in Trafford 
Borough.

• In terms of the number of people aged 65 years or 
above as a percentage of the working population, this is 
estimated to be 28.1% (the higher the percentage, the 
larger share of pensioners). The Brooklands Ward has a 
higher percentage at 33.7%.

• In terms of Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019), Sale 
Moor is within the top 10 wards in Trafford with a score 
of 18. Compared to Brooklands, Sale Moor is substantially 
higher than the score of 6.7 in that ward.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Demographics D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 35



26

4.4 Retail Study Summary

The Trafford Retail and Leisure Study (2019) establishes the 
current position in respect of the need for additional retail 
and leisure facilities in Trafford borough, and considers the 
vitality and viability of the Council’s principal centres. 

The household survey that underpins the Study was 
undertaken by NEMS Market Research in October 2018 
across nine zones, which are considered reflective of the 
principal catchment area for retail and leisure facilities within 
Trafford borough. 

Using the findings of the Study, we are able to establish how 
shopping and leisure patterns have changed, and in most 
cases able to decipher why this has happened. In particular, 
we are able to breakdown the results from the survey to 
better understand where residents from postcode sectors 
within and surrounding Sale Moor centre choose to shop 
and meet their leisure requirements.

Key findings in respect of shopping and leisure patterns 
within Sale Moor are as follows:

Retail Patterns

• Residents of Sale Moor choose between a variety of 
convenience destinations to meet their main food 
shopping needs, including Tesco, Aldi and Sainsbury’s 
in Sale and the Tesco in Altrincham. There is a clear 
dominance of the large foodstores in respect of meeting 
residents’ main food shopping needs, and whilst these 
stores are not located within Sale Moor itself, are situated 
within a reasonable distance from the village centre, 
and as such, it is considered overall that there is good 
accessibility to convenience stores.

• In terms of top-up convenience shopping, a wider range 
of destinations are cited as being the preferred choice, 
including a number of the independent retailers within 
Sale Moor itself (Taylors etc) and the Tesco Express 
located on Norris Road to the south of the village centre. 
However, the majority of the population from each of 
the postcode sectors surrounding Sale Moor still choose 
alternative destinations to meet their top-up shopping 
needs, including a range of Co-op stores within Sale, 

Ashton and West Timperley and the Sainsbury’s, Aldi and 
Tesco stores in Sale.

• Turning to comparison shopping, the principal 
destination is overwhelmingly the Trafford Centre for all 
M33 postcodes, followed by a mixture of Manchester city 
centre and Altrincham town centre.

Leisure Patterns

• Residents were also asked where they choose to visit a 
restaurant. The immediate catchment of Sale Moor stated 
that they choose to visit Sale and Altrincham town centres 
and Manchester city centre to go to a restaurant. 

• In terms of bars and pubs, Sale town centre is the 
principal destination for all of the postcode sectors 
surrounding Sale Moor. However, the village centre does 
attract some of the pub trips given the presence of the 
Legh Arms and The Temple public houses.

Northwich

Sale

Salford

Knutsford

Altrincham

Lymm

Leigh

Walkden

Chelford

Goostrey

Culcheth

Chorlton

Glazebury

Mobberley

Higher Folds

Old Trafford

Higher Wincham

M56

M6

M60

M56

M62

M61

M56

M6

M61

M602

M61

M60

M56

A57(M)

A580

A34

A5103

A56

A537

A6

A50

A556

A5034

A57

A6042

A5063

A575

A559

A537

A56

A556

A580

A6

A34

A556

A556

A6

A50

A559

A56

A574

A6144

A538

A572

A5145

A535

A57

A577

A6010

A666

A576

A530

A560

A579

A5066

A575

A5181

A6044

A533

A5144

A5185

A5186

A5081

A578

A5509

A577

A560

A6144

A538

A57

A50

A50

A572

A576

A56

A56

A538

N.B. Study Area Zone definitions
adapted from the 'Trafford Retail
and Leisure Study' (2007)

Trafford Council
Retail and Lesiure Study Catchment Area

0 5 102.5 Miles

Legend
Zone A | Southern (Altrincham)

Zone B | Partington & Urmston

Zone C | Eastern (Sale)

Zone D | Northern (Stretford)

Zone E | Chorlton & Hulme

Zone F | Baguley

Zone G | Eccles & Salford

Zone H | Lymm

Zone I | Knutsford

Zone A

Zone E

Zone I

Zone H

Zone G

Zone F

Zone D

Zone C

Zone B

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

Baseline Analysis

Excerpt of Study Area
Source: Trafford Retail and Leisure Study 2019

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 36



27
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

4.5 Planning Policy 

The adopted Planning Policy for Trafford comprises 
the Trafford Core Strategy (CS) (January 2012), and 
relevant Saved Policies from the Revised Trafford Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) (June 2006). Other material 
considerations of relevance:

• National Planning Policy Framework (“the Framework”);
• National Planning Practice Guidance (the PPG); and
• Trafford Supplementary Guidance and Documents.

Adopted Core Strategy

In line with the NPPF’s requirement for a settlement 
hierarchy, Sale Moor is designated in the Trafford Local Plan 
(Core Strategy 2012) as a District Centre.

Within the district centre boundary for Sale Moor is a small 
area of protected open land (Policy C8). 

Policy W2 of the Core Strategy prioritises sustainable urban 
design with a particular emphasis on encouraging a mix of 
uses appropriate to the centre, active frontages and high 
quality in the design and finish of the public realm. Impacts 
upon the function, character, vitality and viability of the 
centre as a whole and on specific frontages, particularly 
within primary shopping frontages should be considered. 
Where appropriate, new development within town centres 
should include a variety of unit sizes in order to encourage 
diversity in the retail offer and make appropriate provision 
for the preservation of prominent, historic buildings.

In addition to the above, the following policies are also of 
relevance:

• Policy L4 – ‘Transport and Accessibility’. The Council will 
seek to support the modernisation and improvement 
of the existing highways and public transport in order 
to get the best use out of infrastructure already in 
place, promote integrated transport linkages, and 
improve accessibility, especially within disadvantaged 
neighbourhoods. In line with this the council aim to work 
to develop a network of pedestrian and cycle routes 
linking residential areas to leisure facilities, schools, and 

workplaces as well as improving public transport through 
improvements to bus networks along cross conurbation 
routes. 

• Policy L7 – ‘Design and Landscaping’. Trafford Council 
requires development to achieve a high quality of 
design by taking into account matters of functionality, 
protecting amenity, security and accessibility. In relation 
to matters of design, development proposals must 
ensure they are appropriate to their context, make use 
of opportunities to improve the character and quality of 
an area and enhance the street scene or character of an 
area by addressing scale, density, height, massing, layout, 
elevation treatment, materials, hard and soft landscaping 
works and boundary treatments. The policy also requires 
development to make appropriate provision for open 
space.

• Policy R3 – ‘Green Infrastructure’ states that the Council 
will work to develop an integrated network of high 
quality, multi-functional green infrastructure to diversify 
the local economy, enhance facilities, improve health and 
wellbeing, and enhance cross-boundary connectivity. This 
includes incidental landscaping and street trees

The NPPF (2019)

The NPPF states that Local Plans should define a hierarchy 
of town centres, allowing them to grow in a way that allows 
a sustainable mix of uses and reflects their distinctive 
characters. The impact of proposals upon existing, 
committed and planned public and private investment in a 
centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal will 
be assessed. Furthermore, councils must assess the impact of 
any proposal on town centre vitality and viability, including 
local consumer choice and trade in the town centre and the 
wider retail catchment.

Planning Policy Summary

The Government is placing great emphasis on the 
revitalisation of high streets and the need to diversify the 
offer so as to encourage additional users to defined centres, 
particularly when smaller centres are competing with larger, 
stronger centres with a greater choice and offer. There is also 
an acknowledgement that centres need to move away from 
a principally retail focus to centres which provide a greater 

mix of leisure and community uses which encourage longer 
dwell-times and a greater propensity for linked-trips.

The current adopted development plan for Trafford Council 
seeks to protect defined centres to ensure that they are vital 
and viable and support the needs of the local communities. 
Policy W2 encourages a mix of uses to support its future 
success, with a range of active frontages and high quality 
design. This Village Place Plan is predicated on the general 
thrust of the policy, and in particular seeking to encourage a 
range of uses to better reflect the needs of the catchment.

Changes to Permitted Development Rights and Use 
Class Order

In summer 2020, the Government announced a series 
of changes to Permitted Development Rights and the 
Use Classes Order. These changes came into effect from 
September 2020 and seek to “deliver much-needed new 
homes and revitalise town centres’. 

In effect, these changes are intended to allow for greater 
flexibility when changing uses within town centres. However, 
as these changes are to be introduced without a spatial 
dimension, they will also make it easier to change uses in out 
of centre locations, such as business parks. As such careful 
consideration will be needed in planning for the future of 
town centres in the context of these changes.

The amendment will introduce three new use classes, Classes 
E, F1 and F2:

• Use Class E – commercial, business and service
• Use Class F1 – learning and non-residential institutions
• Use Class F2 – local community
• Sui Generis – use within this Class now include Public 

house, wine bar or drinking establishment; a drinking 
establishment with expanded food provision; as a 
hot food takeaway for the sale of hot food where 
consumption of that food is mostly undertaken off the 
premises; live music venue; cinema; concert hall; bingo 
hall or dance hall.

Baseline Analysis D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 37



28

Strengths
• Sale Moor currently has a good variety of service and con-

venience goods operators, with the centre appearing well 
used at the time of our visit. 

• The centre is surrounded by housing and therefore is con-
venient and accessible to the surrounding catchment.

Weaknesses
• Sale Moor lacks a convenience goods retailer of a scale that 

is able to support some main food shopping trips, or any 
financial and business service operators.

• The centre is also dominated by cars, which impacts on pe-
destrian movement across the centre.

• Overall perception of safety in the centre is low and it is 
very difficult to move from one side to the other

Opportunities
• As the centre is focussed around a fairly busy junction, 

efforts should be made to improve the public realm and 
environmental quality of the centre. 

• The Council has consulted on the future of Warrener Street 
car park, which in our experience often functions below 
capacity. 

• The car park benefits from planning permission for a food 
retail development, but could accommodate a variety of 
uses, including residential.

Threats
• There are a number of hot-food takeaways (11 in total). The 

concentration of these operators reduces the overall diver-
sity of the centre.

• Competition from nearby larger centres, including Sale and 
Altrincham

• Risk of further closures of operators in the centre

Flo
o

r sp
ace 

at 2019 
(sq

.m
)

Flo
o

r sp
ace 

at 2019 (%
)

Traffo
rd

 
D

istrict 
C

en
tre 

Flo
o

rsp
ace 

at 2018 (%
)

N
u

m
b

er 
o

f u
n

its at 
2019

U
n

its at 
2019 (%

)

Traffo
rd

 
D

istrict 
C

en
tre U

n
its 

at 2018 (%
)

Convenience 754 sq.m 12.8% 21.4% 9 14.5% 12.6%

Comparison 1,034 sq.m 17.5% 15.7% 9 14.5% 21.3%

Retail Services 1,254 sq.m 21.3% 14.8% 18 29.0% 21.8%

Leisure Services 2,043 sq.m 34.7% 30.1% 19 30.6% 27.2%

Financial and 
Business Services

58 sq.m 1.0% 9.5% 1 1.6% 9.6%

Miscellaneous 0 sq.m 0.0% 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0%

Vacant 752 sq.m  12.8% 8.6% 6 9.7% 7.5%

Total 5,895 sq.m 62

District centre composition and land use plan as of July 2019 SWOT Assessment

4.6 The Existing Composition of Sale Moor Village Centre

Sale Moor Healthcheck

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 38



29

4.7 Sale Moor Health Check

It is important to note that the healthcheck was undertaken 
pre-COVID and as we are not yet certain of the direct 
implications of the pandemic on the high street, the overall 
conclusions may alter in the coming months. An update 
to the healthcheck over the next 6-12 months would be 
useful to establish whether there have been any substantial 
changes to the viability of the centre post-COVID.

Key findings (as of July 2019):

• There are 62 commercial units within Sale Moor district 
centre, accounting for a total of 5,895 sq.m of retail floor 
space.

• There are currently six vacant units within Sale Moor. 
These account for 9.7% of all units and 12.8% of total 
commercial floor space.

• Convenience and comparison goods operators account 
for 29.0% of floor space and 30.3% of all units.

• Service operators (leisure, retail and financial and 
business) account for 57.0% of retail floor space and 
61.2% of all units.

• Sale Moor benefits from a balance in favour of 
independent operators, creating a more unique retail 
offer and community feel. 

• However there are relatively few community facilities 
located in or within close proximity to the centre.

 
Sale Moor lacks a small/medium convenience store which 
is capable of anchoring the centre, but does have a good 
range of smaller independent convenience operators which 
serve the local catchment. Whilst there is not a large anchor 
foodstore in the centre, it is considered that the choice of 
offer within a reasonable catchment from Sale Moor is good 
and meets the residents’ requirements.

The proportion and diversity of comparison goods (clothes, 
household goods etc.) operators is considered to be broadly 
sufficient to serve the day-to-day needs of Sale Moor.

Hot-food takeaways (there are 10 in Sale Moor) represent a 
significant proportion of units in the centre. The number of 
hot-food takeaways is considered to be unduly dominant for 
a centre of this size.

There are currently six vacant units within Sale Moor. These 
account for 9.7% of all units and 12.8% of total commercial 
floorspace. This represents an increase from the 4.9% of 
units recorded as vacant in the 2018 survey of Sale Moor. 
However the figure of 9.7% of units being vacant remains 
lower than the current UK national average.

The increase in the number of vacant units since the 2018 
health check for the Trafford Retail and Leisure Study from 
three to six could be indicative of churn in the district 
centre. This does allow an opportunity for new operators 
to trade from Sale Moor. However the increase over a 
12-month period will require some thinking as to how 
this can be addressed to ensure that the trend does not 
continue.

Operators in the centre generally focus on main trading 
hours, operating throughout the usual 9-5 working 
day. During our visit, most units were open and trading 
increasing the vibrancy and vitality of Sale Moor. However 
a number of vacant units detracted from the feeling of 

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Date
July 2019
Data
OS ©2019

Sale Moor
Village Centre

vibrancy, particularly on Northenden Road beyond the IMO 
car wash. 

Furthermore, Sale Moor offers a semblance of an evening 
economy, with two public houses, hot-food takeaways and a 
restaurant operating into the evening. However the number 
of hot-food takeaways reduce the appearance of activity 
as these uses are generally quiet during the day when the 
centre should benefit from the greatest amount of activity.

Generally, the centre offers a sufficient range of services to 
serve the day-to-day needs of the local community. There 
is a pharmacy, estate agent, household goods shop and a 
dentist within Sale Moor. Furthermore, independent cafés 
and pubs offer a good level of community-centred customer 
service.

Sale Moor Healthcheck D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 39



1

3

4

2

1

The shop fronts of Sale Moor potentially have plenty of character 
with small scale frontages and a mixture of Victorian and early 20th 
Century buildings. However, many of the upper floors are in poor 
condition and there is lack of cohesion in the use of signage, fascia 
proportion and colour schemes. There is an opportunity to create 
a unique sense of place with well proportioned shopfronts in bold, 
complimentary colours. 

Poor condition paintwork on upper 
floors. No consistency in colours.

Fascia extends to upper floor and 
large canopy, out of proportion with 
the building as a whole.

Poor quality signage, out of 
proportion with the fascia.

6.1 Shop Front Analysis

59Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan58

Shop Front Analysis

4.8 Sale Moor Shop Fronts

The shop fronts of Sale Moor offer the potential to have plen-
ty of character with small scale frontages and a mixture of 
Victorian and early 20th Century buildings.

However, many of the upper floors are in poor condition and 
there is a lack of cohesion in the use of signage, fascia pro-
portion and colour schemes. 

There is an opportunity to create a unique sense of place with 
well proportioned shopfronts in bold, complementary colours.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan
30

1

3

4

2

1

The shop fronts of Sale Moor potentially have plenty of character 
with small scale frontages and a mixture of Victorian and early 20th 
Century buildings. However, many of the upper floors are in poor 
condition and there is lack of cohesion in the use of signage, fascia 
proportion and colour schemes. There is an opportunity to create 
a unique sense of place with well proportioned shopfronts in bold, 
complimentary colours. 

Poor condition paintwork on upper 
floors. No consistency in colours.

Fascia extends to upper floor and 
large canopy, out of proportion with 
the building as a whole.

Poor quality signage, out of 
proportion with the fascia.

6.1 Shop Front Analysis

59Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan58

Signage out of proportion 
with the fascia

Inconsistency in paint colours 
and in need of upgrades

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 40



31
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

2

3

4

Large fascias that extend to the upper 
floor windows detract from the street.

Large signage, out of proportion with the 
building as a whole.  Garish colours that 
do not compliment the architecture of the 
street. Lack of cohesion in signage colour 
and font

Lack of cohesion in signage and shop 
front colours.

61Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan60

Large fascias that extend to the 
upper floor windows detract 
from the street

Large signage out of propor-
tion with the building as a 
whole. Garish colours which do 
not complement the architec-
ture of the street. Overall lack 
of cohesion in signage colour 
and font.

Lack of cohesion in signage 
and shop front colours.

Shop Front Analysis D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 41



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 42



The Vision and Objectives

05

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 43



34

5. The Vision and Objectives

Objectives

The Offer of the Centre
1. To maintain and improve the diversity of uses and the offer of the centre 

through the enhancement of the overall village setting and creation of 
new, modern units.

2. To help support local businesses through a range of marketing methods to 
support and promote the offer of the centre.

3. To work with the community and other partners to ensure that the benefits 
of regeneration are widely felt, and that the village’s offer meets the 
requirements of the entire catchment including all demographics.

Movement
1. To create an environment that places an emphasis on the safety and utility 

of streets and routes for people to walk and cycle. 
2. To support improvement of accessibility to and within the centre for 

pedestrians and cyclists and to reduce the dominance of traffic, whilst 
maintaining appropriate vehicle access and movement.

3. To incorporate the wider MCF proposals throughout the village, including 
substantial public realm improvements.

4. To develop a strategy to remove/alter the barriers which form part of the 
gyratory system to improve pedestrian movement throughout the village.

Streetscape
1. To revitalise and regenerate Sale Moor as an ‘urban village’, combining 

existing uses with new, high quality bespoke development at the Warrener 
Street Car Park.

2. To safeguard those parts of the existing built environment that contribute 
to the character heritage and distinctiveness of the area.

3. To substantially improve the shopfronts in the village.

Public Realm
1. To create inclusive, well-designed public spaces which form a place to 

meet and hold informal events.
2. To create new entrance gateways into the village, welcoming visitors.
3. To improve the overall public realm within Sale Moor, using generous 

footways and safe cycle routes, soft landscaping and areas within which 
activities can spill-out into

4. Encouraging new public art, and public realm additions which the 
community can take ownership of and curate.

Vision
‘Sale Moor will be a thriving village 
centre with community at its heart, 

that attracts independent businesses and 
welcomes visitors from outside of the area. 

People will be able to move about freely and Sale 
Moor will become accessible to everyone at all times of 

the day, with sustainable movement at its heart.

The village will continue to grow as a diverse centre, 
including a reinvigorated evening economy that will 

meet the needs of the entire catchment. 

It will evolve through strong community 
partnerships, along with physical and 

aesthetic improvements’.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 44



35

Principal Challenges

Drawing on the SWOT analysis, it is clear that the village 
centre is currently facing challenges that must be addressed 
if it is to be sustainable in the long term. 

Principal challenges include: 

• The implications associated with COVID-19 (both positive 
and negative) and how the centre will perform in the 
short and medium term.

• The village centre perception – the range of uses and 
services, the quality of shop frontages and public realm, 
access to the village centre, safety in the centre and 
physical environment can strongly influence success. 

• Socio economic profile – the key indicators demonstrate 
the broad width of demographics in the catchment 
and therefore the requirement to provide a centre 
which can meet the entire catchment’s needs. As 
such, in regenerating and enhancing the village, new 
developments need to take the local catchment into 

account.
• Accessibility and movement - efficient and safe 

movement to, through and around the village centre from 
a range of transport modes is crucial to ensuring regular 
patronage. Some businesses are also heavily reliant on 
the availability of short-stay car parking adjacent to their 
premises, which needs to be taken account of.

• Complementary roles - as a result of the close proximity 
of the village centre to neighbouring towns, such as Sale 
and Altrincham, they will inevitably have overlapping 
catchments. It will be essential to ensure that their future 
roles are complementary, not competing. 

• Attract new public / private investment funding. 
• Appropriate mix of uses - retail, services, leisure and 

residential are all key components to encourage more 
footfall and a greater length of stay within the village 
centre, both day and night.

• Lack of strong marketing for the centre.

If we don’t encourage and create compelling reasons for 
people to come into the village centre, they will continue 
to go elsewhere. These ‘compelling reasons’ or the village’s 
offer, which is expressed through a clear Vision, brand and 
delivery plan, must have resonance and credibility with the 
people we want to attract and be based on what we can 
deliver.

The Objectives in Detail - The Offer of the 
Centre

Maintain and Improve Diversity

Sale Moor village centre has a relatively limited leisure 
(restaurants, café, cultural uses) offer. There is an opportunity 
to improve and diversify the village centre offer and 
therefore increasing the overall footfall in the centre, both 
throughout the day and the evening. However, key to the 
success of the Plan is the retention of the existing invaluable 
local independent traders who make Sale Moor unique. 
Any new developments must complement not compete 
with these uses. Furthermore, we have to be careful that 
any scheme to improve accessibility and public realm in the 
centre do not impact on the future success of the existing 
businesses.

There is an opportunity to provide modern format space 
which better meets potential operator’s requirements and a 
flexible space from which community events can take place 
at Warrener Street.

In order to create a place with a variety and mix of uses, 
development (and public realm schemes where appropriate) 
should:

• Plan for a mix of compatible uses and tenures
• Encourage additional uses such as restaurants and bars 

through the wider improvement of the public realm and 
streetscape, and overall investor confidence in the centre

• Aim to achieve diverse communities and cultures
• Explore a variety of architectural styles whilst respecting 

the local character, vernacular and neighbouring uses

Support Sustainability

New development and improvements to the accessibility 
and movement of the centre should seek to raise the 
environmental performance of buildings through the 
incorporation of high quality designs that encourage 
behavioural changes in travelling to the centre. However, the 
proposed highways alterations and public realm changes 
must complement the existing offer in the centre, ensuring 
that the existing offer is retained whilst also seeking to 
increase footfall and dwell-time in the centre.

In order to achieve a sustainable village centre for Sale Moor, 
improvements to the village should:

• Incorporate electric vehicle charging points
• Encourage travel to and within the centre by sustainable 

transport modes, through the promotion of the new MCF 
route and wider improvements

• Improve the overall safety in the centre for people to walk 
and cycle. 

In order to achieve the Vision it is important to look at 
different areas of the village centre in terms of how they 
function, what their role is, and how these areas can be 
improved in order to support and enhance the overall vitality 
and viability of the centre. We explore this in more detail in 
proceeding chapters of the Plan.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 45



The Objectives in Detail - Movement

Promote Ease of Movement

When considering movement within the village centre, there 
is a need to take account of the primary users of a particular 
space. The village centre needs to be a place that is easy 
to get to and move through, and sustainable modes of 
transport to and within the centre are encouraged. Operators 
need to be able to continue to function successfully and 
thrive whilst also encouraging additional footfall into the 
centre.

To create a connective and permeable village centre, the 
strategy for the village should ensure that:

• Traffic calming measures are introduced to reduce the 
speed of vehicles using the gyratory, particularly from 
those entering the gyratory from the motorway.

• Prioritise active travel by supporting the successful 
Mayors Challenge Fund bid to develop a segregated 
cycle route from Sale – Sale Moor – Sale Water Park, 
with quality cycle parking and improvements to crossing 
facilities. 

• Potential to reduce traffic levels on certain sections of 
gyratory, subject to traffic modelling.

• Alter circulation and signage between Northenden Road, 
James Street and Hampson Street to improve access to 
public car parks.

• Roads, footpaths, cycleways and public services are 
connected into well-used routes and connect proposed 
and existing nodes of activity

• Public areas are easily accessible for all users, including 
mobility scooter/wheelchair/pushchair users and cyclists

• Schemes provide a choice of safe, high quality routes.
• Remove guard railings to enable pedestrians to follow 

desire lines and increase the attractiveness of the street 
scene. 

• Review on-street parking provision taking into 
consideration residents and local business as well as 
pedestrian and cyclist safety.

Improve Legibility

The village centre needs to provide a welcoming image, and 

be easy to understand for all users. 

In order to help create a place that is easy to understand 
development and public realm schemes should:

• Incorporate clear and easily navigable routes, utilising 
appropriate and distinguishable hard and soft surfacing, 
including the provision of shared surfaces

• Create new or enhance existing ‘gateways’ to the village 
centre which enable users to identify with that particular 
area and celebrate the village as a whole

• Include well-designed lighting which accentuates key 
buildings and vistas, assists with the sense of safety and 
security, and leads the user to legible routes

• Incorporate legible signage and way markers for all users 
whilst minimising highway/public realm clutter

• Include clear signage to encourage users of the village to 
use all available car parks

The Objectives in Detail - Streetscape and 
Urban Design

Maintain and Enhance Character and Identity

The character of Sale Moor is formed by the pattern of 
development, its scale and massing and by the mix of uses. 

Sale Moor’s character is what makes it unique and has 
evolved through time, shaped very much by the people who 
live and work in the village centre. It is vital that the centre 
appeals to the whole of the catchment including families, 
young professionals, students, school children (of all ages), 
the older generation and so on.

In creating a sense of place, new development and public 
realm projects should incorporate:

• Spaces which are visible and contribute to the character 
of the area

• Good quality design and sustainable building materials to 
ensure longevity and environmental responsibility

The function of centres has changed markedly in recent 
years with technological advances and the ever increasing 
reliance of internet shopping. It is anticipated that the role of 

36

Principle Challenges in Sale Moor

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 46



37

centres will continue to evolve and as such Sale Moor village 
centre needs to be a place that can respond to change. 
This is particularly the case in light of the current COVID-19 
pandemic and the implications on the high street.

In creating an adaptable village centre, development and 
public realm schemes should:

• Incorporate flexible areas which support a variety of uses
• Incorporate buildings adaptable to a variety of present 

and future uses

The Objectives in Detail - Public Realm

Improve the Quality of the Public Realm

Improvements to the public realm are essential to improving 
the image and attractiveness of Sale Moor village centre. 

Quality public spaces contribute enormously to people’s 
health, happiness and wellbeing. 

In order to create a place with lively and pleasant to use 
public spaces and routes, the objectives of the village place 
plan are to:

• Undertake a village centre-wide approach to public realm, 
linking one end of the village with the other and creating 
a uniformed scheme

• Achieve a sense of safety and security
• Create uncluttered and easily maintained surroundings
• Be Inclusive - suited to the needs of everyone, including 

young families, disabled and older people
• Include well-designed lighting 
• Include well-designed street furniture which assists in 

creating and enhancing identity
• Create healthy environments which are sociable (a 

place to meet friends), easy to access and easy to use, 
encouraging activity. 

Signs of Success

We will know that we have met the objectives through the 
following:

• Reduction in number of vacant units and the ‘churn’ in 
operators in the centre, through the encouragement of 
additional footfall in the centre.

• Increase in ‘dwell-time’ in the area, resulting in 
additional direct economic benefits to businesses in Sale 
Moor.

• The creation of a new community space(s) to hold 
informal events.

• More places to eat, drink and enjoy leisure time in the 
village centre, including an enhanced family friendly 
offer and more ‘after five’ uses including leisure and 
residential through the delivery of the Warrener Street 
development opportunity site.

• The retention and growth of the independent sector 
in the village and encouragement of wider community 
activities in the centre.

• An enhanced public realm, through the creation of new 
soft landscaped areas and additional trees

• More public art and celebrations of creativity
• Increased private sector investment and business 

growth
• The delivery of the new cycle and pedestrian route 

through the centre and the reduction in traffic flow 
through Northenden Road

• The delivery of a new approach to shopfront design, 
guided by the Trafford-wide Design Guide.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 47



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 48



Development Strategy

06

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 49



40

Movement and Highways

Key Findings:

• Motor Vehicles are prioritised due to the highway 
dominated nature of the gyratory.

• Vehicles can travel at high speed (>30mph) through the 
gyratory, particularly when travelling in a south-westerly 
direction from B5166 Northenden Road to A6144 
Marsland Road. 

• Guard railing and street furniture act as barriers to 
pedestrian movement.

• Demand for on-street parking is high. 
• On-street parking is beneficial for local business but 

creates safety and amenity concerns for cyclists.
• The area lacks quality green spaces which are accessible 

to pedestrians.
• Off-street parking areas tends to have spaces, but access 

to them can be difficult to find for those not familiar with 
village.

• Traffic congestion can arise from M60 Jct 6 in the AM 
peak, but gyratory typically operates satisfactorily.

• Local schools are a significant contributor to footfall.

Opportunities:

• Introduce traffic calming measures to reduce the speed of 
vehicles using the gyratory. 

• Prioritise active travel by supporting the successful MCF 
bid to develop a segregated cycle route with quality cycle 
parking and improvements to crossing facilities. 

• Potential to downgrade certain sections of gyratory, 
subject to traffic modelling.

• Alter highways circulation between Northenden Road, 
James Street and Hampson Street to improve access to 
public car parks.

• Create new areas of public realm including village 
gateways to encourage visitors to stay and enjoy the area. 

• Remove guard railing to enable pedestrians to follow 
desire lines and increase the attractiveness of the street 
scene. 

• Review on-street parking provision taking into 
consideration residents and local business as well as 
pedestrian and cyclist safety

Streetscape and Urban Design

Key	findings:

• There is no quality public realm, with railings used 
frequently

• Shop fronts have limited continuity  which detracts 
from the appearance of the street, however many shop 
fronts and upper floors can be improved through simply 
repainting

• Gap sites are currently used for parking.

Opportunities:

• Good development opportunities for the Warrener Street 
car park site

• Upper floors on buildings can be easing repainted and 
restored

Public Realm and Landscaping

Key	findings:

Vehicles and street-linkages

• There are a limited number of safe crossing points which 
makes it difficult to cross safely.

• Guard railings limit access between north and south.
• Poorly signed car parks

Public space

• The public realm is low in quality, lacking suitable surfac-
es and street furniture.

• There is a lack of access to public open space.

Opportunities:

• To slow down traffic through the village
• Provide generous footways and safe cycle routes to 

promote sustainable transport use
• Create streets with space for spill-out activity
• Create central meeting point orientated around the 

original crossroads with landmark features to aid 

orientation
• Give the people of Sale Moor a high street they can 

curate - a place for events, socialising, culture and well 
being;

• Encourage community ownership of the village - planters 
for renegade gardeners, village notice boards for 
advertising events and gathering spaces for local events

• Announcing arrival and departures to encourage passing 
traffic to stop and explore

Identified Opportunities in Sale Moor

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 50



41
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 51



THE STRATEGY

The strategy sets out an ambitious plan to recreate a village 
High Street for Sale Moor and to return a more balanced ap-
proach to all users, not just vehicles. The redevelopment of the 
Warrener Street car park offers opportunities to create a new 
public space for the local community redefining the heart of 
the village. The strategy will be achieved through the following 
key concepts:

• Reorganising traffic movement to re-establish Northenden 
Road as the High Street - a place for people not cars;

• Provide widened and enhanced footways, street greening 
and seating throughout the village to encourage longer 
dwell time;

• Provide improved on street parking and better signing and 
legibility to local car parks;

• Create a new village square facilitated by residential and 
commercial development that can provide space for local 
events, markets and community gatherings;

• Remove street clutter and reduce vehicle dominance to 
reconnect the north and south of Northenden Road;

• Providing clear/improved on street signage, plus website 
information to car parks and cycle stands, along with di-
rections to disabled bays will be key to encouraging move-
ment;

• Create a distinctive village character, clear village entrances 
and people scaled environments to announce the arrival 
into Sale Moor; and

• Improve cycle routes through the area with a new bidirec-
tional cycle lane connecting Sale Moor to Sale and Sale 
Waterpark.

AN INDEPENDENT HIGH STREET

Sale Moor has a uniquely independent high street with a range 
of local, traditional and specialist retailers. The variety and con-
centration in a compact village centre provides an attractive 
hub for the local community and a sense of individuality and 
character unlike anywhere else. The strategy is to:

• Encourage independent and artisan businesses that offer a 
personalised experience;

• Expand the evening offer and support through creating 
cafe spill out space, improved lighting and reduced vehicle 
noise/speeds; 

• Opportunities to build an identity and village brand 
through consistent and iconic shopfront design and sig-
nage;

• Increase dwell time by creating a High Street that people 
want to spend time in;

• New commercial development to be of a scale that encour-
ages independent retailers.

A VILLAGE ONCE AGAIN

Sale Moor is a lost village consumed by the road network and 
dominated by vehicle needs. The strategy is to:

• Recreate the village to put people and community at the 
heart of place and taking the centre back from motorised 
vehicles;

• Provide generous footways and safe cycle routes to pro-
mote sustainable transport use;

• Create streets with space for spill out activity;
• Create a central meeting point orientated around the origi-

nal crossroads with landmark feature to aid orientation;
• Seek opportunities with new development to deliver a com-

munity events space - a place for markets and local activi-
ties;

• New residential development to bring more people into the 
village heart and create a market for greater evening activi-
ty;

• Give the people of Sale Moor a high street they can curate - 
a place for events, socialising, culture and wellbeing;

• Create a High Street that can be closed on occasions to 
vehicular movement to facilitate events and to encourage 
greater use by local people;

• Encourage community ownership of the village - planters 
for renegade gardeners, village notice boards for advertis-
ing events, gathering spaces for local events;

• Announce arrival and departure through a clear identity 
and village brand and by highlighting entrances and key 
nodes to encourage passing traffic to stop and explore.

42

Development Strategy

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 52



43 Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 53



PUBLIC REALM STRATEGY

The strategy for the public realm materials and details is set 
out below.

HARD SURFACES

• A simple materials palette running from shopfront to kerb 
with high quality edgings will be incorporated. 

• A defined and elevated character for the High Street with 
feature surfaces around landmarks and seating areas.  

• Feature areas of high quality paving focussed around key 
spaces and seating areas. Materials to make reference to 
the local vernacular - bricks and cobbles;

• Feature edgings and level surface carriageway to the High 
Street to slow vehicles and extend the public space across 
the highway.

STREET FURNITURE, WALLS & LIGHTING 

• Comfortable and quirky seating organised in sociable 
groupings around trees and planters. Pedestrian scale ele-
ments that create a village feel;

• Vibrant quirky seats and benches influenced by colourful 
shopfronts and buildings.  Organised in groups at key vil-
lage locations;

• Large feature planters with ornamental floral displays and/
or opportunities for guerilla gardening and community 
grow your own;

• Landmark art / signage to orientate visitors and announce 
arrival at the village heart and feature lighting of landmark 
elements;

• Pedestrian scale light columns to the High Street to create a 
more intimate street environment.

SOFT LANDSCAPE

Vibrant seasonal floral displays and opportunities for commu-
nity owned planters and planting beds will help to create a 
distinctive village centre and community focused place.

Retain high quality mature trees to maximise green character;
New street tree planting to add character and create a greener, 
more intimate village centre. Narrow crown trees suitable for 
urban conditions.

.

44

Sale Moor - Materials and Details

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 54



45
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 55



Traffic	&	Transport

• Main vehicle movements directed around the 
village centre, encouraging less movement 
along the high street;

• High Street closed to through traffic - access 
only. One way vehicle movement exits via 
Temple Road;

• On street parking relocated to accommodate 
bi-directional cycle lane. Better signage of 
village car parks to encourage use. 

• On-street parking throughout the village to 
remain at the same level, with more parking 
in the ‘heart’ of the village for businesses;

• Integrate MCF cycle proposals. Bidirectional 
cycle lane connects the village to Sale and 
Sale Waterpark and the Mersey Valley;

• High Street change of surface, width and 
character denotes pedestrian/cycle priority;

• Current bus stops retained;
• Loading bay relocated from north side of 

Northenden Road. Shared loading/parking 
bays with restricted access for deliveries. 
Loading available within 50m of all retail 
units; and

• Village gateway traffic calming to reduce 
speeds to 20mph.

Public Realm 

• Northenden High Street redefined through 
new shared surface, tree planting, street fur-
niture and lighting;

• New village square connects proposed de-
velopment at Warrener Street to the High 
Street;

• Guardrails and street clutter removed, reduc-
ing barriers between the north and south of 
the village

• New traffic arrangement creates opportuni-
ties to close the High Street for community 
events;

• Wider footways, screened from traffic create 
space for spill out activity;

• Floral displays, trees and planters to encour-
age community ownership and create human 
scale and green village feel.

46
Sale Moor Village Place Plan

NORTHENDEN ROAD

OFF-CARRIAGEWAY 
CYCLE LANE

CHANGE IN CARRIAGEWAY SURFACE 
TO DENOTE PEDESTRIAN/CYCLE 
PRIORITY STREET. 1 WAY ACCESS 

ONLY. BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANE 
INCORPORATED 

ENHANCED CROSSINGS

PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE - 20MPH VILLAGE 

ZONE

REMOVE ROAD & RELOCATE PARKING (6no.) 
OFF CARRIAGEWAY. WIDEN FOOTWAY 
/ TREES & RAISED PLANTERS TO SHOP 

ENHANCE FRONTAGES

BI-DIRECTIONAL ON-ROAD 
CYCLE LANE

NEW TOWN SQUARE 
LINKS HIGH STREET & 
NEW DEVELOPMENT - 
ADDITIONAL SEATING

JUNCTIONS RAISED & 
PAVED 

ADDITIONAL PARKING 
ON SIDE ROADS

RELOCATE BUS STOP

ON STREET PARKING (10no.) / 
LOADING BAY RETAINED

PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE - 20MPH VILLAGE 

ZONE

MARSLAND ROAD

ON STREET PARKING (12no.)
RELOCATED TO SOUTH-SIDE 
TO ACCOMMODATE CYCLE 
LANE

JA
M

ES
 S

T

HA
M

PS
O

N 
ST

TE
M

PL
E 

RO
AD

JAMES ST ONE-WAY REVERSED. EXIT 
VIA TEMPLE ROAD

BOULEVARD TREE PLANTING

ACCESS THROUGH 
NORTHENDEN ROAD IS 

CLOSED OFF FOR VEHICLES

PARKING BAYS (3no.) 
RELOCATED FROM NORTH-

SIDE TO ACCOMODATE 
CYCLE LANE

PARKING (6no.) / LOADING 
BAYS RELOCATED FROM 
NORTHENDEN ROAD

LOADING /
PARKING BAYS

BUS STOP 
RETAINED

Sale Moor - Gyratory Improvements
D

ocum
ent P

ack P
age 56



HIGH STREET CHANGE OF CHARACTER. SPACE FOR 
SPILL OUT ACTIVITY 

HIGH STREET THRESHOLDS DEFINED & SPEEDS REDUCED

PRECEDENTS

CYCLE LANE INTEGRATED INTO FOOTWAY & PARKING

IMPORTANT LOCAL LANDMARKS ENHANCED WITH NEW PAVING & SEATING
OPPORTUNITY TO CLOSE THE HIGH STREET 
FOR LOCAL EVENTS

NEW PUBLIC SPACE WITH PEDESTRIAN LINKS ACROSS MAIN  ROAD

47
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 57



48

Warrener Street - Development Strategy

Through the study it has become apparent that the village has 
no central space, or square to hold events. This lack of space 
results in a community which struggles to hold events which 
would otherwise draw residents into the village and in turn help 
to support local businesses.

The Warrener Street car park site has been identified as a 
potential development opportunity within Sale Moor for a 
number of years, with previous approved schemes focusing 
principally around a medium sized foodstore with adjacent car 
parking. The opportunity assumes the acquisition of the car 
wash site, otherwise the developable area significantly reduces.

However, throughout the discussions as part of the consulta-
tion phase of the village place plan, it is clear that the Warrener 
Street Car Park site is an opportunity to provide a community 
space as desired by the community, along with new ground 
floor active frontages with modern space to accommodate the 
identified demand. 

Achieving a multi-storey development (to respond to the sur-
rounding massing and scale of existing buildings) will also 
provide an opportunity to include new residential units on the 
site, some of which could be affordable. This will draw further 
footfall into the centre.

A development framework for the site could consist of:

• The provision of ground floor retail and active frontage.
• The maintenance of existing trees to contribute to the urban 

space 
• Provision of homes/apartments on site with frontage to the 

gyratory, Northenden Road and Warrener street.
• Provision of integrated car parking at lower ground level to 

maximise the developable space on the site.
• Creation of a new link from Warrener street to Marsland 

road.

Sale Moor - Warrener Street Car Park Development Opportunity

Through the provision of active frontages at ground floor level, 
the northen and southen parts of the village will be connected, 
with good pedestrian access. The provision of a new village 
square will provide space for informal events and community 
activities, a requirement which has been identified by a range 
of stakeholders. 

The provision of new floorspace will attract new operators into 
the village, which will in turn increase the overall footfall and 
wider economic benefits. It is clear that the development of the 
Warrener Street car park is vital to the future success of Sale 
Moor village centre.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 58



49

Key

Residential 

Retail / Leisure

Site Boundary 

79Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan78

Sale Moor - Warrener Street Car Park Development Opportunity

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 59



50

View in square space

83Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan82

Sale Moor - Warrener Street Car Park Development Opportunity

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 60



51

View from Marsland Road to new square

81Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan80

Sale Moor - Warrener Street Car Park Development Opportunity

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 61



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 62



Movement Strategy

07

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 63



54

7. Movement Strategy

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

8/25/2020 3:22:47 PM 1 : 2500

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Baseline Map

(00) 001-

Ja
m

es
 S

tNorthenden Rd

V
ic

to
ria

 R
d

C
on

w
ay

 R
d

Le
g

h 
Rd

B
aguley Rd

Te
m

pl
e 

Rd

H
am

ps
on

 S
t

Northenden Rd

Old Hall 
Rd

1.1 Exiting Vehicle Movement

Key

Vehicle route

Vehicle route

Marsla
nd Rd

4Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 64



55
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

8/25/2020 3:22:47 PM 1 : 2500

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Baseline Map

(00) 001-

Ja
m

es
 S

tNorthenden Rd

Marsla
nd Rd

V
ic

to
ria

 R
d

C
on

w
ay

 R
d

Le
g

h 
Rd

B
aguley Rd

Te
m

pl
e 

Rd

H
am

ps
on

 S
t

Old Hall 
Rd

Northenden Rd

1.2 Proposed Movement

Key

Cycle route

Vehicle route

Vehicle route

Slow vehicle route for access to local properties and car 
parks only

Junction

5Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 65



56

Movement Strategy - Northenden Road

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

EXISTING

Traffic	&	Transport

• 30mph road however vehicle speeds often exceed this, 
mainly on Northenden Road;

• Narrow footways;
• Narrow on street parking bays conflict with adjacent 

cycle lane. Door opening potentially dangerous;
• Hazardous minimum width one way cycle lane;
• Central reservation and guardrailing encourages 

speeding;
• Two lane westbound creates dual carriageway charac-

ter;
• Limited on street parking on south side of the street.

Public Realm

• Limited street greening. No space for trees;
• Northenden Road is dominated by vehicles;
• Vehicle speeds and street clutter create a poor pedes-

trian experience;
• Low quality footways and furniture create a poor visi-

tor impression;
• No cycle parking;
• Low quality, inconsistent paving;
• Two sides of the High Street are separated by guardai-

ling. Pedestrians are forced to cross in defined loca-
tions.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 66



57
Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

PROPOSED

Traffic	&	Transport

• Retain existing vehicle movement but reduce 
speed to 20mph through road narrowing, village 
entrance features and other speed management 
elements;

• Remove on-street parking;
• Bidirectional off-carriageway cycle lane;
• Remove guardrail from central reservation.

Public Realm

• Enhance street scene with new paving and plant-
ers and removal of street clutter;

• Generous cycle lane gives cyclists a clear and safe 
route through the village;

• Greening of central reservation to announce arriv-
al in the village centre;

• Boulevard tree planting where space allows.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 67



58Sale Moor Village Place Plan

EXISTING

Traffic	&	Transport

• 30mph road however vehicle speeds often exceed 
this; 

• Narrow footways;
• Narrow on street parking bays conflict with adja-

cent cycle lane. Door opening potentially danger-
ous;

• Hazardous minimum width one way cycle lane. 
Unmarked in some locations;

• High vehicle numbers and speeds;
• Congestion caused by vehicles manoeuvring into 

parking spaces;
• Limited pedestrian crossing points.

Public Realm

• Limited street greening. No space for trees;
• The street is dominated by vehicles. Lacks village 

heart sense of scale or place;
• Narrow footways create a poor pedestrian experi-

ence. No space for spill out activities;
• Bollards and street clutter with no places to rest;
• Low quality, inconsistent paving;
• No cycle parking.

Movement Strategy - Northenden Road High Street
D

ocum
ent P

ack P
age 68



59 Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

PROPOSED

Traffic	&	Transport

• One way street for access only. 10mph speed limit;
• James Street direction reversed. Exit via Temple 

Road;
• Remove on-street parking to the north side to ac-

commodate a bi-directional cycle lane;
• Retain and extend on street parking and loading 

south side, ensuring disabled parking bays are also 
retained;

• Pedestrian / cyclist priority street with level surface, 
contrastive carriageway, wide edgings and narrow 
width slows vehicles and reduces car dominance; 

• Remove traffic furniture as speeds and vehicle num-
bers reduced;

• Improve side road crossings.

Public Realm

• High quality paving and edges and level surface 
with distinctive street character signifies pedestrian/
cycle priority;

• Footways widened to allow for spill out activity;
• Pedestrian scale lighting and street furniture;
• Tree planting on kerb build outs and on wider foot-

ways;
• Cycle lane paved in high quality carriageway surface 

and subtly delineated with quality details.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 69



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 70



Shopfront Strategy

08

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 71



62

7.1 Precedent

Five high street regeneration programmes were completed for 
Waltham Forest Council. Shop that had fallen into disrepair were 
given extensive shopfront, signage and facade treatment, with 
bold and vibrant colours. 

64

Waltham Forest - Precedent

Five high street regeneration programmes were completed for 
Waltham Forest Council.

Shops that had fallen into disrepair were given extensive shop-
front, signage and facade treatment, with bold and vibrant 
colours.

8. Shopfront Strategy
Shop Front Precedents and Analysis

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 72



63

Shop frontages are composed of a number of functional elements, 
which traditionally adhere to classical architectural principals. 
Careful consideration should be given to the proportion of these 
elements in relation to the building facade as a whole. In order 
to achieve a harmonious street scape, no single element should 
dominate. 

The architecture of Sale Moor ranges from small terraced 
properties to larger, and more orante, Victoran buildings. Where 
ever possible, the features of these shop fronts should be 
restored to the original proportions of the proporties. 

example

shopfront

7.2 Shop Front Components

Fascia
Signage

Shop Number

Transome

Mullion

Cill

Plinth

Stall Riser

66

Sale Moor Shopfronts

Shop frontages are composed of a number of functional 
elements, which traditionally adhere to classical architecture 
principles. 

Careful consideration should be given to the proportion of 
these elements in relation to the building facade as a whole. 
In order to achieve a harmonious streetscape, no single ele-
ment should dominate.

The architecture of Sale Moor ranges from small terraced 
properties to larger, and more ornate Victorian buildings. 
Wherever possible, the features of these shopfronts should be 
restored to the original proportions of the properties.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 73



64

7.3 Fascia & Signage Proportions

A fascia is used to display the signage of the shop, creating a 
visible separation between the ground floor and upper floors. 
Traditionally the fascia would display the shop name and often 
the trade of the business in hand painted lettering. Given 
its prominence, the fascia has a considerable impact on the 
character and appearance of the building and streetscape.

The proportion of the fascia and signage in relation to the 
remaining shop front need to be carefully considered in order 
to achieve a balanced elevation. The depth of the fascia should 
be no more than a fifth of the shop front height. Wherever 
possible the original fascia dimensions should be used. 

Some shop fronts occupy buildings that may not have originally 
been designed to function as a shop, in these cases a fascia 
may not be incorporated in the design. Therefore, signage of 
an appropriate scale may be applied directly to the window. 

7.3.1 The size of the fascia must be in proportion to the 

rest of the shopfront and the whole building. Fascias 

should be a maximum of one fifth the height of the 

shop front. 

7.3.2 The fascia should form an integral part of the overall 

design within the shopfront, rather than be a separate 

board superimposed without regard to the overall 

design.

S  H  O  P

h

h/5

7.3.3 A fascia should not extend beyond the shopfront 

surround, which is usually determined by the 

pilasters on each side. A fascia should not stretch 

uninterrupted across more than one building.

7.3.4 Fascias should not obscure the existing architectural 

elements.

7.3.5 The top of a fascia should be positioned well below 

the sill of the first floor windows.

Descreet 
blind box

Projected signage may interrupt the view down a street if not 
carefully considered. The size and colour of the sign should be in 
keeping with the traditional fascia. 

The use of canopies and blinds should not detract from the 
style of the shopfront and should be of an appropriate scale and 
colour.  Shallower canopies are preferred, allowing more daylight 
into the building. The canopies should be made from canvas, 
avoiding shiny materials and plastic. 

7.3.6 No more than one projecting sign per shop front;

7.3.7 Projected signs should be in line with the fascia panel, 

and not above first floor sill level.

7.3.8 Signs to co-ordinate with the proposed colour 

scheme and typeface of the overall shopfront design 

code;

7.3.9 Maximum size should be 600 x 400mm, but a smaller 

sign is preferable. 

7.3.10 Minimum clearance of the footpath should be 2.5m.

7.3.11 Minimum distance between the kerb edge and sign 

edge should be 450mm. 

7.3.12 All canopies and blinds should clear the footpath by a 

minimum of 2.3m and there should be a minimum of 

450mm between the kerb edge and outermost edge 

of the canopy.

7.3.13 Roller blinds must be retracted into a discreet ‘blind 

box’ that is fitted flush with the fascia.

7.3.14 Canopies should be the same width as the fascia or 

window.

7.3.15 Supports should not detract from the appearance of 

a shopfront.

7.4 Projected Signage

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

12/5/2019 5:34:03 PM 1 : 50

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Unnamed

(ZZ) 003-

S H O P

min 2.5m

min 450mm

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

12/12/2019 2:51:04 PM 1 : 50

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Unnamed

(ZZ) 004-

1 : 50

Ground Floor Plan Copy 3
1

min 2.3m

min 450mm

discreet blind box, flush 

with fascia

7.5 Canopies & Blinds

68

Example Shopfront Design Guide for Sale Moor

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

Fascia and Signage Proportions

A fascia is used to display the signage of the shop, creating a visible separation between the 
ground floor and upper floors. Traditionally the fascia would display the shop name and of-
ten the trade of the business in hand painted lettering. Given its prominence, the fascia has 
a considerable impact on the character and appearance of the building and streetscape.

The proportion of the fascia and signage in relation to the remaining shop front need to be 
carefully considered in order to achieve a balanced elevation. The depth of the fascia should 
be no more than a fifth of the shopfront height. Wherever possible, the original fascia di-
mensions should be used.

Some shopfronts occupy buildings that may not have originally been designed to function 
as a shop, in these cases a fascia may not be incorporated into the design. Therefore, sig-
nage of an appropriate scale may be applied directly to the window.

Projected Signage

Projected signage may interrupt the view 
down a street if not carefully considered. 
The size and colour of the sign should be 
in keeping with the traditional fascia.

Canopies and Blinds

The use of canopies and blinds should not de-
tract from the style of the shopfront and should 
be of an appropriate scale and colour. Shallower 
canopies are preferred, allowing more daylight 
into the building. The canopies should be made 
from canvas, avoiding shiny materials and plastic.

The size of the fascia must be in proportion to the 
rest of the shopfront and the whole building. Fas-
cias should be a maximum of one fifth the height 
of the shopfront.

The fascia should form an integral part of the 
overall design within the shopfront, rather than be 
a separate board superimposed without regard to 
the overall design

A fascia should not extend beyond the shop-
front surround, which is usually determined 
by the pilasters on each side. A fascia should 
not stretch uninterrupted across more than 
one building.

Fascias should not obscure the existing archi-
tectural elements. The top of a fascia should 
be positioned well below the sill of the first 
floor windows.

No more than one projecting sign per shop-
front.

Projected signs should be in line with the 
fascia panel, and not above first floor sill 
level.

Signs to co-ordinate with the proposed 
colour scheme and typeface of the overall 
shopfront design code.

Maximum size should be 600x400mm but a 
small sign is preferable.

Minimum clearance of the footpath should 
be 2.5m.

Minimum distance between the kerb edge 
and sign edge should be 450mm.

All canopies and blinds should clear the footpath by a 
minimum of 2.3m and there should be a minimum of 
450mm between the kerb edge and outermost edge 
of the canopy.

Roller blinds must be retracted into a discreet ‘blind 
box’ that is fitted flush with the fascia.

Canopies should be the same width as the fascia or 
window.

Supports should not detract from the appearance of a 
shopfront.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 74



65

7.8 Visualisation

View to Northenden Road

74

7.6 Colour

The proposed colour palette is bold, giving each shop a distinct 
character and bringing a strong sense of place to the area as a 
whole. Many of the shops currently have painted brickwork on 
upper levels, which would be replaced with bright colours in order 
to give an overall vibrancy to the streetscape. 

70

Shopfronts 

The current shopfronts to Northenden road are mix of quality, colour and size. 
Each shop has a varying degree of visibility with vinyl covering and advertising. 
Part of the character is the painted frontages, however at the moment there is too 
much disparity. All future strategies for the centre need to comply with the Traf-
ford-wide Design Guide which will shortly be published by the Council.

In this regard, we propose that the shopfronts will benefit from the following:

• Rationalisation of shopfronts, but with the option to colour within a certain 
palette

• Clear visibility into the shops and omission of Vinyls 
• Control of font and text height to the fronts 
• Awning positions common but variety of colour to match the connected front.
• Painting of the brickwork and signage to provide an identity.

Colour Palette

The proposed colour palette is 
bold, giving each shop a distinct 
character and bringing a strong 
sense of place to the area as a 
whole. Many of the shops cur-
rently have painted brickwork on 
upper levels, which would be re-
placed with bright colours in order 
to give an overall vibrancy to the 
streetscape.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 75



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 76



Action Plan

09

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 77



68

9. Action Plan

This Action Plan has been prepared by the project 
team in partnership with the Council and following 
the discussions with the local businesses and com-
munity

The Action Plan provides an indicative phasing strategy, how-
ever key actions and outcomes will need to be undertaken 
alongside and in response to the work of other partners, not 
least landowners where relevant.

Furthermore, it will be vital that the detail and direction of this 
Place Plan is brought forward through the Council’s emerging 
Local Plan to ensure that specific planning policies support 
the delivery of key projects but also the future success of Sale 
Moor as a village centre. As such, planning policy also needs to 
ensure that any potential schemes located outside of the vil-
lage centre are appropriately assessed in respect of the poten-
tial to jeopardise the future of the village centre.

The potential development of the Warrener Street car park 
should be strongly encouraged and should be seen as a key 
project for the Council and the wider stakeholders, demonstrat-
ing the potential of the area and to increase footfall into the 
village. The local authority should work closely with the land-
owners to bring forward complementary investment and devel-
opment.

The MCF pedestrian and cycle improvements through the 
village and the wider public realm improvements which will be 
associated and come forward alongside this, also needs to be 
progressed in the short term. 

Improving the gyratory system and wider overall safety of the 
village for pedestrians and cyclists (and the slowing down of 
traffic) should be a key and early objective, and all relevant 
stakeholders need to be supported from an early stage. 

Branding and promotion should also form part of the overall 
strategy, as should ongoing work with the local resident and 
business communities. The approach to branding will require 

some thought and will need to be developed and ‘owned’ by 
the key stakeholders if it is to be effective and sustained. 

Advancing a co-ordinated set of actions across the village cen-
tre will help business confidence and support investment and 
should be progressed with the widest range of partner partici-
pation.

Projects need to look at exploiting current programmes, grant 
funding and regeneration funds wherever programmes and 
funds allow.

Sale Moor Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 78



69

Project / Issue Actions Outcome/Objectives Key Delivery Partner
Estimated Times-
cales

Monitoring the health of the 
centre

Regular updated healthchecks to be 
undertaken in Sale Moor to monitor the 
diversity of uses and wider healthcheck 
indicators

• To monitor the health of the centre
• To establish the impact of Covid-19 on the centre
• To feed into future policy formation

Trafford Council
Nexus Planning
Stakeholders

Short /medium term

To promote the Place Plan 
through the emerging Trafford 
Local Plan

To develop detailed policies to support 
the delivery of the Visions and Objectives 
in the Local Plan

• To formulate detailed policies based on the preferred approaches for 
the village centre

• To support the future of the centre through formal adopted policy

Trafford Council
Nexus Planning
Stakeholders

Short / medium term

Warrener Street Car Park Devel-
opment Opportunity

To develop an updated masterplan for 
the site in order to attract potential de-
velopment partners

• The Council to commission a formal masterplan, developing on the 
vision as set out in this Village Place Plan, to include viability and fea-
sibility assessments

• To establish funding / delivery options for the site

Trafford Council
Stakeholders

Short / medium term

MCF pedestrian and cycling Pro-
posal within the village

TfGM, Amey and Trafford Council to 
work in consultation with local stake-
holders and particularly businesses to 
explore the options presented in this 
Village Place Plan.

• To undertake a formal consultation on the gyratory options to incor-
porate the MCF proposal

• To undertake wider highways modelling to explore the impacts on the 
surrounding highways network

• To develop a formal highways proposal to tie in with the objectives of 
the Place Plan and the MCF scheme.

TfGM
Trafford Council
Amey

Short / medium term

To enhance the public realm 
throughout the village

To develop a formal landscape strategy 
which builds on the objectives as set out 
in this Village Place Plan. These need to 
tie in with the wider MCF proposals

• To commission a formal landscape strategy for the village
• To explore the removal of the guardrail as part of the infrastructure 

improvements
• To enhance the village streets through the provision of new paving, 

lighting, street furniture and soft landscaping

Trafford Council
TfGM
Amey

Medium term

Develop and adopt a formal 
shopfront strategy

To work up a formal shopfront strategy 
building on the work undertaken to form 
this Village Place Plan

• To develop the shopfront strategy set out in this Village Place Plan 
• To encourage additional investment into the shopfronts in the village 

and establish potential funding streams

Trafford Council Short / medium term

Review the overall sustainability 
of Sale Moor

To engage with TfGM and to establish a 
community engagement and activation 
model for the village

• To engage with the residents, business and stakeholders to under-
stand current issues and barriers to sustainable transport

• To develop an interventions plan to tackle barriers and promote op-
portunities for sustainable travel (bike hire etc)

TfGM Short term

Promotion and branding Creating a branding and promotion 
strategy for the village

• To engage with the local stakeholders through a consultation exercise 
to develop a new brand for the village centre

• To establish new forms of social media/marketing for the village

Trafford Council
Local stakeholders

Short term

Signage / legibility strategy Improving information, directional and 
statutory signage in the village to make it 
as user friendly as possible

• Review of signage for village centre users in key locations to establish 
whether improvements can be achieved

• To instruct a formal signage strategy for the village centre

Trafford Council Short term

Sale Moor Action Plan

Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 79



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 80



Hale Village Place Plan
Final
September 2020

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 81



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 82



Content

1.   Introduction      6
2.  Hale Village      10
3.  Community Activity    16
4.  Baseline Analysis     24
5.  The Vision and Objectives   38
6.  Development Strategy    44
7.  Movement Strategy    60
8.  Shopfront Strategy    66
9.  Action Plan      74
      

     

Contents D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 83



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 84



Introduction

01

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 85



6

1.  Introduction

1.1 Introduction

Nexus Planning (‘Nexus’) was appointed by Trafford Council 
in 2019, working alongside technical consultants WSP, 
Gillespies and Buttress Architects, to prepare a Place Plan for 
Hale village centre.

Hale village centre is situated less than 1km to the south east 
of Altrincham town centre. It is located in Trafford Borough’s 
administrative area and is one of the designated district 
centres within the Council’s adopted Core Strategy.

The Hale Village Place Plan is intended to outline how the 
village can best serve its residents and businesses through 
the creation of a strategy that will provide clarity and 
confidence to attract future investment. The Place Plan will 
also identify a physical framework through which to prioritise 
interventions. This Place Plan will focus on identifiable and 
deliverable objectives for Hale through the establishment 
of a new vision for the village and realistic and achievable 
objectives.

We are in a period of uncertainty following the restricting 
of movement related to the COVID-19 pandemic which 
has substantially altered people’s way of life and impacted 
on the operation of retailers and service providers across 
the country. Hale is certainly no exception to this. Indeed, 
a number of operators have particular concerns about 
how COVID could impact on their operations and ongoing 
viability of businesses. Whilst the precise future of high 
streets are unclear, we are also experiencing some positives 
from the situation through the reduction in car movements, 
more sustainable working environments and patterns and 
significant improvements to our local environment.

1.2 What is a Village Place Plan?

The Place Plan is a working document that has been 
developed through a process of engagement with the local 
community. Indeed, the community is very much at the heart 
of this plan, and without their input, we would be unable to 
create a plan which really understands the needs and desires 
of those who live in and surrounding the village, and those 
who run and own businesses in the village. In this context, 
the plan sets out the key issues, concerns and priorities 
people wish to see addressed in order to improve the quality 
of life within the local area.

The Hale Village Place Plan includes actions needed to build 
upon the unique strengths and distinctive qualities the area 
has, whilst seeking to address the issues which need tackled. 
The focus of the Hale Village Place Plan is to:

1. Establish a clear Vision and development strategy for the 
area which is reflected in approaches to development 
management, design, investment, partnership working, 
transport and other matters; 

2. Provide confidence to partners in the prospects for Hale 
and to encourage further investment; 

3. Establish clear development and design principles to be 
used as a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications; 

4. Identify the focus for public sector investment and 
support in unlocking the potential of Hale; and 

5. Provide a focus for on-going stakeholder and public 
engagement in delivering the Vision for Hale.

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 86



7

1.3 The Need for the Place Plan

At the core of the Hale Village Place Plan is an aim to 
champion positive, lasting change in this unique, well-
established neighbourhood, as it continues through a period 
of transition. This will also assist with enabling Hale to 
continue to retain trade from both the local catchment and 
further afield. 

One key areas of change is associated with the approved 
relocation of the library to the site adjacent to the 
bowling green within Hale village. This will bring with it an 
opportunity to create a new community ‘hub’ for residents, 
and a space to enjoy the village from, through the creation 
of additional community space and an enhanced facility 
for Hale Bowling Club. This could also be the catalyst for 
regeneration that Hale desires.

Other schemes include the new Brown Street development, 
creating new affordable housing alongside town centre car 
parking; and the Crown Passages scheme which is creating 
new commercial floorspace in a key location within the 
village with adjacent car parking.

There can be no denying that the enhancement and 
improvement of Altrincham town centre, through the 
delivery of the Altrincham Market and wider public realm, 
retail and leisure improvements, has had an impact on Hale 
village both in terms of the types of operators who are now 
occupying units but also in terms of the footfall and volume 
of expenditure which is going through the tills. However, 
the village is still a popular destination and hosts a number 
of higher-end shops, restaurants and bars which are key to 
its success. However, it is evidenced through the baseline 
evidence which supports this plan and wider evidence base 
documents produced on behalf of the Council, that residents 
are choosing to visit Altrincham and other destinations to 
meet their retail and leisure needs, due to the choice of 
overall offer, the range of family suitable destinations and 
the qualitative differences the town centre offers. 

Looking more generally, the majority of us are spending 
more time on the internet, on computers, tablets, or 
smartphones. This has led to a scenario where the webpages 
or apps of retailers can be accessed instantly, products 

Hale Village Place Plan 

can be purchased and delivered on the same day they are 
ordered, and at a cheaper price than from a bricks-and-
mortar retailer. 

This shift in the role of the town centre needs to be 
recognised through planning policy to ensure that it is 
suitably flexible to allow this wider range of uses to come 
forward. There is no longer a place for restrictive policies that 
seek to prohibit any non-A1 retail use from coming forward. 
Indeed, there are some A1 retail uses that are better located 
outside of town centres.

1.4 Delivering the Village Place Plan

The Hale Village Place Plan sets out a Vision for how the 
local area can continue to improve and sustainably develop. 
Through community engagement a range of key actions and 
improvements have been identified to improve the overall 
physical, economic and social aspects of Hale and help 
address local needs. Agreeing priorities and developing a 
plan also provides opportunities for funding by providing a 
central point of reference for future investment throughout 
the area.

Whilst the plan also includes a range of actions, this 
document should not be treated as a final blueprint for 
development. Instead it should be viewed as a series of 
priorities and actions that will deliver significant benefits 
for the area. Each action will require to be developed to a 
greater level of detail, including any preparatory technical 
studies, consultation with stakeholders, and where necessary, 
the securement of planning and other statutory approvals.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 87



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 88



Hale Village

02

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 89



10

2. Hale Village

2.1 Hale’s Identity

Hale provides a balance between village and city life, with a 
flourishing village centre, bowling green and a wide selection 
of independent businesses, including shops, restaurants, 
bars, takeaways, cafes and hairdressing salons. Hale is an 
attractive and high quality residential suburb and district 
centre, with a notable strong sense of community. 

Hale takes pride in its wide range of community groups and 
stakeholders, all of which take an active role and interest 
in ensuring that the village centre is seeking to thrive and 
compete with neighbouring towns, whilst providing for its 
local catchment. Its identity is evident through the recent 
permission for the new Hale Library and community space, 
the delivery of which will be a substantial improvement to a 
key community facility within the village, and a positive sign 
to other investors that Hale is very much ‘open for business’.

2.2 History of Hale

Hale, including the land on which Hale Station now stands, 
has a very long history, being settled by the time of the 
Domesday Book in the 11th century.  The area remained 
predominantly rural and agricultural throughout both the 
earlier and later medieval periods, with Hale continuing to 
expand slowly, although without a nucleated settlement. This 
loose pattern of development created a number of smaller 
settlements, such as nearby Hale Barns. In this period, lands 
at Hale were part of the barony of Dunham-Massey, which 
was held by the Massey family from the Norman Conquest 
until the last Hamo de Massey died in the mid-fourteenth 
century.

The historic rural character of Hale was to change quickly 
with the construction of a railway station there in 1862 to 
serve the hamlet of Bowdon, and was part of the Cheshire 
Midland Railway line, which ran between Altrincham 
and Chester. This was the second major railway line to 
be established in the Trafford area, the first being the 
Manchester South Junction and Altrincham Railway. Between 
the 1860s and the 1910s, speculative developers saw an 
opportunity to build substantial middle-class residential 
dwellings to cater for those who worked in Manchester but 
had the resources to commute from more salubrious areas. 

Leafy avenues of detached and semi-detached suburban 
villas sprang up as the area developed rapidly along Ashley 
Road, first to the west and then to the east. Ashley Road 
itself continues to provide local amenity services such as 
public houses and shops. By the 20th century inter-war 
period, the area has been fully developed, with terrace, 
detached and semi-detached housing on new streets across 
the area.

Key Assets in the wider Hale Village

The Station

Hale grew rapidly from a rural non-nucelated hamlet (west of 

the station) into a thriving suburban extension of Manchester 
following construction of the railway line and station in the 
1860s. While the station is now called Hale Station, initially 
it was called Bowdon Peel Causeway Station serving the 
residents of Bowdon. 

Four parts of Hale Station are listed under the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. These 
are:
• Grade II Listed Hale Station West Platform Building, 

Canopy and Signal Box.
• Grade II listed Footbridge
• Grade II Listed Hale Station East Platform, Waiting Rooms 

and Canopy.

Hale Village Place Plan

Hale Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 90



11

View north along Ashley Road circa 1950, source: Trafford Lifetimes

The same view in 2019

Hale Bowling Green and Ashley Road circa 1950, source: Trafford 
Lifetimes

The same view in 2019

• Grade II Listed Station Masters House

The Millennium Clock Tower

The Millennium Clock Tower is situated on a triangular traffic 
island directly in front of the station buildings on Ashley 
Road. The Millennium Clock Tower replaces an earlier 19th 
century clock, seen in historic photographs. It is a significant 
landmark when travelling in either direction along Ashley 
Road. The location of the clock tower at the heart of the 
settlement is reinforced by the presence of an historic 
drinking fountain, dated 1908, and the formal floral planting 
scheme.

Ollerbarrow House Grade II Listed

Ollerbarrow House was built around 1740 as part of the 
larger hall estate and is of traditional farmhouse style. It 
retains many of its original features including casement 
and leaded windows, exposed beams and small gardens 
to front and side. As the area became built-up, the original 
farmhouse was used as the police station and later by the 
Royal Voluntary Service (RVS). It is now used as offices. 

Ashley Road Bowling Green

Plans for the Bowling Green were approved in 1920, with 
construction finishing before 1921. The Green is coming up 
to its official centennial birthday in 30th April 2021. 

The Hale Bowling Green Pavilion and the “Cottage Cuppa 
Club” was opened in 6th September 1973. 

The Bowling Green is presently occupied by Hale Village 
Bowling Club, which was formed in January 2018 after the 
amalgamation of Hale Bowling Club with Hale Veterans’ 
Bowling Club. Hale Veterans Bowling Club is thought to have 
been first established in 1964, whilst Hale Bowling Club is 
understood to have been established in 1952.

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 91



12

2.3 Transport

Hale Railway Station is located within the district centre. 
This station, located on the Manchester-Chester train 
line, provides hourly services to Manchester Piccadilly via 
Stockport and Chester. These services run throughout the 
day Monday-Saturday, with a reduced service on a Sunday. 

Additionally there are a number bus services that run along 
Ashley Road and through the district centre. These provide 
a frequent service with at least two services per hour at 
peak times and provide direct connections to destinations 
including Altrincham, Timperley, Hale Barns and Warburton 
Green. Hale is therefore well served by a number of public 
transport connections, including providing for safe bus stops 
for local school buses.

The dominance of on-street parking may deter cyclists due 
to concerns over safety, but cyclists are often seen using 
Ashley Road and surrounding roads as part of a wider route.

There are three Sheffield stands with capacity for six bicycles 
on Ashley Road. Hale train station provides eight hoops with 
capacity to store eight bicycles  while Victoria Road car park 
has three Sheffield stands. 

There are two public car parks with Park Mark accreditation 
in Hale, which are:

• Cecil Road East; and
• Victoria Road.

Charges apply on both car parks from Monday to Saturday 
between 8am and 6pm (including Bank Holidays). The 
charges range from 50p for the first 30 minutes, up to £5 for 
over five hours. Car parking charges are reviewed annually 
by the Council and Councillors and any recommended 
changes are implemented from 1st April each year. Hale 
has a longer demand for parking than other areas as the 
evening economy and Sunday economy is higher than most. 
This along with the demand for kerb space from residential 
properties has seen the increased need for permit parking 
with limited time parking for shoppers.

Parking is also available adjacent to the library and adjacent 

to the railway station. Furthermore, once the development 
on Brown Street is completed, public car parking will also be 
reinstated there.

A high proportion of the visits to Hale are from people living 
close by which would warrant increased cycle facilities to try 
to reduce traffic use by car. Unlike other areas, driving to 
Hale seems to be in higher demand as the value of individual 
cars in this area is significant and is seen as a cultural way to 
access the village facilities.

2.4 Wider Greater Manchester Sustainable  
Goals

In January 2020 the ‘Change a region to change a nation’ 
report was published by the GMCA. The report found that 
congestion costs Greater Manchester £1.3 billion annually, 
and poor air quality contributes to around 1,200 premature 
deaths annually across the region. These facts, coupled 
with strong public support for increased cycling and 
pedestrian infrastructure, have driven Greater Manchester 
to set ambitious targets in its 2040 Transport Strategy to 
increase the amount of sustainable journeys by 50%. This sits 
alongside an ambition for Manchester to be carbon neutral 
by 2038.

To achieve this TfGM wants to:

• Make walking and cycling the natural choice for short 
journeys.

• Ensure that new developments support sustainable 
transport, and that our town centres are attractive and 
well connected.

• Transform public transport capacity and active travel in 
the Regional Centre.

• Offer good alternatives to the car for travel across the 
city-region.

• Enable good orbital connections between town centres.
• Maximise the efficiency and reliability of our existing 

transport networks.
• Move and manage freight in the most sustainable and 

efficient ways.
• Research and harness future technology, innovations and 

digital connectivity

Accessibility of Hale Village Centre

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 92



13
Hale Village Place Plan 

The need to increase pedestrian and cyclist movement in 
the centres is therefore well established and is a key aim 
for policy makers over the coming years, and was true even 
before the impacts of Covid-19 and the social distancing 
required for safe movement.  Indeed, since lockdown 
measures were announced in March 2020, vehicular 
movements have decreased by about 60% with increases 
in cycling up 42% and walking and cycling accounting 
for approximately 33% of all travel. In summary, there 
is a pressing need to increase pedestrian and cycling 
infrastructure, particularly in our centres.

To facilitate and deliver safer movement, TfGM has 
announced the #SafeStreetsSaveLives campaign. Through 
the provision of £5million of emergency funding made 
available to Greater Manchester’s local authorities, measures 
will be implemented to give people more space and to make 
them safer when travelling. Examples may include closing 
streets to motor traffic, widening pavements, decluttering 
street furniture and traffic calming measures on residential 
streets. Indeed, as of May 2020 temporary social distancing 
measures have been introduced on six roads throughout 
Trafford to to enable socially-distanced cycling and walking. 

Future Transport Interventions 

In January 2019, TfGM announced plans for a potential 
tram-train extension from Altrincham to Hale after 2025. At 
present, these plans lack funding, however the TfGM Delivery 
Plan 2020-2025 states that TfGM in partnership with the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and the 
Greater Manchester Local Enterprise Partnership (GM LEP) 
will aim to complete a business case for the early delivery 
of a Tram-train ‘Pathfinder’ trial project between Altrincham 
and Hale in the next 5 years. 

Tram-trains are vehicles that can travel on both street 
tramway and all-purpose railway lines, as in many parts of 
Europe and offers the potential to deliver metro services 
to more areas without building new rail lines. A tram-train 
approach can help to improve access to the core of the 
city centre at peak and off-peak times, releasing valuable 
capacity on the heavy rail network and increase accessibility 
to public transport in an aim to improve air quality and 
protect the environment.

2.5 Changes in the Way We Work

The immediate and direct implications of the outbreak have 
been two-fold, both resulting in reduced demand in the short 
term. Firstly, the necessary social distancing measures impact 
customer access and interactions within stores, restaurants and 
other high street facilities. 

Additionally, and more significantly in the long-term, the 
reduction of an office based-workforce across larger centres 
has led to a stark reduction in demand for high street amenities 
from workers. On the other hand, this has led to increased 
‘hyperlocalism’, as home workers frequent local high streets 
instead of facilities focussed around a commute -  a direct 
benefit for the centres such as Hale.

Alongside this we can also point to an increase in community 
cohesion and partnerships amongst high street occupiers, as 
well as between high streets and local residents. 

In a number of cases, high street operators have adapted to 
the COVID-19 outbreak by pivoting to an online model (which 
will likely remain as an additional revenue stream for a number 
of businesses in the future) and increased communication of 
opening hours and operating procedures. 

This has led to new level of customer interaction for some high 
street occupiers, while others have understandably reduced 
communication whilst focussing on other priorities during the 
outbreak. Many businesses are also diversifying their offer and 
adding, often informal, home delivery services.

There is a need for flexibility in centres, which needs to be 
adaptable to a number of uses to address a wide range of 
future needs. This is ever important following the COVID-19 
pandemic and as we witness the ‘recovery’ within Hale. 

Indeed, vital and viable centres need a varied mix of uses 
and there is also an identified need to concentrate multi-
functional public services in town centre locations to realise 
agglomeration benefits.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 93



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 94



Community Activity

03

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 95



16

3. Community Activity

3.1 The Need for Partnership

There are a diverse range of public and private sector bodies 
which have a stake in the future of Hale village centre. A co-
ordinated and comprehensive approach to the improvement 
of the village centre can only be achieved by a strong town 
centre partnership approach - led by Trafford Council, 
working together with private landowners, local businesses, 
service providers, developers and all other stakeholders.

Crucially we need to grow and develop these partnerships 
effectively if we are to successfully collaborate on 
implementing the Place Plan.

Hale has a number of community groups who are very 
active and successful in assisting to promote the offer and 
in protecting the village from any future decline. Within 
Hale, two key charity community groups are very involved in 
promoting and protecting the vilage centre and wider area. 

Hale Community Trust is a registered charity, the main 
objective of which is to make Hale an even better place to 
live by undertaking well defined projects. Hale Community 
Trust has been the driver of achieving the planning 
permission for the new library and community centre.

Hale Civic Society is also a registered charity which is very 
active in the local community. The Civic Society helps to 
protect and preserve the village and organises a number of 
community activities in the village throughout the year.

3.2 Community Consultation and 
Engagement Process

Community engagement is integral to the entire process 
of creating a Place Plan and has been undertaken from the 
outset, through to completion. 

This has been completed in four stages throughout the 
production of the Place Plan from June through to March 
2020.

Stage 1 involved a baseline analysis and initial engagement. 
To reach out to the community to gain an initial insight into 
the issues that this Place Plan needs to address, business 

and community surveys were undertaken between June and 
September 2019. This comprised of consultations with a 
range of stakeholders including, but not limited to:

• Local Businesses and Traders of Hale Village Centre
• Local Councillors and Members 
• Local Groups & Service Providers
• Property owners (freehold and leaseholders if known)
• Local Schools & Churches
• Residents and wider community
• Trafford Council 

This stage concluded with a Members Update in October 
2019 to ascertain the direction of the document, feedback 
and the key considerations for the Hale Village Place Plan.

Stage 2 involved the production of a draft Village Plan, and 
engagement with relevant stakeholders on this draft plan 
through workshops and meetings at the Library.  This was 
undertaken between October and December 2019.

Stage 3 of the community engagement process took 
place in January 2020. This period of public engagement 
will comprised of public consultation over two weeks, 
focussed on an exhibition half-day that centred around the 
presentation of the draft Village Plan. After this, the feedback 
provided was analysed and considered in detail in order to 
create the final Village Plan.

Stage 4 - the final Village Plan will be under executive review 
in September 2020

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 96



17 Hale Village Place Plan 

3.3 Summary of Consultation

As part of the initial stages of the consultation process, local 
community and business surveys were distributed within the 
village centre. The consultation period ran from 8th August 
to 20th September 2019 and the surveys were publicised 
via online sources, the Council’s website and social media 
accounts, circulation by local community groups and 
organisations and through hand-delivery within the village 
itself including paper copies and a deposit point at Hale 
Library.

In total, 516 community and business surveys were 
completed.

The following pages provide a summary of the findings of 
the surveys, and set out the key messages. 

Article on Place North West

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 97



18

Community and Business Consultations

Hale Village Place Plan

3.4 Findings of the Community Survey

The following is a summary of the key findings of the Local Community Survey:

• When asked how often respondents visit the centre, a total of 45% of the respondents an-
swered that they visit daily, with 39% of people responding that they visit more than once a 
week. 9% answered that they visit once a week, and 5% replied that they visit once every 2 
to 3 weeks. The high proportion of respondents stating they visit daily or more than once a 
week evidences the level of repeat-trade in Hale throughout the week.

• When asked how respondents travel to the village, a total of 60% of people responded that 
they walk to the village and 59% of respondents answered that they would drive to the vil-
lage. In terms of sustainable transport, 7% answered that they cycle to the village and only a 
small amount of people, 3%, said they got there via public transport.

• When asked where they typically park, there were numerous answers, but the top two were 
the general answer of ‘car park’ (18%), followed by ‘on street’ (10%) and ‘on road’ (8%).

• When asked what the main reason for the respondent’s last visit to the village, the majority of 
respondents - 65% - answered to buy food and grocery items (not take-away etc), with 32% 
stating eating out/ drinking.

• When asked what respondents key dislikes of the village are, the following answers were pro-
vided:

58% disliked the parking situation (cost and/or amount);
44% disliked the amount of road congestion;
26% disliked the lack choice of shops; and 
22% disliked the insufficient or poor quality green space and absence of play areas.

• When asked what could be done to improve Hale Village, respondents stated:

41% stated more and cheaper parking;
48% stated more independent retailers;
20% stated more outdoor space and better street furniture and floral displays; and,
18% stated cleaner streets and removal of litter.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 98



19

HALE VILLAGE PLACE PLAN 
ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY -
BASELINE ANALYSIS (Nov 2019)

LIKES

• Proximity to home
• The range of places to eat and 

drink
• The selection of independents
• Quality of the shops and offer
• General cleanliness
• The village isn’t too busy
• The overall parking options
• Community facilities - the library 

and bowling green

• Everything!

DISLIKES

• The cost and/or amount of 
parking

• Road congestion

• Lack of choice of shops

• Poor quality greenspace

• Lack of secure/clean toilets

• Run down appearance of shops

• Dirty shopping streets/litter

• Safety and ease of accessibility by 
bike

IMPROVEMENTS

• More independent retailers

• More parking

• Cheaper parking 

• Better street furniture

• More outdoor spaces

• More family orientated facilities

• Cleaner Streets

• Control on anti-social behaviour

• Increasing the opportunities to 
travel safely to Hale by bike

WHAT YOU TOLD US:

HOW DID WE ENGAGE?

Website Links & Trafford 
Council website

Social Media - Facebook and 
Twitter

Questionnaire available 
online and in paper format in 
Hale Library

516

Stakeholder Assistance - 
Questionnaires delivered to 
businesses

Meetings with Ward 
Members and Stakeholders

Total number of responses 
received

Consultation period ran from 
8th August to 20th September

NEXT STEPS

The Project Team will continue to engage with the local community and businesses whilst 

preparing the Draft Hale Village Place Plan. You will have further opportunities to comment on 

the Plan as we move through the process, towards the end of 2019 / beginning of 2020.

HEATHER LINDLEY-CLAPP

T: 0161 819 6570

E: halevillage@nexusplanning.co.uk

Strengths
• Good provision of independent operators, 

some of which have been in the village for 
a number of years

• Good community feel and local walk-in 
catchment

• Good public transport links
• Options for parking
• Good local schools, some of which are 

within walking distance of the centre
• High quality operators 
• Attractive appearance within the centre, 

with some key heritage assets
• Engaged local councillors and other 

stakeholder groups
• The proposed new library and community 

centre.

Weaknesses
• Availability of parking right in the centre of 

the village is seen as a weakness to some 
residents

• Permit parking was introduced to counter 
all day parking by businesses. It was felt 
that permit parking should be reviewed.

• It is felt there should be a review of traffic 
including cars and delivery vehicles as 
well as the availability of trains, buses and 
trams. There should be more services for 
people to travel to and from Hale on public 
transport.  

• Recent closure of one of the principal 
public houses in the village.

• Lack of sustainable transport modes 
(cycling in particular)

Opportunities
• Preserve the current parking offer
• To improve the public realm within the 

centre and provide new greenspaces or 
areas within which a market and other 
events can take place

• New businesses, including SMEs, should 
be encouraged into Hale. The consultation 
should identify which type of shops are 
missing and those that could have a viable 
future in the village.

• The centre has a good balance of shops 
and businesses, avoiding too many of any 
one type e.g. barbers and estate agents.

• Opportunity for assisted living/retirement 
housing

• Opportunity to redevelop the Ashley Hotel 
site for affordable and retirement housing

• Potential for well-maintained areas around 
the bowling green, plus canopy trees, 
flower beds and children’s play areas.  
Health and fitness facilities should also 
be encouraged within the newly planned 
Community Centre.

• Opportunities to harness solar energy in 
new schemes.

• Review the surrounding highways network 
to improve traffic flow

Threats
• Competition from larger centres such as 

Sale and Altrincham – businesses have 
seen a marked reduction in turnover and 
a high rate of ‘churn’ in businesses in the 
village

• High business rates making it difficult for 
new businesses to survive

• Limited space for dedicated cycle routes 
given the need to retain on-street car 
parking.

• Car parking issues – limited residential 
parking and shoppers tend to park on 
surrounding streets rather than pay for 
parking

• Brexit and the implications on smaller 
centres

• Existing operators need to be protected 
(Post Office, density, chemists, pubs and 
so forth)

• There are concerns over the external 
design and current usage of the Ashley 
Hotel, which, if the Council and the owner 
were prepared to work together, could be 
converted into affordable housing.  

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 99



20

Accessibility of Hale Village

3.5 Consultation on the Draft Plan

The Draft Hale Moor Village Place Plan was published for 
consultation at the end of 2019, and a public consultation 
event was held in Hale Village Centre.

The purpose of the event was to present the initial proposals 
and ask the community’s views on the overarching Vision 
and Objectives and Options for improvements to the centre. 

The event was very well attended by the local community 
and local business owners and we gathered a range 
of constructive and very invaluable feedback from the 
attendees.

The feedback from the event and the online questionnaire 
has been fully analysed as part of the formalisation of the 
final Hale Village Place Plan.

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 100



21

Overview of Consultation Findings

Summary of Key     
Responses

The level of on-street park-
ing needs to be retained and 
consideration to those resi-
dents who live in the village 
and their parking require-
ments need to be taken ac-
count of. Furthermore, the 
parking capacity of existing 
off-street car parking also 
needs to be fully appreciated 
and the potential to increase 
capacity at Crown Passages 
should be explored.

Further consideration is re-
quired in respect of how cy-
clists can safely move through 
the village. People need to 
be given some priority in the 
village centre.

Further work is required to 
address the public realm and 
overall aesthetics outside of 
Hale Railway Station to make 
the most of this asset in the 
village centre.

Local businesses will be sup-
ported through increased 
footfall and an encourage-
ment to increase the dwell-
time in the village. The offer 
of the centre needs to meet 
the entire catchment’s needs, 
and somewhere everyone can 
relax.

Hale’s aesthetics can be im-
proved. More can be done 
to improve social inclusion, 
health, the environment and 
increase business potential.

Hale needs to retain its herit-
age and character and ensure 
that its own identity shines 
through the Place Plan. The Bowling Green is a key 

centre-piece for Hale and 
should be protected moving 
forward. Plans to enhance this 
area are supported, as long as 
anti-social behaviour is con-
trolled.

It is good that this piece of 
work is being done, recog-
nising that particularly with 
Altrincham’s regeneration that 
something needed to be done 
to sustain Hale’s community 
and business space into the 
future. 

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 101



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 102



Baseline Analysis

04

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 103



24

4. Baseline Analysis

4.1 Setting the Scene

A key part of the formulation of the Village Place Plan is the 
undertaking of a range of baseline analysis.

The baseline analysis for the purpose of the Place Plan has 
been to:

• Undertake an updated healthcheck of the centre, using 
our understanding and previous work in analysing the 
centre as part of the Trafford Retail and Leisure Study 
2019. The healthcheck analysis follows the guidance as 
set out in the Town Centres and Retail Planning Practice 
Guidance, which provides a series of indicators to be used 
in assessing the vitality and viability of the centre.

• Reviewing the demographics of the Hale Central Ward 
(and surrounding wards) to better understand the needs 
and requirements of the local catchment.

• Undertake a more detailed review of shopping and leisure 
patterns of those who live in and surrounding Hale using 
the detailed breakdown of trips from the Trafford Retail 
and Leisure Study 2019.

• Review the existing and emerging planning policies of 
relevance to the village centre, and understand where and 
how this Plan will assist the Council in formulating new 
policies in the new development plan.

• Review the existing accessibility and movement 
throughout the centre as part of the wider movement 
strategy for the Plan.

• Review the existing streetscape and urban design 
concepts within the village, to feed into the associated 
strategy.

• Review the existing public realm and landscaping aspects 
of the centre and better understand how these may be 
moulded and improved within the centre as part of the 
Plan.

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 104



25

4.2	 Community	Profile	–	Demographics

Hale Village is located within the ward of Hale Central. Hale 
Central has a population of just under 11,000 residents and 
is located in the south of Trafford Borough. Hale Central’s 
population has increased by more than 15% since 2007 and 
the ward performs highly in a statistical sense giving Hale the 
title of 5th least deprived ward in Trafford. 

Key demographic facts from Trafford ward profiling:

• 1.6% of Hale Central’s residents travel to work by bicycle.
• 8.8% of Hale Central is covered by Green Space
• Hale Central has the highest percentage in the borough 

of residents with degrees (over 57%)
• Between 2017 and 2018, residents had an 10.5% chance 

of being involved in an incident of antisocial behaviour
• Hale Central has an old-age dependency ratio of 23.8% of 

the working population. This is amongst the lower half of 
the Trafford wards.

• Hale Central has a relatively low Index of Multiple 
Deprivation of 7, which is the lower quarter of Trafford’s 
wards.

• More than 34% of employed residents in Hale Central 
are occupied as professionals, 20% as Managers and 
Senior Officials, and 16% are Associate Professional 
and Technical Employees. This is higher than both the 
Trafford and England and Wales averages for these three 
occupations.

Claimant Rate in Trafford
Source: Trafford JSNA

Total Population in Hale Central

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 105



26

4.3 Retail Study Summary

The Trafford Retail and Leisure Study (2019) establishes the 
current position in respect of the need for additional retail 
and leisure facilities in Trafford Borough, and considers the 
vitality and viability of the Council’s principal centres. 

The Retail Study included a review of the district centre 
of Hale. Overall there are 110 units located within Hale 
district centre. These account for 15,624 sq.m of commercial 
floorspace. The centre is located approximately 700 metres 
to the south of Altrincham town centre, but has historically 
been able to cultivate a distinct retail offer. With regard to 
retail and leisure, the study finds that the centre is a popular 
destination with a number of high-end and independent 
retailers, and with a good level of provision of the immediate 
residential community which includes a range of leisure 
services and comparison goods operators. Although 
the centre is focussed around leisure service uses, the 
convenience and comparison offer is considered appropriate 
to serve the needs of the local community. Overall, Hale is 
considered to be a healthy district centre by the Retail and 
Leisure Study.

Key findings in respect of shopping and leisure patterns 
within Hale are as follows:

Retail Patterns

• Residents of Hale choose between a variety of 
convenience destinations to meet their main food 
shopping needs, including Sainsbury’s and Tesco in 
Altrincham and the Booths at Hale Barns. There is a clear 
dominance of the large foodstores in respect of meeting 
residents’ main food shopping needs. 

• In terms of top-up convenience shopping, a wider 
range of destinations are cited as being the preferred 
choice, including a number of the retailers within Hale 
itself including the Marks and Spencer Simply Food, the 
Tesco Express and the Sainsbury’s Local. However, the 
majority of the population from each of the postcode 
sectors surrounding Hale still choose alternative larger 
destinations to meet their top-up shopping needs, 
including the Tesco and Sainsbury’s in Altrincham, 
the Booths in Hale Barns, the Co-op in Bowden and 

Altrincham Market.
• Turning to comparison shopping, the principal 

destinations include Altrcinham town centre, Manchester 
city centre and the Trafford Centre. Altrincham Retail 
Park also features as a key comparison destination for 
residents. 

Leisure Patterns

• Altrincham town centre is cited as being the principal 
destination for restaurants and pubs and bars for 
residents in and surrounding Hale. This demonstrates the 
dominance of Altrincham town centre as the preferred 
destination for visiting a restaurant or pub/bar, despite 
the offer in Hale.

4.4 Planning Policy 

The adopted Planning Policy for Trafford comprises 
the Trafford Core Strategy (CS) (January 2012), and 
relevant Saved Policies from the Revised Trafford Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) (June 2006). 

Adopted Core Strategy

In line with the NPPF’s requirement for a settlement 
hierarchy, Hale is designated in the Trafford Local Plan (Core 
Strategy 2012) as a District Centre.

Within the district centre of Hale, Policy W2 of the Core 
Strategy (2012) prioritises sustainable urban design with 
a particular emphasis on encouraging a mix of uses 
appropriate to the centre, active frontages and high quality 
in the design and finish of the public realm. Impacts upon 
the function, character, vitality and viability of the centre 
as a whole and on specific frontages, particularly within 
primary shopping frontages should be considered. Where 
appropriate, new development within town centres should 
include a variety of unit sizes in order to encourage diversity 
in the retail offer and make appropriate provision for the 
preservation of prominent, historic buildings.

In addition to the above, the following policies are also of 
relevance:

• Policy L4 – ‘Transport and Accessibility’. The Council will 
seek to support the modernisation and improvement of 
the existing highways and public transport in order to get 
the best use out of infrastructure already in place, promote 
integrated transport linkages, and improve accessibility, 
especially within disadvantaged neighbourhoods. 

• Policy L7 – ‘Design and Landscaping’. Trafford Council 
requires development to achieve a high quality of design 
by taking into account matters of functionality, protecting 
amenity, security and accessibility.

• Policy R3 – ‘Green Infrastructure’ states that the Council will 
work to develop an integrated network of high quality, multi-
functional green infrastructure to diversify the local economy, 
enhance facilities, improve health and wellbeing, and enhance 
cross-boundary connectivity. 

• Policy R1 – ‘Historic Environment’ states that all new 
development must take account of surrounding building 
styles, landscapes and historic distinctiveness and that 
developers must demonstrate how the development will 

Northwich

Sale

Salford

Knutsford

Altrincham

Lymm

Leigh

Walkden

Chelford

Goostrey

Culcheth

Chorlton

Glazebury

Mobberley

Higher Folds

Old Trafford

Higher Wincham

M56

M6

M60

M56

M62

M61

M56

M6

M61

M602

M61

M60

M56

A57(M)

A580

A34

A5103

A56

A537

A6

A50

A556

A5034

A57

A6042

A5063

A575

A559

A537

A56

A556

A580

A6

A34

A556

A556

A6

A50

A559

A56

A574

A6144

A538

A572

A5145

A535

A57

A577

A6010

A666

A576

A530

A560

A579

A5066

A575

A5181

A6044

A533

A5144

A5185

A5186

A5081

A578

A5509

A577

A560

A6144

A538

A57

A50

A50

A572

A576

A56

A56

A538

N.B. Study Area Zone definitions
adapted from the 'Trafford Retail
and Leisure Study' (2007)

Trafford Council
Retail and Lesiure Study Catchment Area

0 5 102.5 Miles

Legend
Zone A | Southern (Altrincham)

Zone B | Partington & Urmston

Zone C | Eastern (Sale)

Zone D | Northern (Stretford)

Zone E | Chorlton & Hulme

Zone F | Baguley

Zone G | Eccles & Salford

Zone H | Lymm

Zone I | Knutsford

Zone A

Zone E

Zone I

Zone H

Zone G

Zone F

Zone D

Zone C

Zone B

Hale Village Place Plan

Study Area taken from the Trafford Retail and Leisure Study 2019

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 106



27
Hale Village Place Plan 

complement and enhance the existing features of historic 
significance including their wider settings, in particular in 
relation to conservation areas, listed buildings and other 
identified heritage assets.

The NPPF (2019)

Planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise (Paragraph 2). 

Local planning authorities should approach decisions on 
proposed development in a positive and creative way. 
They should use the full range of planning tools available, 
including brownfield registers and permission in principle, 
and work proactively with applicants to secure developments 
that will improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area. 

Conservation Area

Hale Conservation Area

The extended Hale Station Conservation Area was adopted 
by the Council in July 2016, following its original designation 
by the Council on 14th August 1986. Conservation area 
designation recognises the unique quality of an area 
as a whole. It is not just the contribution of individual 
buildings and monuments, but also that of features such 
as topography, layout of roads, pathways, street furniture, 
open spaces, and hard and soft landscaping which assist 
in defining the character and appearance of an area. 
Conservation areas identify the familiar and cherished 
local scene that creates a sense of place, community, 
distinctiveness and environment. Few buildings remain from 
before the coming of the railway line; those that survive 
include the Station Master’s House (originally a farmhouse) 
and Ollerbarrow farm to the east of Ashley Road. 

The Conservation Area Appraisal also acknowledges that the 
eclectic mix of signage relating to independent retailers, is a 
defining characteristic of the area; however, some is intrusive 
and inappropriate, although the upper floors have often 
survived relatively unchanged from their original design.

The Appraisal also states that the key landmarks within 
the Conservation Area are the listed buildings associated 
with Hale Station. Views west and east along Ashley Road 
and when crossing the railway line are significant. Other 
key buildings include the Cheshire Midland Hotel, the 
Millennium Clock Tower, the Bowling Green, the bank and 
restaurant on the corner of Ashley Road east of the station 
and the development on the corner of Victoria Road and 
Bloomfield Road.

South Hale Conservation Area

The South Hale Conservation Area adjoins the Station 
Conservation Area to the south east on Ashely Road. 
The South Hale Conservation Area was adopted by the 
Council in March 2017. The existing South Hale Conservation 
Area is irregular in plan, stretching from Hale Road in the 
north to Carrwood in the South. It is largely residential 
in character but includes a number of larger detached 
community buildings; St Peter’s Church, St Peter’s Assembly 
Rooms, The First United Reform Church, The Trinity Hale 
United Reform Church and the Hale Conservative Club. The 
Hale Cemetery on Hale Road and the Assembly Rooms on 
Cecil Road are also included.

Planning Policy Summary

The Government is placing great emphasis on the 
revitalisation of high streets and the need to diversify the 
offer so as to encourage additional users to defined centres, 
particularly when smaller centres are competing with larger, 
stronger centres with a greater choice and offer. It will be 
important that the delivery and detail of this Place Plan 
forms a part of the emerging Local Plan, to remphasise 
the importance of the vision and objectives for Hale but to 
ensure that the aspirations are protected to help support the 
future of the village.

There is also an acknowledgement that centres need to 
move away from a principally retail focus to centres which 
provide a greater mix of leisure and community uses which 
encourage longer dwell-times and a greater propensity for 
linked-trips.

Changes to Permitted Development Rights and Use 
Class Order

In summer 2020, the Government announced a series 
of changes to Permitted Development Rights and the 
Use Classes Order. These changes came into effect from 
September 2020 and seek to “deliver much-needed new 
homes and revitalise town centres’. 

In effect, these changes are intended to allow for greater 
flexibility when changing uses within town centres. However, 
as these changes are to be introduced without a spatial 
dimension, they will also make it easier to change uses in out 
of centre locations, such as business parks. As such careful 
consideration will be needed in planning for the future of 
town centres in the context of these changes.

The amendment will introduce three new use classes, Classes 
E, F1 and F2:

• Use Class E – commercial, business and service
• Use Class F1 – learning and non-residential institutions
• Use Class F2 – local community
• Sui Generis – use within this Class now include Public 

house, wine bar or drinking establishment; a drinking 
establishment with expanded food provision; as a 
hot food takeaway for the sale of hot food where 
consumption of that food is mostly undertaken off the 
premises; live music venue; cinema; concert hall; bingo 
hall or dance hall.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 107



28

Strengths
• Hale is a diverse, well-used centre with a number of high-end leisure 

and retail uses. 
• Additionally the centre provides a range of services considered 

suitable to serve the needs of the surrounding residential areas.
• The overall aesthetics are good, and the environmental quality is 

considered to be high, particularly when compared to other district 
centres in the Borough.

• The centre benefits from a good walk-in catchment

Weaknesses
• The centre is dominated by services which reduce the amount of 

comparison (and to some extent convenience) floorspace. This 
is accentuated by the centre’s small, period buildings which limit 
potential for large format retailers.

• Motor traffic dominates the centre, with limited space available for 
outdoor seating. The dominance of on-street parking reduces available 
space

• The leisure offer is dominated by higher-end services which do not 
meet family requirements

• Lack of quality walking and cycling facilities

Opportunities
• Vacancies provide an opportunity to diversify the service, leisure and/

or convenience and comparison goods offer. 
• Hale is an extremely attractive centre aesthetically and therefore will 

appeal to a range of prospective tenants.
• There is an opportunity to diversify some key sites within the centre, 

subject to the buy-in from private landowners, particularly the Ashley 
Hotel site.

• Opportunities to build on the exciting new library plans.
• There are opportunities to enhance the option for informal community 

events through the re-purposing of key areas of the village.
• Improve the overall offer of the village and the wider uses

Threats
• The vacancy rate is skewed by a number of large, vacant former 

restaurant units (such as the former Carluccio’s), however long term 
uses should be secured to ensure the vitality of the centre. 

• Hale’s proximity to Altrincham means that its retail and leisure offer 
competes for part of the same market.

• There is a perception of a lack of car parking and high prices, which 
could hinder people from visiting the centre

• Limited development potential within the village means that new 
schemes with modern commercial floorspace are not expected in the 
short to medium term.

Flo
o

r sp
ace 

at 2019 
(sq

.m
)

Flo
o

r sp
ace 

at 2019 (%
)

Traffo
rd

 
D

istrict 
C

en
tre 

Flo
o

rsp
ace 

at 2018 (%
)

N
u

m
b

er 
o

f u
n

its at 
2019

U
n

its at 
2019 (%

)

Traffo
rd

 
D

istrict 
C

en
tre U

n
its 

at 2018 (%
)

Convenience 2,479 sq.m 16.2% 21.4% 8 7.3% 12.6%

Comparison 2,372 sq.m 15.5% 15.7% 24 22.0% 21.3%

Retail Services 1,919 sq.m 12.5% 14.8% 21 19.3% 21.8%

Leisure Services 4,811 sq.m 31.5% 30.1% 26 23.9% 27.2%

Financial and 
Business Services

1,864 sq.m 12.2% 9.5% 17 15.6% 9.6%

Miscellaneous 0 sq.m 0.0% 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0%

Vacant 1,864 sq.m 12.1% 8.6% 13 11.9% 7.5%

Total 15,291 sq.m 109

Healthcheck of Hale Village Centre

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 108



29

4.5 Hale Healthcheck, July 2019

It is important to note that the healthcheck was undertaken 
pre-COVID and as we are not yet certain of the direct 
implications of the pandemic on the high street, the overall 
conclusions may alter in the coming months. An update 
to the healthcheck over the next 6-12 months would be 
useful to establish whether there have been any substantial 
changes to the viability of the centre post-COVID. 

Convenience and comparison uses account for 31.7% of 
floor space and 29.3% of all units within Hale village. The 
figure for convenience floorspace (16.2%) is similar to 
the current UK national average, whereas the figure for 
comparison floorspace (15.0%) is significantly less. Despite 
this, the retail provision in Hale is considered to be broadly 
sufficient to serve the day-to-day needs of the community 
particularly when compared to other district centres in the 
Borough. There are eight convenience operators in Hale 
which account for 2,479 sq.m of commercial floorspace. 
Convenience operators include Sainsbury’s Local, Tesco 
Express, M&S Foodhall, newsagents, a butchers, a bakery 
and an off-licence. Comparison goods operators account for 
2,372 sq.m of floorspace. There are 24 comparison operators 
which include jewellers, pharmacists, art galleries, shoe shops 
and clothes stores. The high end nature of some of Hale’s 
comparison goods operators, particularly art galleries, help 
to draw trade from beyond the immediate area.

Service uses (leisure, retail and financial and business) 
account for 56.2% of floor space and 58.8% of all units. The 
figures fall considerably above the national averages of 
39.5% and 49.3% respectively.

Hale is notable for the provision of leisure service operators 
within the district centre. There are 26 leisure service units, 
which account for 23.9% of all units in the centre and equate 
to 4,811 sq.m of retail floorspace. There are a number of 
restaurants (including Pizza Express and Cibo), bars, cafés 
(including Costa Coffee), hot-food takeaways and public 
houses. Although the leisure service operators fluctuate over 
time (evidenced by the closure of Carluccio’s) it remains 
generally strong and helps to underpin the vitality of Hale.

There are 21 retail service operators located in Hale which 
account for a total of 1,919 sq.m of commercial floor space. 

Although the range of operators is not particularly diverse, 
the provision is generally commensurate with the scale of the 
centre. Operators include hairdressers, beauty salons, travel 
agents, an opticians and a dry cleaner. 

Despite a substantial presence of leisure service operators, 
Hale has a range of services and facilities that are considered 
to be suitable to serve the day-to-day needs of the 
surrounding residents. Facilities such as Sainsbury’s Local, 
M&S Foodhall, pharmacies, Barclays Bank and Hale Library 
are indicative of a strong community offer. Furthermore 
independent cafés, shops and bars offer locations for 
community-orientated activities.

There are relatively few community facilities located within 
Hale, with these facilities including Hale Library, Station 
House Veterinary Surgery and a dentist. 

Additional facilities in close proximity to Hale district centre 
include Richmond House Kindergarten and St Peter’s Hale 
which are both located to the south of the centre boundary.

The village is also well integrated with surrounding 
residential streets, with Ashley Road connecting Hale to 
residential areas to the south and north. These routes are all 
walkable, with pedestrian footways lining Ashley Road.

Hale is a pleasant centre in which to spend some time, with 
well-maintained shop frontages and few obvious signs of 
vacancy. During our visits to the centre, vibrant activity was 
noted along the entirety of Ashely Road, with evidence of 
café culture and the centre appeared to be well used. 

Date
July 2019
Data
OS ©2019

Hale
Village Centre

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 109



4.6 Parking Survey Results

The availability and existing usage of car parking was quickly 
identified as a key issue affecting the development of the 
Village Place Plan, and as such WSP instructed a parking 
survey encompassing on and off-street parking across 
the village to better understand the existing situation. The 
detail of the survey and methodology were agreed with the 
technical officers at the Council prior to being commissioned.

The findings of the survey were reported upon fully in the 
WSP technical note dated 8 November 2019. The findings 
are summarised below.

We have summarised in the adjacent table the public (i.e. not 
including resident’s permit) spaces available during the peak 
hours on each of the three days.

It can be seen that there is availability of parking within 
the wider survey area. Indeed, even at the peak hours on a 
Thursday and Friday, over 20% of the surveyed parking stock 
was available.  

It is accepted that the majority of this availability lies away 
from the locations in the centre of the village where people 
most wish to visit and to park.  However the areas surveyed 
all lie within circa 500 metres of the centre of the village, and 
as such it could be considered possible to park in these areas 
and walk to the village centre for persons without a mobility 
restriction.  

It is however accepted that for short duration trips (e.g. 
convenience shopping in local stores) such a walking 
distance could prove a disincentive.

Bearing in mind the above, it can be concluded that parking 
within the village needs to be maintained at approximately 
its current quantum. However, there remains the opportunity 
to rationalise and adjust the existing quantum of parking in a 
number of specific areas, in order to create beneficial public 
realm interventions, whilst keeping the overall numbers 
across the village approximately neutral.

Victoria Road Cecil Road ‘CP3’ On-Street 
(Within the 
Defined	Study	
Area)

Overall Public Capacity 46 136 23 808

Available spaces on Thurs 
11:00-12:00

1 10 1 216

Available spaces on Fri 12:00-
13:00

4 22 1 191

Available spaces on Sat 11:00-
12:00

22 48 6 326

One option may be the removal of the signalised pedestrian 
crossing on Ashley Road and associated zig-zag lines. This 
could potentially be replaced by informal crossings with 
build outs (i.e. areas where the pavement extends out 
towards the carriageway, in between the on-street parking 
bays, allowing pedestrians to view oncoming traffic and 
cross in a safe manner). 

Such an arrangement would need to be accompanied by 
features to encourage vehicles to travel through Hale at 
slower speeds (e.g. gateway features and changes to road 
surfacing). 

This proposal would allow the existing on-street parking 
along Ashley Road to be spread along a greater length, 
permitting the informal crossings with build outs to be 
put in place.  This would facilitate greater pedestrian 

30

permeability between the two sides of Ashley Road without 
loss of any overall parking numbers.

Finally it should be reiterated that over the course of the 
survey period Brown Street car park was closed and as 
such the results of the parking survey represent a ‘worst 
case scenario’. Upon completion, the Brown Street site will 
provide 57 spaces for public parking which will include four
accessible bays and four electric vehicle charging bays, over 
and above those available on the days of the survey.

Parking Survey Results in Hale - Capacity and Availability and Peak Times

Parking Survey Results

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 110



31

The following three plans 
show the availability of pub-
licly available parking within 
Hale at the busiest times of 
day on the three days of our 
survey. Two numbers, one 
on top of the other, are dis-
played for each street and 
car park. The bottom number 
represents the total number 
of publicly available parking 
spaces per street or car park 
while the top number repre-
sents the number of unoccu-
pied publicly available spaces 
during the busiest hour. For 
on-street locations the capac-
ity was based on the number 
of medium sized cars that 
could park safely without 
causing obstruction to the 
footways.

During the busiest hour on 
Thursday 19th September 
(11am-12pm) there were 216 
(27%) unoccupied publicly 
available on-street parking 
spaces. 592 (73%) of the pub-
licly available on-street park-
ing spaces were occupied. 

In addition, 12 spaces were 
available in off street car 
parks, 10 of which were in 
Cecil Road East.

Publicly Available On-Street Parking Availability Thursday 19/09/19 (11am-12pm)

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 111



32

Publicly Available On-Street Parking Availability Friday 20/09/19 (12pm-1pm)

During the busiest hour 
on Friday 20th September 
(12pm-1pm) there were 191 
(24%) unoccupied publicly 
available on-street parking 
spaces. 617 (76%) of the pub-
licly available on-street park-
ing spaces were occupied. 

27 spaces were available in 
off street car parks, 22 of 
which were in Cecil Road East.

Parking Survey Results

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 112



33

During the peak hour on 
Saturday 21st September 
(11am-12pm) there were 
336 (42%) unoccupied 
publicly available on-street 
parking spaces. 472 (58%) of 
the publicly available on-
street parking spaces were 
occupied. 

76 spaces were available in 
off street car parks, 48 of 
which were in Cecil Road 
East and 22 of which were in 
Victoria Road.

Publicly Available On-Street Parking Availability Saturday 21/09/19 (11am-12pm)

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 113



34

2.1 Shop Front Analysis
Many of the successful shop frontages use dark colours and 
signage at an appropriate scale, allowing the richness of the 
architecture on upper levels to stand out. The brick materiality 
contrasts pleasantly with the darker tones of blue and grey at 
street level. A design guide based on these principals would 
build upon the positive aspects of Hale’s streetscape and allow 
shop frontages that do not currently display these qualities to fit 
in more comfortably with the street as a whole. 

Shallow awnings that allow light to  pass 
to the interior.

Large fascia and signage in bright colours 
negatively impact on the streetscape

Darker colours that contrast pleasantly 
with the tones of brick on upper floors

23Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan22

Part of the overall analysis for the Place Plan was a review of the existing shop frontages within Hale village centre. In this regard, 
consideration has also been given to the findings of the Trafford-wide Design Guide currently being produced to cover the bor-
ough as a whole.

Many of the successful shop frontages use dark colours and signage at an appropriate scale, allowing the richness of the archi-
tecture on upper levels to stand out. The brick materiality contracts pleasantly with the darker tones of blue and grey at street 
level. A design guide based on these principals would build upon the positive aspects of Hale’s streetscape and allow shop front-
ages that do not currently display these qualities to fit in more comfortably with the street as a whole

Shopfront Analysis

Shallow Awnings that allow 
light to pass to the interior

Large fascias and signage 
in bright colours negatively 
impact on the streetscape

Darker colours that contrast 
pleasantly with the tones of 
brick on upper floors

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 114



35
Hale Village Place Plan 

Key

Hale Conservation Area SPDS 11

Pre - 1880

1880 - 1890

1910

1920 - 1930

Mid 20th Century

Late 20th Century

1885-90 1888-1930

1892-1914 1937

1.4 Construction Dates

Historical maps show the growth of the village over a period 
of 1885 - 1937, with a considerable increase in development 
following the opening of the Peel Causeway railway station in 
1862. Previously an agricultural village, Hale saw development to 
the south east as the village became  popular with the commuting 
middle class of Manchester. 

Hale has grown around Ashley road with narrow plots making 
up the village grain. Concentration is around the railway station 
where development started to become more spacious with semi 
detached residential properties 

Plan of Hale Conservation Area showing Construction dates

13Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan12

Historical maps show the growth of the village 
over a period of 1885-1937, with a considerable 
increase in development following the opening 
of the Peel Causeway railway station in 1862. 
Previously, an agricultural village, Hale saw de-
velopment to the south east as the village be-
came popular with the commuting middle class 
of Manchester.
 
Hale has grown around Ashley Road with narrow 
plots making up the village grain. Concentration 
is around the railway station where development 
started to become more spacious with semi de-
tached residential properties.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 115



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 116



The Vision and Objectives

05

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 117



38

5. The Vision and Objectives
Objectives
The Offer of the Centre
• To ensure that the village centre meets the needs of the entire catchment, 

including all ages, all demographics and all family types
• To protect the existing operators, through appropriate management of the centre, 

retention of the existing level of parking and providing space for wider community 
activities

• To encourage additional operators into the centre which encourage activity 
throughout the day and the evening and which accommodate families

• To provide modern format space to meet potential new operator requirements 
within the village

Movement
• To support the improvement of accessibility to and within the centre for pedestrians 

and cyclists and to encourage sustainable means of transport
• To ensure that the level of car parking remains at a consistent level to meet 

the identified needs in the village and to ensure any proposals do not reduce 
the existing parking provision and provide new opportunities for electric vehicle 
charging

• To reduce the dominance of traffic, whilst maintaining appropriate vehicle access 
and movement, through the inclusion of key gateway entrances into the village and 
an increase of outdoor seating areas for operators

• To provide appropriate cycle parking facilities for cyclists, and creating a safe 
highways environment for all types of transportation

Streetscape
• To safeguard those parts of the existing built environment that contribute to the 

character heritage and distinctiveness of the area, and incorporate these with the 
new developments within the village

• To create opportunities for ‘parklets’ to encourage informal seating areas
• To use high quality, sustainable design to ensure operators have the optimal space 

required to viably operate within the village
• To adopt the findings of the Trafford-wide design guide based on the principles 

set out in this document, to build on the heritage of the centre and create an 
aesthetically pleasing built environment.

Public Realm
• To improve the public realm within the village, increasing the level of soft 

landscaping, areas for public art and the creation of informal seating areas, making 
the village somewhere where residents and visitors want to linger.

• To create a space or spaces where informal community events can take place 
within the village centre and create space for new parklet opportunities

• To improve the setting of the bowling green and Ashley Hotel, creating a space 
which can be enjoyed by all.

• To enhance the setting of the Clock Tower and create a ‘village square’.

Vision
‘Hale Village will continue to 

support its active and diverse community 
and will be a lively and well-liked destination, 

accessible to everyone at all times of day. 

The village centre will build on its good access by train and 
bus, and promote sustainable modes of transport through the 
encouragement of access to and within the centre by foot and 

bicycle, and a move away from the reliance on cars. Pedestrian and 
cycle access through the village will be safe and secure.

Through the improvement of the physical appearance, the public 
realm and the delivery of additional and enhanced community space, 
the village will be the preferred choice for Hale residents and beyond, 
meeting both retail and leisure needs and promoting a thriving village 
centre. The centre will be family friendly, through the creation of new 

community spaces.

It is vital that the centre meets the requirements of the future 
generations, through the delivery of a sustainable agenda, 

whilst protecting Hale’s important heritage.’

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 118



39

Objectives in Detail - The Offer of the Centre

Maintain and Improve Diversity

Hale village centre’s leisure offer is concentrated principally 
on higher-end restaurants and bars and high-end large 
residential properties. There is an opportunity to improve and 
diversify the village centre offer and encourage additional 
destinations to meet the wider catchments’ needs. 

There is a need to provide a broader mix of uses in the 
village centre to create areas that are active throughout the 
day and night and which meet the whole family’s needs, 
generating additional footfall, and therefore expenditure. 

In order to create a place with a variety and mix of uses 
development (and public realm schemes where appropriate) 
the strategy for the Village Place Plan is to:

• Encourage additional operators which provide an offer 
for the entire catchment of all ages, all family types and 
all  abilities. There is a lack of family orientated or family 
friendly destinations within the centre, and this needs to 
be rectified.

• Encourage the enhancement of the existing property 
stock to better meet operator’s requirements, whilst 
protecting and nurturing the local distinctive heritage and 
Conservation Area status of the village.

• Create spaces which can accommodate informal 
community uses and events within the centre, 
encouraging additional footfall and wider associated 
economic benefits.

• Build on the exciting new library and bowling club plans, 
alongside the Crown Passages scheme to regenerate the 
Bowling Green area, encouraging a wider range of uses 
and maximising the benefits of the area of the centre.

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 119



Objectives in Detail - Movement

Promote Ease of Movement

The village centre needs to be a place that is easy to get to 
and move through. To create a connective and permeable 
village centre, development and improvements to the village 
should ensure that:

• Roads, footpaths, cycleways and public services are 
connected into well-used routes and connect proposed 
and existing nodes of activity

• Public areas are easily accessible for all users, including 
mobility scooter/wheelchair/pushchair users and cyclists 
where appropriate

• Schemes provide a choice of safe, high quality routes to 
assist with permeability 

In order to achieve a sustainable town centre for Hale, 
improvements to the village should:

• Incorporate electric vehicle charging points
• Encourage travel to and within the centre by sustainable 

transport modes and move away from a reliance of cars
• Improve the overall safety in the centre for people to walk 

and cycle

In order to achieve the Vision it is important to look at 
different areas of the village centre in terms of how they 
function, what their role is, and how these areas can be 
improved in order to support and enhance the overall vitality 
and viability of the centre. 

Improve Legibility

The village centre needs to provide a welcoming image, 
and be easy to understand for all users. Visitors should be 
able to orientate themselves and establish a clear direction, 
achieved through the use of effective signage.

In order to help create a place that is easy to understand, 
the village Place Plan strategy will support the following 
objectives:

• Incorporate clear and easily navigable routes, utilising 
appropriate and distinguishable hard and soft surfacing, 
including the provision of safe and accessible walking 
and cycling infrastructure

• Create new or enhanced ‘gateways’ to the village centre 
which enable users to identify with that particular area 
and which will create a ‘village feel’.

• Include well-designed lighting which accentuates key 
buildings and vistas, assists with the sense of safety and 
security, and leads the user to legible routes

• Incorporate legible signage and way markers for all users 
whilst minimising highway/public realm clutter

Objectives in Detail - Streetscape and Urban 
Design

Maintain and Enhance Character and Identity

The character of Hale is formed by the pattern of 
development, its heritage and historic buildings and layout, 
its scale and massing and by the mix of uses. Hale’s 
character is what makes it unique and has evolved through 
time, shaped very much by the people who live and work in 
the village centre.

In creating a sense of place, the following must be adhered 
to:

• The distinctive heritage must be protected
• Special spaces which are visible and contribute to the 

character of the area and provide informal community 
spaces to hold events

• Good quality design but which meets the needs of 
modern operators

Ensure Adaptability

The function of centres has changed markedly in recent 
years with technological advances and the ever increasing 
reliance of internet shopping. It is anticipated that the role 

40
Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 120



41

Signs of Success

We will know that we have met the objectives through the 
following:

• The retention of operators in Hale village centre and the 
associated reduction in the ‘churn’ of operators

• More family orientated destinations, including cafes, 
restaurants and outdoor spaces

• The retention and growth of the independent sector within 
the village, through the improvement to the wider public 
realm and infrastructure

• The inclusion of small informal ‘parklets’ along Ashley 
Road

• An enhanced public realm through the creation of new 
soft landscaping and additional trees and substantial 
improvements to key areas of the centre for residents to 
enjoy.

• More public art and celebrations of creativity through the 
encouragement of community events

• The improvement of the ‘village green’ surrounding the 
Clock Tower and the creation of an informal community 
space which can be used for events

• The improvement of the area around the Bowling Green 
to make it a key aspect of the centre which can be 
enjoyed by all and building on the new bowling club and 
library scheme through wider public realm improvements.

• Streamlining the traffic flow throughout the centre
• The rationalisation of the design of shopfronts in the 

centre, through the adoption of the recommendations 
within the Trafford-wide design guide.

• The inclusion of new seating areas (both informally and 
formally) to allow residents and visitors to enjoy the 
setting of the village.

• The inclusion of new cycle parking facilities within the 
centre to encourage sustainable transport modes

of village centres will continue to evolve and as such Hale 
village centre needs to be a place that can respond to 
change. In creating an adaptable village centre, development 
and public realm schemes will need to:

• Provide new signage into Hale from Altrincham and all 
directions;

• Incorporate flexible areas which support a variety of uses 
and meet the needs of the entire catchment

• Incorporate buildings adaptable to a variety of present 
and future uses 

Objectives in Detail - Public Realm

Improve the Quality of the Public Realm

Improvements to the public realm are essential to improving 
the image and attractiveness of Hale village centre. Quality 
public spaces contribute enormously to people’s health, 
happiness and wellbeing and the village is currently lacking 
in any real public open spaces which can be used by all.

In order to create a place with lively and pleasant to use 
public spaces and routes, the village plan will achieve the 
following:

• Undertake a village centre-wide approach to public 
realm, linking one end of the village with the other and to 
encourage footfall throughout the centre.

• Achieve a sense of safety and security throughout the 
village through the removal of the dominance of vehicular 
traffic 

• Pay careful attention to detailing, with integrated well-
designed public art and areas within which people can 
rest and enjoy their surroundings

• Be Inclusive - suited to the needs of everyone, including 
young families, disabled and older people

• Include well-designed lighting 
• Include well-designed street furniture which assists in 

creating and enhancing identity
• Create healthy environments which are sociable (a 

place to meet friends), easy to access and easy to use, 
encouraging activity through the improvement of the both 
the Bowling Green and Clock Tower areas of the centre.

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 121



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 122



Development Strategy

06

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 123



44

Spatial Framework

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 124



45

Movement and Highways

Key	findings:

• Ashley Road is an active high street with high levels of 
footfall observed.

• Traffic tends to be free-flowing, although traffic speeds 
are frequently reduced due to either the level crossing 
or by cars entering or exiting on-street parking spaces.

• The Ashley Road area is dominated by on-street 
parking for which demand is very high. 

• On-street parking is beneficial for local businesses but 
creates safety and amenity concerns for people to walk 
and cycle and impacts on the achievable quality of the 
public realm along Ashley Road. The on-street parking 
also impacts on the overall environmental quality in 
Hale;

• Facilities to encourage people to cycle are lacking, both 
cycle parking and cycle lanes or other infrastructure;

• Whilst the narrow carriageway at the central section of 
Ashley Street restricts intervention, there are a number 
of opportunities near the clock tower to improve the 
public realm and reorganise the highway near the 
bowling green.

Opportunities arising from baseline review

• Removal of signalled pedestrian crossing adjacent to 
Costa, in favour of informal build-outs or crossings.

• Expand the existing area of public realm around the 
clock tower, to make more accessible to pedestrians 
and support the adjacent businesses.

• Create new areas of public realm to encourage visitors 
to stay and enjoy the village.

• Consider re-siting of existing loading bays.
• Consider removal of the bus stop lay-by adjacent to the 

bowling green to allow opportunity for more on-street 
parking and improve public realm.

• Provide mew cycle hubs throughout the village and 
seek to provide additional cycle facilities in accordance 
with the TfGM ‘Streets For All’ Strategy

Urban Design

Key Findings: 

• Hospitality and service based businesses are found to be 
the most prolific land uses in Hale.

• The village is found to have a lack of public realm and 
quality green space.

• There are several buildings of historic and architectural 
importance towards the north of Hale village around the 
Clock Tower.

• Shop front analysis finds that design guidance could 
improve the appearance of the shop fronts.

Opportunities arising from baseline review

• Opportunity to open up frontages onto the bowling 
green and improve the area as a community space and 
build on the new library and bowling club plans

• Opportunities to improve pedestrian routes through the 
village centre

• There are buildings with poor rear façades which need 
improving, particularly along Cecil Road.

• Opportunity to improve some frontages onto Ashley 
Road through the adoption of a design guide.

• To build on the important heritage aspects of the village 
and encourage new development which is unique and 
better meets operator’s requirements.

Public Open Space

Key	findings:

1. Vehicles 
• Hale is serviced predominantly by cars and parking is a 

key issue. It is required to make some businesses viable 
however there is a conflict of interest between business 
owners and residents. 

• The taxi drop off at the station and disused crossings is 
inefficient.

• On street parking detracts from some good uses of 
forecourts and outdoor dining.

2. Public use of space 
• Pedestrian movements are made difficult by the wide 

junctions along the high-street, the mini roundabout 
on Victoria Road, narrow pavements and poor quality 
pavement surface.

• There is a lack of street greening west of the bowling 
green however large high quality trees add character in 
other areas.

3. Central and Gateway Spaces 
• The clock tower is an iconic building in a gateway 

setting, but there are a lack of gateways at the 
entrances to the village.

• Central green space at the heart caters for limited users 
and uses.

Opportunities arising from baseline review

• Opportunity to widen footways and allow the flow of 
businesses onto the streets.

• Opportunity to improve the overall public realm across 
the village, through the introduction of new soft 
landscaping and linking one end of the village to the 
other.

• To alter road surfacing throughout the village to 
improve pedestrian and cycle accessibility and reduce 
the dominance of traffic.

• To utilise the key areas of opportunity at the bowling 
green and clock tower to encourage community 
activities and longer ‘dwell times’ in the village.

Hale Village Place Plan 

Spatial Framework D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 125



HALE ‘SENSE OF PLACE’

THE STRATEGY

The strategy sets out a Vision to create two new public spac-
es - a village square and a village green, which will become the 
focus for community activity. Linking these spaces will be an 
attractive, vibrant and accessible High Street. The strategy will 
be achieved through:

• Creating a new village square focused around the Clock 
Tower and Station;

• Re-vision the existing bowling green as a space for the 
whole community integrating places for rest and play with 
vibrant, animated edges;

• Redesign on street parking to be more centrally located and 
better integrated with the streetscape;

• Create a quality high street environment with new paving, 
street greening and seating;

• Giving people more space and greater priority to walk and 
cycle with a greater priority with a street design that re-
duces the dominance of vehicles and encourage people to 
move freely, accessing services and shops on both sides of 
the street;

• Provide improved signage throughout the village to direct 
cyclists towards new cycle parking;

• Improvements to on-street parking directional signs to pro-
vide clear and updated information regarding numbers of 
spaces and locations;

• Improve village car parks - surfaces, planting and sig-
nage. Consider their use as temporary event spaces, village 
squares or market places; and

• Define a unique character and quality of place unlike any-
where else locally.

A VILLAGE IN THE CITY

Hale has has a real village feel with small, independent retail, a 
vibrant community and day to night economy. It’s close prox-
imity to Manchester gives it a cosmopolitan feel but it’s scale 
retains its charm and village essence.

• Conserve and enhance Hale’s special buildings and quirky 
features;

• Reclaim the village square and village green as places for 
community to happen;.

• Create spaces that are vibrant yet intimate with a village 
buzz and plenty of places to dwell; 

• Reinforce the traditional vernacular through the use of local 
materials and traditional crafts but with a contemporary, 
cosmopolitan twist.

A LOCAL DESTINATION

Hale is small enough to be quaint but diverse enough to be a 
destination. Attracting and retaining visitors whilst providing a 
desirable alternative to Altrincham is key to its success.

• Create a clear sense of arrival and improve the overall ‘vil-
lage’ character feel within the centre;

•  Encourage animated streets with outdoor cafe dining, spill 
out uses and attractive shopfronts;

• Create a cohesive high street that links new open spaces 
and encourages visitors to walk the length of the village;

• ‘Dare to be different’ to Altrincham - offer an attractive al-
ternative for shopping, dining and leisure.

ARTS & CRAFTS AND THE AVANT-GARDE

Hale is synonymous with the architecture of Edgar Wood, a 
prominent figure in the Arts & Crafts Movement and a pioneer 
of the 1920s/1930s Art Nouveau and Art Deco styles. There 
are opportunities to draw upon his architectural style and ap-
proach to reinforce local distinctiveness.

• Bring the Arts & Crafts focus of beauty, rich detailing, hon-
est craftsmanship and traditional building techniques to 
public realm designs; 

• Create quality incidences - street furniture / interpretation 
/ signage that demonstrate craftsmanship and attention to 
detail;

• Village wide opportunities for Hale in Bloom with street 
planters in the romantic Arts & Crafts planting style;

• Make reference to later Art Nouveau and Art Deco styles 
through the use of new materials (concrete), geometric pat-
terns and stylized forms.

46
Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 126



A SENSE OF PLACE

47 Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 127



HALE MATERIALS & DETAILS

HARD SURFACES

A simple materials palette running from shopfront to kerb with 
high quality edgings and feature surfaces around key land-
marks and public spaces to elevate quality.

• continuous concrete flag paving from shopfront to kerb;
• feature areas of high quality paving focused around the 

Village Green and  Clock Tower. Opportunity to use chevron 
paving making reference to the Edgar Wood motif;

• coloured macadam carriageways to slow vehicles and ex-
tend public space across the highway;

• areas of block paved parking bays to visually extend the 
footway. 

STREET FURNITURE, WALLS & LIGHTING 

High quality interventions influenced by the Arts and Crafts val-
ues of craftsmanship, beauty of materials, simplicity and nature 
as inspiration. 

• Feature benches, signage and art focused around the Vil-
lage Green and Clock Tower;

• Timber, brick and metalwork crafted to interpret Edgar 
Wood’s work;

• Feature lighting of the clock tower to elevate the gateway 
landmark;

• Tree pealights to create an ambient evening environment;
•  Incorporate playful elements into street furniture and other 

elements to encourage family activity.

SOFT LANDSCAPE

Hale High Street provides opportunities for new street planting 
and ornamental gardens focused around the Village Green and 
Clock Tower with floral displays in raised planters to provide 
visual continuity along the street.

• Retain high quality mature trees around the Village Green 
to maximise green character;

• New street tree planting to add character and create a 
greener, more intimate village centre. Use narrow crown 
trees suitable for urban conditions with seasonal interest;

• Make reference to the Arts and Crafts approach to garden 
design through romantic plantings structured by clipped 
hedges;

• Rich floral displays in street planters create continuity along 
the High Street and reduce the visual impact of parking  
and traffic on fronting properties.

48
Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 128



49
Hale Village Place Plan 

PRECEDENTS

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 129



PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE

ON STREET
PARKING (4no.)

PLANTERS & TREES TO CREATE 
SCREENED SPACE FOR CAFE 
SEATING

ROUNDABOUT REMOVED TO 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL ON 

STREET BAYS (5no.) REMOVE CONTROLLED CROSSING. REARRANGE 
PARKING TO CREATE TREE PLANTING ON BUILD OUTS 
& RAISED CROSSING POINTS. PARKING BAYS(18no.)

ADDITIONAL PARKING (8no.). EXISTING 
BAYS REARRANGED TO CREATE BUILD OUTS 

& TREE PLANTING.

RETAIN EXISTING PARKING & TREES. 
FOOTWAYS REPAVED TO BUILDING 

FRONTAGE. NEW PLANTERS/SEATING TO 
EXTEND VILLAGE GREEN CHARACTER ALONG 

ASHLEY ROAD. 

PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE

RETAIN EXISTING
PARKING (6no.)  

FEATURE PAVING & PLANTING TO  
ENHANCE STATION ENTRANCE. DEFINED 

PEDESTRIAN FOOTWAY THROUGH CAR 
PARK. 

PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE

KEY PROPOSALS

Traffic	&	Transport

• Retain existing on street parking where pos-
sible; 

• Create additional on street parking bays to 
replace parking removed around the clock 
tower;

• Rearrange on street parking to create build 
outs for tree planting, informal road cross-
ings and space for parklets;

• All informal crossing points will include tac-
tile paving to allow accessibility for all users;

• Reduce traffic speeds to 20mph by defin-
ing village entrances and providing at grade 
crossings at regular intervals;

• Remove the existing controlled crossing 
freeing up space for additional village centre 
parking;

• Retain bus stop locations;
• Cycle parking at key locations.

Public Realm

• Screen traffic with planters and trees and 
provide village parklets to create informal 
seating areas, additional greenery and areas 
for play;

• Tree planting/planters on kerb build outs and 
wide footways to extend the village green 
character;

• Enhance the Station entrance and create legi-
ble pedestrian/cycle routes to it;

• Improve pedestrian crossing of Ashley Road 
and side road junctions;

• Improve quality and consistency of footways 
with new frontage to kerb paving;

• Paved parking bays to create the illusion of 
wider footways.

ASHLEY ROAD HALE VILLAGE GREEN 

HALE CLOCK TOWER 
SQUARE 

PARKLETS WITHIN PARKING 
BAYS TO EXPAND NARROW 
FOOTWAYS (Up to 4no. bays 
removed)

EXISTING PARKING RETAINED 
(9no.)

TAXI RANK 

RETAIN EXISTING
PARKING (5no.)  

RETAIN EXISTING
PARKING (7no.)  

RETAIN EXISTING
PARKING (5no.)  

RETAIN BUS STOP

ON STREET
PARKING (2no.)

RETAIN BUS STOP

HALE ASHLEY ROAD

Hale Village Place Plan
50

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 130



PRECEDENTS

CONSISTENT PAVING TO PRIVATE FORECOURTS & ADOPTED FOOTWAYS

GROUPINGS OF PLANTERS EXTEND THE CHARACTER OF THE 
VILLAGE GREEN ALONG ASHLEY ROAD

PLANTERS & SEATING GROUPED ALONG THE STREET RAISED TABLES MARK VILLAGE ENTRANCES & 20 MPH ZONE

SEATS, TREES & HIGH QUALITY PAVING IN KEY 
LOCATIONS

POTENTIAL NEW STREET FRONTAGES & PAVED 
PARKING BAYS

51
Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 131



HALE ASHLEY ROAD

PARKLETS

Hale offers the opportunity to develop the 
Parklet concept, bringing life and vitality to the 
heart of the village. Existing on street parking 
spaces outside cafes, restaurants and retail 
could be converted to new urban pocket parks 
extending the footway and incorporating 
planting, seating and cycle parking to provide 
pleasant places for people to stop, sit and 
enjoy the street. An initial pilot project would 
test the appetite for further expansion of the 
concept and allow for a gradual move towards 
an increased cycle and pedestrian accessible 
village centre.

INTEGRATED ELECTRIC CAR & 
CYCLE CHARGE POINTS

FOOTPATHS WIDENED TO THE WIDTH OF 
EXISTING PARKING BAYS

PLANTERS PROVIDE ADDITIONAL STREET 
GREENING AND PROTECTION FROM 
VEHICLES

OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE STRONG 
VILLAGE IDENTITY THROUGH COLOUR/
PATTERN/SIGNAGE

ON STREET CYCLE PARKING

ON STREET PARKING RETAINED

TREE PLANTING ON KERB BUILD OUTS

INTEGRATED STREET FURNITURE TO 
PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR REST AND 
SOCIALISING ALONG THE STREET

POTENTIAL FOR EXTERNAL WI-FI ENABLING 
TO ENCOURAGE AGILE WORKING

Hale Village Place Plan
52

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 132



ON STREET PARKING RETAINED

CYCLE PARKING, LITTER BINS  AND SEATING INTEGRATED INTO PARKLETS LEAVE FOOTWAYS CLEAR FOR MOVEMENT

VILLAGE IDENTITY CAN BE ENHANCED BY PARKLET SIGNAGE AND SOFT LANDSCAPE

USERS PROTECTED FROM TRAFFIC BY SEAT BACKS / FENCING

TEMPORARY PARKLETS CAN TEST VILLAGE USER’S APPETITE FOR PARKING REMOVAL AND PARKLET CREATION

PRECEDENTS

Hale Village Place Plan 
53

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 133



54

BOWLING GREEN

SINGLE LEVEL PAVED SURFACE 

RAISED RESURFACED 
HIGHWAY TO EXTEND 

VILLAGE GREEN CHARACTER PLAY SCULPTURE AND 
ARTIFICIAL SAFETY LAWN 

ART /LIGHTING LANDMARK

CAFE SEATING 
OVERLOOKING THE 
GREEN

SEATING AND PLANTING 
WITH VIEWS ACROSS THE 

GREEN

CAFE SPILL OUT AREAS

EXISTING TREES 
RETAINED

HEDGE HEIGHT 
REDUCED TO OPEN 
UP VIEWS

CIVIC HALL

ASHLEY ROAD

KEY PROPOSALS

Traffic	&	Transport

• Existing controlled crossing removed;
• Bus lay-by, parking bays and road raised and resur-

faced to create a pedestrian friendly public realm 
that extends  across Ashley Road to the Village 
Green;

• Paved surfaces to extend outdoor seating terrace 
and plaza from the Britannia Hotel to the Village 
Green.

Public Realm 

• Poor quality tree specimens removed and the ex-
isting hedge trimmed back to open up views to the 
Village Green;

• Additional tree planting and seating to Ashley Road;
• New street tree planting on kerb build outs;
• Raised lawns/ornamental planting beds with alcove 

seating to enclose and define the Village Green. 
Informal seating opportunities created by the lawns 
and walls;

• The owner of the Britannia Hotel has been consult-
ed as part of the process. He advised he had no 
immediate plans to make any fundamental physical 
or other changes to the hotel and the Council will 
monitor the situation closely, with further engage-
ment when appropriate;

• Informal play sculpture with overlooking seating to 
provide breakout space for families;

• Landmark artwork with integrated lighting to lead 
visitors from the car park to the village heart;

• Opportunity to animate the edges with space for 
cafe seating overlooking the green;

• New high quality paving, seating and lighting;
• Explore opportunities for alternate temporary and 

seasonal uses of the green for the wider community 
in conjunction with new activities at the proposed 
Community Hall -these could include a temporary 
ice-rink / funfair, market, summer games.

NEW STREET TREE PLANTING 
ON KERB BUILD OUTS

BOWLING GREEN COULD 
PROVIDE SEASONAL/

TEMPORARY EVENTS SPACE

Hale Village Place Plan

Hale Bowling Green and Surrounding Area

IMPROVED FASCIAS 
SURROUNDING THE 

BOWLING GREEN

OPPORTUNITY TO 
TIE-IN THE EXCITING 
BOWLING CLUB 
AND NEW LIBRARY 
DEVELOPMENT 
WITH WIDER 
PUBLIC REALM 
IMPROVEMENTS

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 134



PLAY SCULPTURE 

TEMPORARY EVENT SPACE - ICE RINK / SUMMER GAMES

PRECEDENTS

ARTIFICIAL BOWLING GREEN WITH SEATS AROUND ART / LIGHT LANDMARK 

COMMUNITY GATHERING SPACE / ARTWORK & HISTORIC INTERPRETATION

55
Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 135



56

WIDENED FOOTWAYS FOR 
CAFE SEATING

ASHLEY ROAD

BR
O

W
N 

ST

HALE STATION

THE RAILWAY

RETAIN EXISTING PARKING 
(5no.)

WIDENED FOOTWAYS FOR 
CAFE SEATING

TAXI / SHORT STAY (2no.)

PARKING (6no.) / LOADING 
BAYS & TREE PLANTING

VILLAGE GREEN

EVENT SPACE / CAFE SEATING 
AREA

PAVED CROSSOVER GATEWAY 
FEATURE

KEY PROPOSALS

Traffic	&	Transport

• Retain residents parking; 
• Retain existing provision for loading and park-

ing adjacent to businesses;
• Relocate on street parking around the clock 

tower and a small number of on street bays to 
facilitate tree planting and footway widening;

• One way traffic around the square creates 
space for people and retains access to proper-
ties;

• Paved crossovers at village entrance to slow 
traffic entering the village;

• Raised table and paved road surface extends 
the square to the building edges and slows 
vehicles moving through the area.

Public Realm

• Widen footways to allow for cafe spill out;
• Tree planting on kerb build outs;
• Create new village green - Ornamental plant-

ing, lawns and seating alcoves create a quiet, 
reflective space focused around the clock tow-
er;

• Space for small markets, cafe seating, village 
events;

• Feature lighting of the clock tower and trees to 
create an attractive evening destination;

• New Station arrival space with short term park-
ing / taxi drop-off and cycle parking;

• Improve disabled access to front entrance;
• Water fountain setting improved.

STATION ARRIVAL 
SPACE INCLUDING
SIGNAGE 
WITH TRAVEL 
INFORMATION

WATER FOUNTAIN 
SETTING ENHANCED

PARKING BAYS (2no.) / 
LOADING

RESIDENT/SHORT STAY 
PARKING BAYS (3no.) / 

LOADING

RESIDENT/SHORT STAY 
PARKING BAYS (8no.) 

Hale Clock Tower

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 136



TRAFFIC CALMED PAVED SQUARE WITH STREET TREE PLANTING

HALE IN BLOOM PLANTING & WALLS FOR SEATING

PRECEDENTS

SEATING & TREE PLANTING AMBIENT TREE LIGHTING 

LAWNS & SEATING WITH PATHS THROUGH FEATURE LIGHTING OF CLOCK TOWER

57
Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 137



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 138



Movement Strategy

07

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 139



60

HALE VILLAGE GREEN - MOVEMENT STRATEGY - EXISTING

ASHLEY ROAD - CLOCK TOWER SQUARE

Existing

Traffic	&	Transport

• Narrow footways;
• Wide carriageway with standard macadam 

surface. 30mph speed limit;
• Crowded on-street parking bays create 

poor streetscene.

Public Realm

• Limited street greening. No space for trees;
• Poor quality pedestrian environment. No 

space for spill out activity;
• Low quality footways and furniture creates 

a poor visitor impression;
• Wide carriageway makes the crossing of 

Ashley Road difficult.

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 140



61

HALE VILLAGE GREEN - MOVEMENT STRATEGY - PROPOSED

PROPOSED

Traffic	&	Transport

• Retain existing vehicle movement;
• Reduce speed to 20mph through raised 

speed table, change of surface and car-
riageway narrowing;

• Road width to allow for continued ability 
for larger vehicles to use Ashley Road e.g. 
for deliveries to local businesses;

• Retain on street parking;

Public Realm

• Widen footways to allow for spill out activ-
ity;

• Paved parking bays create illusion of wider 
footpaths;

• Boulevard tree planting on kerb build outs;
• Shared paved surface gives pedestrians 

priority and eases movement across Ashley 
Road.

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 141



62

HALE ASHLEY ROAD - MOVEMENT STRATEGY - EXISTING

ASHLEY ROAD 

Existing

Traffic	&	Transport

• 30mph speed limit;
• Crowded on-street parking bays 

create poor streetscene;
• Controlled crossing limits scope for 

further parking. Road speeds and 
numbers do not require a formal 
crossing facility.

Public Realm

• Limited street greening. No space 
for trees;

• Low quality footways and street 
clutter creates a poor visitor im-
pression;

• Street lacks character and pedestri-
an scale.

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 142



63

HALE ASHLEY ROAD - MOVEMENT STRATEGY - PROPOSED

PROPOSED

Traffic	&	Transport

• Retain existing vehicle movement;
• Reduce speed to 20mph through 

regular raised speed tables and 
gateway enhancements;

• Retain on street parking south side;
• Remove controlled pedestrian 

crossing to allow for additional 
parking / better parking arrange-
ment.

Public Realm

• Paved parking bays create illusion 
of wider footpaths;

• Boulevard tree planting on kerb 
build outs;

• Paved level surface gives pedes-
trians priority and ease movement 
across Ashley Road.

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 143



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 144



Shopfront Strategy

08

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 145



66

3.1 Precedent
Shopfront restoration and design codes have transformed high 
streets across the country. A good example of this renewal is in 
Derby, where many shopfronts were upgraded over an 8 year 
period. By using the design principals of historic shopfronts, 
such as well proportioned fascias and signage, the streetscape 
was given an overall harmony and continuity. As a result, footfall 
increased by 12%. 

Large fascia covering the original 
transome windows. Garish sigange at an 
inappropriate scale and typeface. 

Unnecessary signage. Poor quality 
illuminated signage also detracts from the 
street scape.  

Bright, contrasting colour of 
fascia, not in keeping with the 
colour of shop front elements.  

Cluttered windows

The modern fascia has been removed 
to reveal transome windows and the 
original fascia has been restored. The 
new signage uses a smaller  and more 
traditional typeface to compliment the 
original features. 

All window clutter removed and mullions 
painted in the same colour as the other 
shop front elements. 

Brick has been used for the stallriser, 
preventing a dirty appearance over time.   

A deep, muted blue has been 
used throughout, creating an 
overall harmony.  

27Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan26

Shopfront Strategy - Case Study

Hale Village Place Plan

Shopfront restoration and design codes have trans-
formed high streets across the country. A good 
example of this renewal is in Derby as shown below, 
where many shopfronts were upgraded over an eight 
year period. By using the design principals of histor-
ic shopfronts, such as well proportioned fascias and 
signage, the streetscape was given an overall harmo-
ny and continuity. As a result, footfall increased by 
12%.

Large fascia covering the original 
windows. Garish signage at an 
inappropriate scale and typeface

Unnecessary signage. Poor 
quality illuminated signage 
also detracts from the street 
scape 

Bright, contrasting colour 
of fascia, not in-keeping 
with the colour of shop 
front elements

Cluttered Windows

The modern fascia has been 
removed to reveal the windows 
and the original fascia has been 
restored. The new signage uses 
a smaller and more traditional 
typeface to compliment the 
original features

Brick has been used for the 
stallriser, preventing a dirty ap-
pearance over time

All window clutter removed and 
mullions painted in the same 
colour as other shopfront ele-
ments

A deep, muted blue has 
been used through-
out, creating an overall 
harmony

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 146



67

Blind Box

Fascia

Signage

Shop Number

Transome

Mullion

Cill

Plinth

Stall Riser

Shop frontages are composed of a number of functional 
elements, which traditionally adhere to classical architectural 
principals. Many shops within Hale’s study area display plinths, 
columns and entablature, typical of many Victorian and Edwardian 
shop fronts,  in addition to a traditional fascia for signage and 
stallriser below the main shop window. Careful consideration 
should be given to the proportion of these elements in relation 
to the building facade as a whole. In order to achieve a 
harmonious street scape, no single element should dominate. 

There are also Modern shop frontages present in Hale, particularly 
adjacent to the bowling green. These shop fronts have some of 
the traditional architectural elements omitted, though would 
still benefit from the suggested principles in the design guide, 
particularly regarding to the proportion of fascias and signage.

example

shopfront

3.2 Shop Front Components

Shop front to Design Code

29Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan28

Shopfront Strategy - Proposed

Hale Village Place Plan 

Shop frontages are composed of a number of 
functional elements, which traditionally adhere 
to classical architectural principals. Many shops 
within Hale’s study area display plinths, columns 
and entablature, typical of many Victorian and 
Edwardian shop fronts, in addition to a tradi-
tional fascia for signage and stallriser below the 
main shop window. Careful consideration should 
be given to the proportion of these elements 
in relation to the building facade as a whole. In 
order to achieve a harmonious street scape, no 
single element should dominate.

There are also modern shop frontages present in 
Hale, particularly adjacent to the bowling green. 
These shop fronts have some of the traditional 
architectural elements omitted, though would 
still benefit from the suggested principles in the 
Trafford Design Guide, particularly regarding the 
proportion of fascias and signage.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 147



68

3.3 Fascia & Signage Proportions

A fascia is used to display the signage of the shop, creating a 
visible separation between the ground floor and upper floors. 
Traditionally the fascia would display the shop name and often 
the trade of the business in hand painted lettering. Given 
its prominence, the fascia has a considerable impact on the 
character and appearance of the building and streetscape.

The proportion of the fascia and signage in relation to the 
remaining shop front need to be carefully considered in order 
to achieve a balanced elevation. The depth of the fascia should 
be no more than a fifth of the shop front height. Wherever 
possible the original fascia dimensions should be used. 

Some shop fronts occupy buildings that may not have originally 
been designed to function as a shop, in these cases a fascia 
may not be incorporated in the design. Therefore, signage of 
an appropriate scale may be applied directly to the window. 

3.3.1 The size of the fascia must be in proportion to the 

rest of the shopfront and the whole building. Fascias 

should be a maximum of one fifth the height of the 

shop front. 

3.3.2 The fascia should form an integral part of the overall 

design within the shopfront, rather than be a separate 

board superimposed without regard to the overall 

design.

S H O P

h

h/5

3.3.3 A fascia should not extend beyond the shopfront 

surround, which is usually determined by the 

pilasters on each side. A fascia should not stretch 

uninterrupted across more than one building.

3.3.4 Fascias should not obscure the existing architectural 

elements.

3.3.5 The top of a fascia should be positioned well below 

the sill of the first floor windows.

Descreet 
blind box

In some cases building that were not traditionally shops will not 
incorporate a fascia in their design. Well proportioned lettering 
or signage should be applied directly on to the window. 

A good example of fascia proportion and signage in Hale.

31Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan30

Shopfront Strategy - Proposed

Hale Village Place Plan

A fascia is used to display the signage of the shop, creating a visible separation be-
tween the ground floor and upper floors. Traditionally the fascia would display the 
shop name and often the trade of the business in hand painted lettering. Gvien its 
prominence, the fascia has a considerable impact on the character and appearance 
of the building and streetscape.

The proportion of the fascia and signage in relation to the remaining shop front 
need to be carefully considered in order to achieve a balanced elevation. The depth 
of the fascia should be no more than a fifth of the shopfront height. Wherever possi-
ble, the original fascia dimensions should be used.

Some shopfronts occupy buildings that may not have originally been designed to 
function as a shop, in these cases a fascia may not be incorporated into the design. 
Therefore, signage of an appropriate scale may be applied directly to the window.

The size of the fascia must be in proportion to the 
rest of the shopfront and the whole building. Fas-
cias should be a maximum of one fifth the height 
of the shopfront.

The fascia should form an integral part of the 
overall design within the shopfront, rather than be 
a separate board superimposed without regard to 
the overall design

A fascia should not extend beyond the shop-
front surround, which is usually determined 
by the pilasters on each side. A fascia should 
not stretch uninterrupted across more than 
one building.

Fascias should not obscure the existing archi-
tectural elements. The top of a fascia should 
be positioned well below the sill of the first 
floor windows.

In some cases, buildings that were not tradition-
ally shops will not incorporate a fascia in their 
design. Well proportioned lettering or signage 
should be applied directly onto the window

A good example of fascia proportion and sig-
nage in Hale

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 148



69

Projected signage may interrupt the view down a street if not 
carefully considered. The size and colour of the sign should be in 
keeping with the traditional fascia. 

The use of canopies and blinds should not detract from the 
style of the shopfront and should be of an appropriate scale and 
colour.  Shallower canopies are preferred, allowing more daylight 
into the building. The canopies should be made from canvas, 
avoiding shiny materials and plastic. 

3.4.1 No more than one projecting sign per shop front;

3.4.2 Projected signs should be in line with the fascia panel, 

and not above first floor sill level.

3.4.3 Signs to co-ordinate with the proposed colour 

scheme and typeface of the overall shopfront design 

code;

3.4.4 Maximum size should be 600 x 400mm, but a smaller 

sign is preferable. 

3.4.5 Minimum clearance of the footpath should be 2.5m.

3.4.6 Minimum distance between the kerb edge and sign 

edge should be 450mm. 

3.4.7 All canopies and blinds should clear the footpath by a 

minimum of 2.3m and there should be a minimum of 

450mm between the kerb edge and outermost edge 

of the canopy.

3.4.8 Roller blinds must be retracted into a discreet ‘blind 

box’ that is fitted flush with the fascia.

3.4.9 Canopies should be the same width as the fascia or 

window.

3.4.10 Supports should not detract from the appearance of 

a shopfront.

3.4 Projected Signage

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

12/5/2019 5:34:03 PM 1 : 50

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Unnamed

(ZZ) 003-

S H O P

min 2.5m

min 450mm

Date

Checked

Scale

Orig Paper Size A3

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Location

Status

W
E
T

www.buttress.net
contact@buttress.net
0161 236 3303

M4 6AF
Manchester
41 Bengal St

Buttress

Rev Date Intls Details

© The moral rights of the author are hereby asserted.
This drawing and design is the sole property of Buttress Ltd and must not be reproduced without permission.
Buttress Ltd is Registered in England and Wales: 5363573

Note:
Do not scale from this drawing.
Dimensions are to be checked on site.
If in doubt please ask.

Origin:Project: Zone: Rev:Level: Type: Disc: Number:

Job No:

12/12/2019 2:51:04 PM 1 : 50

1234

Checker

PROJECT X

CLIENT Y

CITY Z

Unnamed

(ZZ) 004-

1 : 50

Ground Floor Plan Copy 3
1

min 2.3m

min 450mm

discreet blind box, flush 

with fascia

3.5 Canopies & Blinds

Good examples of current canopies in Hale. 

33Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan32

Shopfront Strategy - Proposed

Hale Village Place Plan 

Canopies and Blinds

The use of canopies and blinds should not de-
tract from the style of the shopfront and should 
be of an appropriate scale and colour. Shallower 
canopies are preferred, allowing more daylight 
into the building. The canopies should be made 
from canvas, avoiding shiny materials and plastic.

All canopies and blinds should clear the footpath by a 
minimum of 2.3m and there should be a minimum of 
450mm between the kerb edge and outermost edge 
of the canopy.

Roller blinds must be retracted into a discreet ‘blind 
box’ that is fitted flush with the fascia.

Canopies should be the same width as the fascia or 
window.

Supports should not detract from the appearance of a 
shopfront.

No more than one projecting sign per shop-
front.

Projected signs should be in line with the 
fascia panel, and not above first floor sill 
level.

Signs to co-ordinate with the proposed 
colour scheme and typeface of the overall 
shopfront design code.

Maximum size should be 600x400mm but a 
small sign is preferable.

Minimum clearance of the footpath should 
be 2.5m.

Minimum distance between the kerb edge 
and sign edge should be 450mm.

Projected Signage

Projected signage may interrupt the view 
down a street if not carefully considered. 
The size and colour of the sign should be in 
keeping with the traditional fascia.

Good examples of current canopies in Hale

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 149



70

The proposed design principals give an overall cohesion to the 
street, complimenting the architectural heritage of the floors 
above. 

3.6 Street Elevation

35Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan34

Shopfront Strategy

Hale Village Place Plan

The proposed design principals give an 
overall cohesion to the street, complement-
ing the architectural heritage of the floors 
above.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 150



71

3.7 Colour

Option 1 - Based on existing succesful colours 
present in the area’s architecture and shop fronts

The colour scheme used for each shop front should compliment 
the colours of upper building and other buildings in the street. 
Darker or muted tones are preferred, avoiding the use of bright, 
garish colours. Many of the successful shop fronts in Hale use dark 
blues and greys, which allow the red brickwork of the upper floors 
to stand out. The materiality of the frontage is also important and 
the use of plastic should be avoided. 

Hale has a history of Arts and Crafts architecture with the architect, 
Edgar Wood completing two works in the area, Halecroft and 
Royd house. The Arts and Crafts movement often saw the use of 
muted blues and greens, and warm beige tones. 

Option 2 - Colours inspired by an Arts and Crafts 
colour palette. 

37Hale & Sale Moor Place Plan36

Shopfront Strategy

Hale Village Place Plan 

The colour scheme used for each shopfront should comple-
ment the colours of upper floors and other buildings in the 
street. Darker or muted tones are preferred, avoiding the use 
of bright, garish colours. Many of the successful shopfronts in 
Hale use dark blues and greys, which allow the red brickwork 
of the upper floors to stand out. The materiality of the frontage 
is also important and the use of plastic should be avoided.

Hale has a history of Arts and Crafts architecture with the archi-
tect Edgar Wood completing two works in the area. Halecroft 
and Royd House. The Arts and Crafts movement often saw the 
use of muted blues and greens, and warm beige tones.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 151



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 152



Action Plan

09

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 153



74

10. Action Plan

This Action Plan has been prepared by the project 
team	in	partnership	with	Trafford	Council	Officers	
and following the discussions with the local busi-
nesses and community

The Action Plan provides an indicative phasing strategy, how-
ever key actions and outcomes will need to be undertaken 
alongside, and in response to the work of other partners, not 
least landowners where relevant. 

Furthermore, it will be vital that the detail and direction of this 
Place Plan is brought forward through the Council’s emerging 
Local Plan to ensure that specific planning policies support the 
delivery of key projects but also the future success of Hale as 
a village centre. As such, planning policy also needs to ensure 
that any potential schemes located outside of the village centre 
are appropriately assessed in respect of the potential to jeop-
ardise the future of the village centre.

The potential improvements to the clock tower and surround-
ing area and the bowling green and surrounding area should 
be strongly encouraged and should be seen as key projects 
for the Council and the wider stakeholders, demonstrating the 
potential of the area and to increase footfall into the village.

Improving the overall safety of the village for pedestrians and 
cyclists through the slowing down of traffic and re-prioritisation 
of a centre that caters for the needs of people over vehicles 
should be a key and early objective, and all relevant stake-
holders need to be supported from an early stage in order to 
deliver this. Creating a ‘village feel’ within Hale will encourage 
additional users into the village but also encourage these us-
ers to increase their dwell time. All of this will have knock-on 
economic benefits to the existing and new operators within the 
village centre.

All of the above (and the wider objectives of this village Place 
Plan) should have a website and make use of social media to 
communicate and promote engagement.

Advancing a coordinated set of actions across the village cen-

tre will help business confidence and support investment and 
should be progressed with the widest range of partner partici-
pation.

Projects need to look at exploiting current programmes, grant 
funding and regeneration funds wherever programmes and 
funds allow.

The projects and initiatives which the Village Place Plan high-
lights can be broadly categorised as follows:

• Potential regeneration and improvement opportunities for 
the clock tower and bowling green areas

• Transportation and access - improving the safety through-
out the village for pedestrians and cyclists and encouraging 
additional uses along the streets

• Maintenance - creating an attractive environment, quality 
user experience and confidence for the future

• Events and promotion - increasing footfall and building on 
loyalty

Taking these categories together provides an action plan which 
sets out a strategic direction to bring forward detailed propos-
als to address the challenges and to exploit the opportunities in 
the village centre.

The table below shows the range of projects and initiatives 
along with the potential timeframe of delivery, although this 
will be dependent on a number of factors such as availability of 
funding and market reaction. 

Hale Village Place Plan

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 154



75

Project / Issue Actions Outcome/Objectives Key Delivery Partner
Estimated Times-
cales

Monitoring the health of the 
centre

Regular updated healthchecks to be un-
dertaken in Hale to monitor the diversity 
of uses and wider healthcheck indicators

• To monitor the health of the centre
• To establish the impact of Covid-19 on the centre
• To feed into future policy formation

Trafford Council
Nexus Planning
Stakeholders

Short /medium term

To promote the Place Plan 
through the emerging Trafford 
Local Plan

To develop detailed policies to support 
the delivery of the Visions and Objectives 
in the Local Plan

• To formulate detailed policies based on the preferred approaches for 
the village centre

• To support the future of the centre through formal adopted policy

Trafford Council
Nexus Planning
Stakeholders

Short term

The regeneration and improve-
ment of the clock tower and 
bowling green areas

In consultation with local stakeholders 
and particularly businesses, the Council 
and project team will explore the options 
presented in this Village Place Plan in 
respect of both key areas of the village

• To undertake a formal consultation on the options
• To undertake wider highways modelling to explore the impacts on the 

surrounding highways network
• To finalise a landscape and design strategy for both of the areas and 

formally consult on these plans
• To establish potential funding streams for the proposed improvement 

schemes

Trafford Council Short / medium term

To enhance the public realm 
throughout the village

To develop a formal landscape strategy 
which builds on the objectives as set out 
in this Village Place Plan. 

• To commission a formal landscape strategy for the village
• To enhance the village streets through the provision of new paving, 

lighting, street furniture and soft landscaping
• To consult on the public realm improvement strategy for the village

Trafford Council Medium term

Develop and adopt a formal 
shopfront strategy

To work up a formal shopfront strategy 
building on the work undertaken to form 
this Village Place Plan

• To develop the shopfront strategy set out in this Village Place Plan 
• To encourage additional investment into the shopfronts in the village 

and establish potential funding streams

Trafford Council Short / medium term

Review the overall sustainability 
of Hale

To engage with TfGM and to establish a 
community engagement and activation 
model for the village

• To engage with the residents, business and stakeholders to under-
stand current issues and barriers to sustainable transport

• To develop an interventions plan to tackle barriers and promote op-
portunities for sustainable travel (bike hire etc)

TfGM Short term

Signage / legibility strategy Improving information, directional and 
statutory signage in the village to make it 
as user friendly as possible

• Review of signage for village centre users in key locations to establish 
whether improvements can be achieved

• To instruct a formal signage strategy for the village centre

Trafford Council Short term

Hale Action Plan

Hale Village Place Plan 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 155



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 156



 

 
 

 

Sale Moor Village Plan 

Summary of Surveys 

 

on behalf of Trafford Borough Council 

September 2020 

 

Document Pack Page 157



    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact 
 

Eastgate 
2 Castle Street 
Castlefield 
Manchester 
M3 4LZ 

 

T: 0161 819 6570 

E: info@nexusplanning.co.uk 

Job reference no: 34143

Document Pack Page 158

mailto:info@nexusplanning.co.uk


 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   3 

 
 

Contents 
 

 

1.0 Introduction .................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2.0 Local Community Survey Results.......................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.0 Business Community Survey Results ................................................................................................................................ 14 

4.0 Public Consultation – Draft Sale Moor Village Place Plan ....................................................................................... 23 

 

  

Document Pack Page 159



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   4 

 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 As part of the consultation process for the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans, Nexus Planning working 

alongside Trafford Council, issued both local community and business surveys to the community and 

businesses within both village centres. 

1.2 The consultation period ran from 8th August to 20th September 2019 and the surveys were publicised 

via online sources, the Council’s website and social media accounts, circulation by local community 

groups and organisations and through hand-delivery within the village itself including paper copies 

and a deposit at Sale Library. 

1.3 In total, 311 local community surveys were completed in Sale Moor and 7 business surveys were 

completed. However, it is important to note that some businesses completed the community survey 

instead of the business survey, which may account for the perceived low proportion of businesses 

responding to the business survey. Discussions with businesses that have taken place have also been 

recorded and fed into the analysis work. 

1.4 Subsequent to the above, a consultation was also held in respect of the Draft Sale Moor Village Place 

Plan and a public consultation event took place within Sale Moor Methodist Church. The purpose was 

principally to ask the community’s and stakeholder’s views on the overarching Vision and Objectives 

and the strategy for the future of the village. 

1.5 The purpose of this document is to provide a summary of the findings of the surveys, and set out the 

key messages. These have been used to inform the final version of the Place Plan. 

 

Document Pack Page 160



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   5 

 
 

2.0 Local Community Survey Results 

2.1 Questions 1 and 2 of the local community survey asked the respondents whether they agreed to the 

Council’s GDPR rules and if they were happy for their answers to be used within the report. We have 

not published these answers here. 

2.2 The responses below are form those who agreed to the GDPR rules. 

Q3. How often do you visit Sale Moor Village Centre? 

 

 
 

2.3 A total of 47% of respondents answered that they visit the centre more than once a week with a small 

percentage, 2.3%, saying they only go monthly. 27% answered that they visit daily. 

  

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

Daily More than
once a week

Once a week Once every 2-3
weeks

Monthly Less often

HOW OFTEN DO YOU VISIT THE CENTRE?

Document Pack Page 161



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   6 

 
 

Q4. How do you typically travel to Sale Moor Village? 

 

 
 

2.4 A total of 79% of respondents said that they walk to the village, with a further 44% who drive, with just 

5% who cycle.  

2.5 Only a small amount of people - 2% of respondents - said they got there via public transport.  

Q5. If you drive to Sale Moor Village, where do you typically park? 

 

2.6 There were numerous answers to this question with approximately 72, or 25% of the respondents 

mentioning that they either typically park at the Warrener Street car park or that they sometimes park 

there (also referred to on numerous occasions to the car park behind the butchers).  

2.7 A number of respondents also stated that due to them living in proximity to the village, they will 

typically walk to the centre and do not have a requirement to park. 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Public Transport Cycle Walk Drive Other

HOW DO YOU TRAVEL TO THE CENTRE?

Document Pack Page 162



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   7 

 
 

 

Q6. Would you cycle more or begin to cycle, if there were safe cycle routes and secure parking? 

 

2.8 A total of 39% of respondents answered that they would begin to cycle if the cycle routes were safer, 

with only 3% saying possibly. There were a number of responses stating that cycling around the village 

is a little daunting or dangerous to attempt to cycle around it. 

Q7. Thinking of your last trip to Sale Moor Village, what was the reason for the visit? 

 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

To buy food and
grocery items

To buy non-food
goods

For personal
services

Eat out/drinking Work Other

WHAT WAS THE REASON FOR THE VISIT?

Document Pack Page 163



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   8 

 
 

2.9 When asked what was the reason for their last visit to Sale Moor, the majority - 73% - answered to buy 

food and grocery items (non take-away), 20% for personal services (eg hairdresser etc), 11% eat out / 

drinking and a small percentage, 2% work there. 

Q8. What do you like most about Sale Moor Village centre? (please provide top 3 answers) 

 

2.10 There were a range of answers for this, so when looking at the combined top three answers, 90% stated 

they liked that the centre is close to home / convenient, 54% stated they liked the selection of 

independent operators, 23% stated they liked the parking options, 24% liked the quality of shops and 

18% said it was because it’s not too busy. 

Q9. What do you currently dislike about Sale Moor Village? (please provide top 3 answers) 

 

2.11 Again, there were a range of answers for this question but the popular ones were: 

 55% disliked the road congestion; 

 43% disliked the run down appearance of shops; 

 30% disliked the inadequate range of places to eat and drink; and  

 25% disliked the fact there is a lack of choice of shops. 

Q10. How do you think Sale Moor Village could be improved? (please provide top 3 answers) 

 

2.12 The responses to the choices to the question were relatively broadly spread. We set out the key 

responses below:  

 64% said they would like to see more independent retailers; 

 40% stated they would like more places to eat and drink; 

 29% said better street furniture and floral displays;  

 28% wanted cleaner streets / removal of litter;  

 26% wanted more family orientated facilities; and 

 20% stated they would like to see more outdoor spaces. 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 164



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   9 

 
 

Q11. What does Sale Moor Village do better than other centres you visit? What is unique? 

 

2.13 The respondents provided a wide range of views to this question, with a number of respondents stating 

they liked the friendly and community feel of the centre and that Sale Moor feels like a ‘village’. Other 

responses include the variety of shops, the independent nature and operators, the compact nature of 

the centre and that operators are friendly. 

 

Q12. When visiting a high street, what do you consider to be the most important factors which 

influence your choice of destination? 

 

2.14 When asked what residents felt are important factors which influence their choice of destination, again 

there were a range of responses including parking, the number of shops, it being accessible and the 

quality of shops. A total of 49, or 16% of the respondents stated that independent shops are important, 

with 6% referring to restaurants. In addition, a total of 19% referred to parking as being an important 

factor (which includes ‘free parking’). 

Q13. What would your top three priorities to improve Sale Moor be? 

 

2.15 The first choice for 14% of people referred to shops which included responses such as “stop letting 

the same shop open / too many barber shops”, “improve the look of shops and area”. Approximately 

16% commented on traffic issues. The second choice for 4% of people was parking. Comments include 

Document Pack Page 165



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   10 

 
 

“stop the parking where cars shouldn’t park”, “free parking”.  The third choice for 4% of people related 

to the environmental quality and cleanliness with comments ranging from “more green space to keep 

Sale Moor as clean and safe area to visit”. 

Q14. Do you ever use social media to keep up-to-date in respect of activities and events within 

Sale Moor? If so, which social media platform? 

 

2.16 The majority of the respondents stated that they use Facebook, with 176 or 58% referring to it within 

their answer, with a further 42 or 14% referring to Twitter. 

Q15. Do you think Sale Moor could be promoted better? If so, how? 

 

2.17 20% of people answered yes to this question with comments like “Facebook page”, “more community 

events”, “focus on promoting independent elements”. 

Q16. Which centre or shop(s) do you typically visit to meet your main food shopping needs 

(your ‘big’ weekly shop), and what are the main reasons for choosing here? 

 

 
 

2.18 The most popular response to Question 16 was ‘Sale’ followed by specific operators, also located within 

Sale, including Tesco, Aldi and Sainsbury’s. 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Sale Tesco Aldi Sainsburys

MAIN FOOD SHOPPING

Document Pack Page 166



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   11 

 
 

Q17. Which centre or shop(s) do you typically visit to meet your top-up food shopping needs 

(bread, milk etc)? And what are the main reasons for choosing here? 

 

 
 

2.19 When asked where residents typically choose to meet their top-up convenience shopping 

requirements, Sale Moor village centre and the One Stop were the top answers, followed by Sale town 

centre and the Tesco Express. Respondents also stated that they use Taylor’s Butchers, Ennerdale 

greengrocers and other independents in Sale Moor. 

Q18. Which centre or shop (s) do you typically visit to meet your non-food shopping needs 

(clothing, shoes, electrical goods etc)? What are the reasons for visiting here? 

 

2.20 When respondents were asked where they typically shop to meet their non-food shopping needs, a 

total of 39% of people said the Trafford Centre and 15% stated they shop online. Other key responses 

include Sale and Altrincham town centres and Manchester city centre. 

Q19. Which centre/facility did you last visit to go to for food and drink? (restaurants, bars etc) 

 

2.21 A total of 126 respondents, or 42% stated they last visited Sale town centre, with less than 6% stating 

that they last visited an operator in Sale Moor. A total of 50 (17%) of respondents stated that they last 

visited Altrincham to visit a restaurant or bar. 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Sale Moor One Stop Sale Tesco

TOP-UP CONVENIENCE SHOPPING

Document Pack Page 167



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   12 

 
 

 

Q20. Which centre / facility did you last visit for indoor sports or health and fitness activity? 

 

2.22 There were 38 different responses to this indicating a broad range of requirements for Sale Moor 

residents, but combining together the range of answers, approximately 30% of people stated Sale 

Leisure Centre, whilst 15% mentioned Sale and 3% said Altrincham. 

 

Document Pack Page 168



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   13 

 
 

Q21. Any other comments 

 

2.23 Within the any other comments box we received a number of comments and the key topics included  

 “Traffic” 

 “Looks scruffy” 

 “Making Sale Moor different to Sale” 

 “Community” 

 “Parking  

 “Can be a little congested at time” 

2.24 Particular responses included respondents stating that the centre doesn’t need additional development 

and that the car parks should be protected. Furthermore, a number of respondents referred to the 

highways design and overall safety within the centre, stating that the layout causes issues for 

pedestrians and car users alike. 

2.25 Other comments stated that the village needs a community space and needs additional food and drink 

venues to increase the evening economy. A number of comments also stated that it is important to 

ensure the centre retains its independent offer and that it does not need a new foodstore given the 

proximity of larger stores in Sale. 

 

 

  

Document Pack Page 169



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   14 

 
 

3.0 Business Community Survey Results 

3.1 Questions 1 and 2 of the business survey asked the respondents whether they agreed to the Council’s 

GDPR rules and if they were happy for their answers to be used within the report. We have not 

published these answers here. 

3.2 The responses below are form those who agreed to the GDPR rules. 

Q3. Do you: 

 

3.3 Approximately 43% of those that answered own their own property whilst 43% lease their property. 

Approximately 14% of those who answered work for the business. 

Q4. What type of business is the main business operating from your premises? 

 

3.4 Approximately 43% of those who answered run a business that provides services other than food retail, 

non-food retail, or a café. 28.58% of business owners operate a food retail or coffee shop and 28.58% 

operate non-food orientated retail businesses. 

Q5. Is your business: 

 

3.5 Approximately 86% of businesses are independent. 0% of respondents businesses are part of a regional 

or national group or chain. 

 
 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

Independent Part of a regional/national group or chain Other

TYPE OF BUSINESSES IN SALE MOOR

Document Pack Page 170



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   15 

 
 

Q6. How long, approximately, has the business traded in Sale Moor? 

 

3.6 57% of those who answered stated that the businesses have traded in Sale Moor for over ten years, 

whilst approximately 28% of have traded for 5-10 years. 0% of respondents businesses have been 

trading in Sale Moor for less than a year. 

 
 

Q7. Why did you choose sale moor as a business location? 

 

3.7 Approximately 43% of those who answered commented that the ‘village feel’ or ‘village community’ of 

Sale Moor is the reason for choosing it as their business location. Others made reference to the 

convenience of transport, parking, with approximately 28% quoting ‘better business rates’ or ‘less 

expensive’ as reasons for trading in Sale Moor rather than Sale. Key responses include “we have traded 

in Sale Moor for over 30 years and the location was chosen due to its community feel”.

  

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

0-12 Months 1-5 Years 5-10 Years Over 10 Years

HOW LONG HAVE BUSINESS'S TRADED IN SALE MOOR?

Document Pack Page 171



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   16 

 
 

Q8. How many staff does the business employ? 

 

3.8 Over 70% of businesses in Sale Moor employ under 5 staff. 

 
 

Q9. During the time you have been trading in Sale Moor, has the business… 

 

3.9 Approximately 71% of those who answered believe their businesses have grown significantly or 

moderately since they began trading in Sale Moor. 14% of those who responded believe their business 

has declined significantly since they began trading in Sale Moor, whilst 14% believed trading has 

remained static. 

Q10. How do you rate the following aspects of the town centre (each sub-question will have five 

grades of response – very good, good, average, poor, very poor). 

 

a) Transport 

3.10 With regard to transport, approximately 57% of those who answered believe accessibility for 

pedestrians is Good or Very Good. Accessibility by public transport was rated as average by 43% of 

respondents and Good or Very Good by 57% of those who answered. 

3.11 0% of respondents rated accessibility by public transport as Poor or Very Poor. Whilst 57% of 

respondents rated accessibility via bicycle as Good or Very Good, 28% of respondents rated accessibility 

via bicycle as Poor or Very Poor. 

3.12 57% of respondents viewed the amount of car parking and location of car parking as Good or Very 

Good, and approximately 86% believed the pricing of car parking is Good or Very Good. 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Less than 5 5 or More

HOW MANY STAFF  DO BUSINESSES IN SALE MOOR EMPLOY?

Document Pack Page 172



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   17 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Accessibility by Vehicles Accessibility by Pedestrians Accessibility by Public Transport

RATING ACCESSIBILITY IN SALE MOOR Very Good

Good

Average

Poor

Very Poor

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

Amount of Car Parking Location of Car Parking Pricing of Car Parking

CAR PARKING IN SALE MOOR Very Good

Good

Average

Poor

Very Poor

Document Pack Page 173



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   18 

 
 

b) Business Offer 

3.13 In general, business opinions appear split, approximately 43% of respondents believe the number and 

range of shops in Sale Moor is Good or Very Good, while 28% believe the offering is poor, and 28% 

would describe the offering as Poor or Very Poor. 

 
 

3.14 Approximately 86% of respondents believe the number of independent traders is Very Good or Good, 

whilst 71% believe the number of supermarkets offered is Very Good or Good. 

3.15 0% of all respondents believe that the number of independent, multiple and services in general is poor 

or very poor, however 71% of those who answered stated that the number of restaurants in Sale Moor 

is Average. 

3.16 Opinions regarding the number of fast food shops is split, 43% believe the fast food offering is good, 

whilst 28% believe the number of fast food shops is Poor or Very Poor. 

3.17 With regard to community activities, approximately 43% of respondents described the present offering 

in Sale Moor as Very Poor. The family-friendly aspect of business offer in Sale Moor is split. 50% of 

respondents stated the offer is good however, 33% stated the offer was Very Poor 

 

  

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

Very Good Good Average Poor Very Poor

GENERAL OPINIONS ON THE NUMBER AND RANGE OF SHOPS 

IN SALE MOOR

Document Pack Page 174



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   19 

 
 

c) Public Realm 

3.18 Just under half (42%) of respondents believe the attractiveness of the public realm in Sale Moor is Poor 

or Very Poor. Reflecting this, 57% of respondents believe that the cleanliness of the public realm in Sale 

Moor is Very Poor or Poor. Similarly safety within the public realm is viewed as poor by 42% of those 

who answered. 

3.19 57% of respondents also believe that the range and number of events within Sale Moor is Poor or Very 

Poor.  

3.20 Both the amount of signage for pedestrians and the accessibility of the public realm is rated as Average 

by 71% of those who answered. 

 
 

d) Marketing and PR 

 

3.21 57% of respondents believe the amount of marketing and promotion of Sale Moor is Poor or Very 

Poor. In addition to this, 57% also believe Sale Moors image is Poor or Very Poor. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Attractiveness Cleanliness Safety

OPINIONS ON THE PUBLIC REALM IN SALE MOOR
Very Good

Good

Average

Poor

Very Poor

Document Pack Page 175



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   20 

 
 

 
 

Q11. What is your view on the existing gyratory arrangement within the centre? (One way system 

including Marsland Road and Northenden Road) 

 

3.22 Approximately 71% of businesses gave negative comments toward the existing one-way system. Key 

comments made reference to experiences of “bottleneck traffic”, “constantly queueing” and “unloading 

causing congestion”. Additionally, the system is described as being “very busy”, “confusing” and 

“ghastly”. 

Q12 What is your view on the future potential to expand the food and drink offer within Sale 

Moor? 

 

3.23 Approximately 57% of the businesses responded positively toward the potential for expanding food 

and drink offer in Sale Moor.  

3.24 Key comments include requests for “late licence food and drink outlets to bring a village feel” and “a 

wine bar or two”. Others described it as a “very good idea” as they think it “will attract more people to 

the area”. 

  

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Amount of marketing and
promotion

Range of marketing and
promotion

Image of Sale Moor

MARKETING OF SALE MOOR Very Good

Good

Average

Poor

Very Poor

Document Pack Page 176



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   21 

 
 

Q13. What do you consider is the best future use for the Warrener Street Car Park site? 

 

3.25 57% of respondents consider the best future use for the site is a “car park”. An additional 14% resisted 

the use of the site for a “supermarket” or “another convenience store”. Key comments include “he 

proposed development of a GP surgery/possible Co-op local would increase footfall in the village” and 

“Leave it as it is. Free parking for 2 hours is something that other locations don't offer. If we want to 

increase footfall, we need plenty of parking”. 

Q14. What improvement measures would you like to see in the centre of Sale Moor? 

 

3.26 Just under half of respondents (42%) of respondents referred to general cleanliness of the centre of 

Sale Moor as an important improvement measure, with comments such as a “clean up”, “bins and roads 

tidied more”, and better maintenance” and “litter picking”. Alternative views proposed “initiatives to 

encourage shoppers to shop in Sale Moor”, “Altrincham style of pedestrianisation”, “modern 

appearance” and “better family entertainment”. 

Q15. What do you consider (if anything) are the main barriers to the trading performance of 

your business? 

 

3.27 Approximately 28% of respondents cited footfall as a main barrier to the trading, whilst other key 

comments referred to “visibility and a lack of space for promotion”, “cleanliness” and repetition of the 

same business. 

Q16. Would you like to see greater and improved cycling facilities in the centre of Sale Moor? 

 

3.28 57% of respondents stated that they would like to see greater and improved cycling facilities in the 

centre of Sale Moor. Approximately 28% of respondents stated that they would not like to see greater 

or improved cycling facilities, whilst 14% were indifferent.  

Q17. Have you any plans to alter your business in any way in the next five years? 

 

3.29 70% of respondents answered Question 17. In total, 57% of those who answered stated that they had 

no plans to alter their business in anyway within the next five years, however 14% have plans to extend. 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 177



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   22 

 
 

Q18. Which centres do you consider to be Sale Moor’s biggest competitor? Are there features of 

this centre(s) you would like to have in Sale Moor? 

 

3.30 No single town centre was cited consistently as Sale Moor’s biggest competitor, however, Sale town 

centre, Altrincham, Stretford, Chorlton, West Didsbury, Ashton and Mersey were all referred to in the 

comments. 

3.31 Features of these centres that would be desired in Sale Moor include a “foodhall” and “community 

spirit”. 

Q19. What proportion of your sales is from the internet? 

 

3.32 Approximately 85% of respondents commented that less than 1% of their sales are from the internet. 

Q20. Would you be interested in joining a Landlords Forum/Business group? 

 

3.33 Approximately 42% of respondents were interested in joining a Landlords Forum/Business group. 

Q21. Is there more that could be done to support local businesses? 

 

3.34 Comments suggested a number of initiatives that could support local businesses including lower 

business rates/rents/taxes, business grants, support from councillors, better promotion and faster 

repairs on the high street. 

Q22. Any other comments 

 

3.35 Within the any other comments box, 40% of respondents provided further information. Key topics 

included decline in footfall, cleanliness, and the development of 26a Marsland Road. 

  

Document Pack Page 178



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   23 

 
 

4.0 Public Consultation – Draft Sale Moor Village Place Plan 

4.1 The Draft Sale Moor Village Place Plan was published for consultation at the end of 2019, and a public 

consultation event was held in Sale Moor Methodist Church on 1st February 2020. 

4.2 The purpose of the event was to present the initial proposals and ask the community’s views on the 

overarching Vision and Objectives and Options for improvements to the centre. 

4.3 The event was very well attended by the local community and local business owners and we gathered 

a range of constructive and very invaluable feedback from the attendees. 

4.4 The feedback from the event and the online questionnaire has been fully analysed as part of the 

formulation of the final Place Plan. We have provided a summary of the responses below. 

Summary and Findings 

4.5 There were 272 responses to the survey. In total, 6% of respondents stated that they were responding 

on behalf of a business/organisation, whilst 89% of respondents identified as local residents. A further 

5% decided not to answer or stated that they fell under ‘other’.  

Opinions regarding the Place Plan 

4.6 When asked if the Vision for Sale Moor Village Centre appropriately reflected the overall aspirations of 

the local community, 72% of respondents stated that they think the vision does reflect the overall 

aspirations of Sale Moor.   

4.7 With regard to the topics included within the objectives, the survey indicates the following:  

 Offer of the Centre: 64% of respondents agree or strongly agree that the objectives of the Place 

Plan that concern the offer of the centre.  

 Movement: 58% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan which 

address movement. 

 Streetscape: 64% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan which 

address streetscape. 

 Public Realm: 63% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan 

which concern the public realm. 

Document Pack Page 179



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   24 

 
 

4.8 When asked if they agreed with the options identified in the Village Centre as shown on the Spatial 

Framework Diagram (pg50-51), 63% stated that they did agree with the options within the Spatial 

Framework Diagram. 

4.9 A total of 60% of respondents agree with the proposals for Warrener Street Car Park as set out on 

pages 62-65 of the Place Plan. 

4.10 When asked if they agreed with the introduction of a formal Shopfront Strategy design guide, as 

detailed on pages 78-81 of the Place Plan, 72% of respondents stated they agreed with the introduction 

of such a strategy. 

4.11 The majority (54%) of respondents agree with the actions set out within the Action Plan, with a further 

26% agreeing with the actions ‘in part’. 

Preferred Options 

Sale Moor Gyratory System 

4.12 Of the 85% who chose a preferred option, 30% stated that they preferred option 1, whilst 70% stated 

that their preference is Option 2. 

Movement Strategy at Northenden Road East and Northenden Road High Street 

4.13 Of the 88% who answered this question, 21% chose option 1 as their preferred choice whilst the 

majority (57%) cited Option 2 as their preferred choice of movement strategy with regard to 

Northenden Road East and High Street.  

Additional Comments 

4.14 When asked if they had any additional comments in respect of the Sale Moor Place Plan, comments 

were provided on the following topics: 

 Traffic calming measures; 

 Parking; 

 Definitions of key terms; 

 Development options; 

 Aesthetic Improvements;  

Document Pack Page 180



 

  

 

Sale Moor Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   25 

 
 

 Investment to support independent traders; and 

 Cycling. 

 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 181



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Nexus Planning 

Manchester 

 

Eastgate 
2 Castle Street 
Castlefield 
Manchester 
M3 4LZ 

 

T: 0161 819 6570 

nexusplanning.co.uk 

Document Pack Page 182



 

 

 

Document Pack Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Hale Village Plan 

Summary of Surveys 

 

on behalf of Trafford Borough Council 

September 2020 

 

Document Pack Page 185



    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact 
 

Eastgate 
2 Castle Street 
Castlefield 
Manchester 
M3 4LZ 

 

T: 0161 819 6570 

E: info@nexusplanning.co.uk 

Job reference no: 34143

Document Pack Page 186

mailto:info@nexusplanning.co.uk


 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   3 

 
 

Contents 
 

 

1.0 Introduction .................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2.0 Local Community Survey Results.......................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.0 Business Community Survey Results ................................................................................................................................ 13 

4.0 Public Consultation – Draft Hale Village Place Plan ................................................................................................... 21 

 

  

Document Pack Page 187



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   4 

 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 As part of the consultation process for the Hale Village Plan, Nexus Planning working alongside Trafford 

Council, issued both local community and business surveys to the community and businesses within 

both village centres. 

1.2 The consultation period ran from 8th August to 20th September 2019 and the surveys were publicised 

via online sources, the Council’s website and social media accounts, circulation by local community 

groups and organisations and through hand-delivery within the village itself including paper copies 

and a deposit point at Hale Library. 

1.3 In total, 510 local community surveys were completed and 6 business surveys were completed. 

However, it is important to note that some businesses completed the community survey instead of the 

business survey, which may account for the perceived low proportion of businesses responding to the 

business survey. Discussions with businesses that have taken place have also been recorded and fed 

into the analysis work. 

1.4 Subsequent to the above, a consultation was also held in respect of the Draft Hale Village Place Plan 

and a public consultation event took place within the Bowling Club in February 2020, with a separate 

meeting with local councillors and stakeholders. The purpose was principally to ask the community’s 

and stakeholder’s views on the overarching Vision and Objectives and the strategy for the future of the 

village. 

1.5 The purpose of this document is to provide a summary of the findings of the surveys, and set out the 

key messages. These have been used to inform the final version of the Place Plan. 

 

Document Pack Page 188



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   5 

 
 

2.0 Local Community Survey Results 

2.1 Questions 1 and 2 of the local community survey asked the respondents whether they agreed to the 

Council’s GDPR rules and if they were happy for their answers to be used within the report. We have 

not published these answers here. 

2.2 The responses below are from those who agreed to the GDPR rules. 

Q3. How often do you visit Hale Village Centre? 

2.3 When asked how often respondents visit the centre, 45% answered that they visit daily, with 39% of 

people responding that they visit more than once a week. 9% answered that they visit once a week, 

and 5% replied that they visit once every 2 to 3 weeks. The high proportion of respondents stating they 

visit daily or more than once a week evidences the level of repeat-trade in Hale throughout the week. 

 

Q4. How do you typically travel to Hale Village? 

2.4 When asked how the community travel to the village, 60% of people responded that they walk to the 

village and 59% of respondents answered that they would drive to the village. The high proportion of 

those who walk to the village indicates the importance of the local walk-in catchment. 

2.5  In terms of sustainable transport, 7% of answered that they cycle to the village and only a small amount 

of people, 3%, said they got there via public transport. 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

Daily More than once a

week

Once a week Once every 2-3

weeks

Monthly Less often / not

regularly

HOW OFTEN DO YOU VISIT HALE VILLAGE CENTRE?

Document Pack Page 189



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   6 

 
 

 

Q5. If you drive to Hale Village, where do you typically park? 

2.6 When asked where the community typically park, there were numerous answers, but the top two were 

the general answer of ‘car park’ (18%), followed by ‘on street’ (10%) and ‘on road’ (8%).  

2.7 The chart below shows answers provided by 10 or more respondents, grouped for similar responses. 

 
Q6. Would you cycle more or begin to cycle, if there were safe cycle routes and secure parking? 

2.8 Overall, approximately 29% of people answered yes to this question, with approximately 1% of 

respondents replying either possibly or probably. Some of the more explanatory answers to this 

question included: ‘I do occasionally and will do more often if parking becomes more difficult’, ‘I don’t 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Public transport Cycle Walk Drive Other

HOW DO YOU TYPICALLY TRAVEL TO HALE VILLAGE?

Document Pack Page 190



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   7 

 
 

cycle but it would be highly dangerous in Hale village. Cars drive too fast, park on blind corners, double 

lines of just sticking out into the road. There is a parking problem but inconsiderate drives make it 

worse! No fun as a pedestrian or cyclist, cyclists ride on pavements’. 

Q7. Thinking of your last trip to Hale Village, what was the reason for the visit? 

2.9 When asked what the main reason for the respondent’s last visit to the village, the majority of 

respondents - 65% - answered to buy food and grocery items (not take-away etc), with 32% stating 

eating out/ drinking and 24% answering for personal services (e.g bank, hairdresser, solicitor etc). In 

addition, 9% visit to buy non-food goods and a smaller percentage - 8% - work in the village. 

 

Q8. What do you like most about Hale Village centre? (please provide top 3 answers) 

2.10 When asked what the community like about Hale, in terms of the most common answers provided, 

81% of responses stated the proximity to their home/ convenience, 53% stated the range of places to 

eat and drink and 31% stated the selection of independent operators. Other top responses included 

the quality of shops (27%), the general cleanliness of shopping streets and being not overly busy (both 

15%). 

 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

To Buy Food and

Grocery Items

To buy non-food

goods

For personal

services

Eating

out/drinking

Work Other

WHAT WAS THE REASON FOR THE VISIT?

Document Pack Page 191



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   8 

 
 

 

Q9. What do you currently dislike about Hale Village? (please provide top 3 answers) 

2.11 The top three answers provided by respondents were parking (cost and/or amount) at 58%, 44% of 

respondents stated road congestion and 26% stated the lack of choice of shops. Other top responses 

included insufficient or poor quality green space and absence of play areas (22%) and a lack of 

clean/secure toilets (18%). 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

WHAT DO YOU CURRENTLY LIKE ABOUT HALE VILLAGE?

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%
WHAT DO YOU CURRENTLY DISLIKE ABOUT HALE VILLAGE?

Document Pack Page 192



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   9 

 
 

Q10. How do you think Hale Village could be improved? (please provide top 3 answers) 

2.12 Responses confirmed that more parking and cheaper parking (both 41%) and more independent 

retailers (48%) were the top three ways in which Hale Village could be improved. Other top responses 

included more outdoor space and better street furniture and floor displays (both 20%) and cleaner 

streets/ removal of litter (18%). 

 

Q11. What does Hale Village do better than other centres you visit? What is unique? 

2.13 Respondents provided a number of views to answer this, but the top five were shops (14%), restaurants 

(7%), Village and village feel (7% and 4%), friendly 7% and independent shops (6.67%). 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

HOW COULD HALE VILLAGE BE IMPROVED?

Document Pack Page 193



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   10 

 
 

 
 

Q12. When visiting a high street, what do you consider to be the most important factors which 

influence your choice of destination? 

2.14 Similarly, responses to this question provided a diverse range of views and opinions. Overall, 19% of 

respondents stated that shops are important, 19% replied parking, 8% independent shops, 6% replied 

quality and 6% and 5% chose choice of shops and variety of shops respectively.  

Q13. What would your top three priorities to improve Hale be? 

2.15 Parking was noted as being a key priority for a number of respondents. 20% listed it as their first priority, 

14% as their second and 10% as their third. Other top responses included independent shops (3%), the 

Ashley Hotel (3%) and pavements (2%). 

Q14. Do you ever use social media to keep up-to-date in respect of activities and events within 

Hale? If so, which social media platform? 

2.16 The top responses to this question were Facebook (17%), Altrincham Today (13%) and Twitter (10%). A 

number also reported using Instagram (3%) and community groups such as the Hale Civic Society (2%). 

 

Document Pack Page 194



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   11 

 
 

Q15. Do you think Hale could be promoted better? If so, how? 

2.17 15% responded ‘Yes’ to the question could Hale be promoted better. Respondents felt that social media 

(8%) and events (5%) were the two key ways in which better promotion could be achieved. 

Q16. Which centre or shop(s) do you typically visit to meet your main food shopping needs 

(your ‘big’ weekly shop), and what are the main reasons for choosing here? 

2.18 When asked which centre or shop respondents typically visit to undertake their main food shop, the 

two answers were Altrincham (30%), Sainsbury’s (25%), Tesco (15%), M&S (12%) and Hale (9%).  

2.19 Reasons as to why they chose these destinations included choice (9%), parking (6%), convenience (5%) 

and quality (5%). 

Q17. Which centre or shop(s) do you typically visit to meet your top-up food shopping needs 

(bread, milk etc)? And what are the main reasons for choosing here? 

2.20 Respondents reported visiting Hale (28%), M&S (20%), Tesco (13%), Sainsburys (12%) and Altrincham 

(10%) to meet their top-up shopping requirements.  

2.21 The top reasons why these destinations are typically chosen include convenience (13%), locality (7%) 

and quality (5%). 

Q18. Which centre or shop (s) do you typically visit to meet your non-food shopping needs 

(clothing, shoes, electrical goods etc)? What are the reasons for visiting here? 

2.22 When asked where respondents typically travel to meet their non-food shopping needs, 22% of people 

said Altrincham, 13% responded Hale, 12% of people chose the Trafford Centre and 10% saying 

Manchester. 

Q19. Which centre/facility did you last visit to go to for food and drink? (restaurants, bars etc) 

2.23 In terms of the centre or facility visited, 30% of respondents replied Hale, 19% said Altrincham. The top 

five facilities named were Cibo (8%), Altrincham Market (4%), Elk (4%), Costa (3%) and Juniper (3%). 

Document Pack Page 195



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   12 

 
 

 
 

 

Document Pack Page 196



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   13 

 
 

3.0 Business Community Survey Results 

3.1 Questions 1 and 2 of the business survey asked the respondents whether they agreed to the Council’s 

GDPR rules and if they were happy for their answers to be used within the report. We have not 

published these answers here. 

3.2 The responses below are form those who agreed to the GDPR rules. 

Q3. Ownership of Property: 

3.3 Of the six respondents, five lease their property and one works for the business.  

Q4. What type of business is the main business operating from your premises? 

 

3.4 The split of answers in respect of the type of the business is relatively broad, with two stating the 

business is a retail service (hairdresser, beauty salon etc), and the remaining four stating the business 

is comparison (non-food) operator, a restaurant, an office or another use type. 

Q5. Is your business: 

3.5 Out of the respondents, 83% stated that the business is independent and one stated is it part of a 

regional or national chain. 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Non-Food Retail Restaurant Other Retail Service Office Other

TYPE OF BUSINESS IN HALE

Document Pack Page 197



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   14 

 
 

Q6. How long, approximately, has the business traded in Hale? 

 

3.6 Looking at the length of time the business has traded in Hale, four or 67% of the respondents have 

operated for over ten years, with the remaining two operating less than five years. 

Q7. Why did you choose Hale as a business location? 

3.7 Turning to the reason why the businesses chose Hale as a business location, five respondents stated 

that the principal reason was due to Hale being their local centre and them having been brought up in 

the locality. The remaining respondents stated that the reason was due to the local demographics. 

  

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

0-12 Months 1-5 Years 5-10 Years Over Ten Years

LENGTH OF TIME TRADED IN HALE

Document Pack Page 198



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   15 

 
 

Q8. How many staff does the business employ? 

 

3.8 The highest proportion of respondents stated that they employ between five and ten staff with just 

over 30% stating they employ between one and four staff.  

Q9. Size of Business 

3.9 Of the responses, the highest proportion stated that the business had declined moderately (33.3%) 

followed by the remaining respondents stating that the business had either declined significantly, 

remained static, grown moderately and grown significantly. 

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

1-4 Staff 5-10 Staff Over 10

NUMBER OF STAFF BUSINESS EMPLOYS

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Declined Significantly Declined Moderately Remained Largely
Static

Grown Moderately Grown Significantly

SIZE OF BUSINESS

Document Pack Page 199



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   16 

 
 

Q10. How do you rate the following aspects of the town centre (each sub-question will have 

five grades of response – very good, good, average, poor, very poor). 

a) Transport 

3.10 Looking at the responses relating to transport and accessibility, the following summarises the key 

responses: 

 50% of respondents stated that the accessibility by pedestrians is very good, followed by 33.3% 

who stated that it was average 

 In terms of public transport, 83.3% stated that the accessibility by public transport is average. 

 Turning to the amount of car parking, 66.7% stated that this was very poor, followed by 33.3% 

who stated it was good.  

 In terms of the location of car parking, 50% stated this was very poor and 50% stated that the 

pricing of car parking was very poor. 

b) Business Offer 

3.11 Turning to the views on the business offer, the following summarises the key responses: 

 In terms of the number and range of shops in general 66.7% stated that this was average with 

16.7% stating that it was poor or very poor. 

 Looking at the number of independent traders, 33.3% stated that the offer was very good, with 

33.3% stating the offer was average. A further 16.7% stated the offer was good and 16.7% 

stating the offer was very poor. 

 50% of the respondents stated that the number of supermarkets is good, with 16.7% stating 

average and 16.7% stating very poor. 

 In terms of the number of restaurants, 50% state that that the offer is very good, with 33.3% 

state that the offer is good.  Looking at the number of licensed premises, 33.3% state the offer 

is good and 33.3% state the offer is good, with a further 16.7% stating the offer is very good 

and 16.7% stating the offer is very poor. 

 50% of the respondents state that the number of fast-food shops is average, with 33.3% stating 

the offer is good. 

Document Pack Page 200



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   17 

 
 

 Looking at the number of community activities based in the village centre, 50% state that the 

proportion is average with the remaining respondents stating the offer is good, poor and very 

poor. 

 

c) Public Realm 

3.12 Turning to the public realm, the following summarises the responses: 

 33.3% of the respondents state that the attractiveness of the public realm is very good, with 

33.3% stating it is good.  

 50% of respondents state that the cleanliness of the public realm is good, with 16.7% stating 

the cleanliness is very good. 

 Turning to the safety of the public realm, 33.3% state it is very good with the remaining 

responses being spread out across good, average, poor and very poor. 

 

d) Marketing and PR 

3.13 Finally turning to marketing and PR, the following summarises the key responses: 

 33.3% state that the amount of marketing/PR is average for the centre, within the remaining 

respondents stating that it is very good, good, poor and very poor. 

 The same proportion of respondents also relate to the question querying the range of 

marketing and promotion. 

 In terms of the overall image of Hale, 33.3% state this is very good with 33.3% stating this is 

average. 

Q11. What is your view on the future potential to expand the food and drink offer within Hale? 

3.14 Of the respondents, 83% state that the range and number of restaurants and eateries is sufficient for 

the centre and that we should be concentrating on increasing the retail offer and daytime footfall. One 

respondent stated that there is a potential to improve it but that there needs to be a holistic plan 

ensuring a wide and compelling offering that increases the attractiveness of Hale as a destination for 

a day/evening out, otherwise we will continue to see concepts opening and closing quickly. 

Document Pack Page 201



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   18 

 
 

Q12 Do you think the area around the Clock Tower could be improved and how? 

3.15 67% of respondents state that the area around the clock tower is fine or did not have a view. One 

respondent stated that more litter collection is required and another stated additional parking would 

be useful. In addition, the longstanding vacant unit with hoardings is in need of improvement.  

Q13. What improvement measures would you like to see in the centre of Hale? 

3.16 Respondents were asked for three responses to question 13, in order of priority. 67% of respondents 

refer to more parking spaces or cheaper/free parking as their top priority. One respondent stated that 

the top priority should be to review business rates and another stated that the fairy lights off the trees. 

3.17 Looking at the second priority for respondents, again, 67% of respondents refer to the provision of free 

parking and the reduction on the level of permit parking on surrounding streets. One respondent states 

that the extension of pedestrianised areas would help to allow more spaces for cafes/bars etc to trade 

outside. 

3.18 Finally, in terms of the third priority answer, 33% of respondents refer to the Ashley hotel being an 

issue and 33.3% of respondents state that the village needs more retail or an anchor to drive footfall 

(i.e. a local market). One respondent states that the centre needs cheaper more affordable restaurants. 

Q14. What do you consider (if anything) are the main barriers to the trading performance of 

your business? 

3.19 Respondents were asked what they consider to be the biggest barrier to the trading performance of 

their business. 67% refer to the lack of parking in the centre. Other responses include: 

 Rent levels 

 Reduction in footfall 

 The impact of Altrincham town centre 

 Brexit 

Q15. Would you like to see greater and improved cycling facilities in the centre of Hale? 

3.20 When asked if the businesses would like to see greater and improved cycle facilities in the centre of 

Hale, 33% of respondents stated that this investment would not positively impact on Hale. A further 

Document Pack Page 202



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   19 

 
 

33% stated that improved facilities could help, including new bike racks. However, one respondent 

stated that they didn’t think investment in improved cycling facilities would improve Hale as a 

destination and another stated that given this would result in a reduction in the width of the pavements, 

this would not help with the wider aspirations for the centre. 

Q16. Have you any plans to alter your business in any way in the next five years? 

3.21 33% of respondents stated that they did not have plans to alter their business. A further 33% stated 

that they planned to extend their business. However one respondent also stated that they planned to 

close their business in the next five years. When asked why, the respondent stated that this was due to 

the requirement for cheaper premises with parking. Another respondent stated that if rates and rents 

of VAT were to rise, then they would have to consider closing. 

Q18. Which centres do you consider to be Hale’s biggest competitor? Are there features of this 

centre(s) you would like to have in Hale? 

3.22 When respondents were asked which centre they considered to be Hale’s biggest competitor, 67% 

stated that this is Altrincham with the remaining responses stating Hale Barns. One respondent did 

state that hale is unique. 

Q19. What proportion of your sales is from the internet? 

3.23 When asked what proportion of the sales are from the internet, one respondent stated that 25% was 

and two respondents stated that none or very little is from the internet. 

Q20. Would you be interested in joining a Landlords Forum/Business group? 

3.24 67% of respondents stated that they would be interested in joining a business forum. 

Q21. Is there more that could be done to support local businesses? 

3.25 50% of respondents stated that improving the car parking would support local businesses. The 

responses related to free parking, number of parking and the cost of parking. Another respondent 

stated that a review of business rates would help. 

 

Document Pack Page 203



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   20 

 
 

Q22. Any other comments 

3.26 When asked if they had any other comments, these included: 

 There is an issue with the reduction in parking across the centre; 

 The footfall in Hale has reduced significantly over the last five years which they put down to 

the closure of the banks, the lack of retail and the difficulties with parking. 

Document Pack Page 204



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   21 

 
 

4.0 Public Consultation – Draft Hale Village Place Plan 

4.1 The Draft Hale Village Place Plan was published for consultation at the end of 2019, and a public 

consultation event was held in the Bowling Club on 1st February 2020. 

4.2 The purpose of the event was to present the initial proposals and ask the community’s views on the 

overarching Vision and Objectives and Options for improvements to the centre. 

4.3 The event was very well attended by the local community and local business owners and we gathered 

a range of constructive and very invaluable feedback from the attendees. 

4.4 The feedback from the event and the online questionnaire has been fully analysed as part of the 

formulation of the final Place Plan. We have provided a summary of the responses below. 

Summary and Findings 

4.5 There were 132 responses to the survey in total. 2% of respondents stated that they were responding 

on behalf of a business/organisation, whilst 93% of respondents identified as local residents.  

Opinions regarding the Hale Place Plan 

4.6 Positively, 64% of respondents think that the vision for Hale Village Centre appropriately reflects the 

aspirations of the local community. Respondents praised consideration of pedestrians and cyclists in 

the plan, air quality, and community spaces. 

4.7 With regard to the topics included within the objectives, the survey indicates the following:  

 Offer of the Centre: 60% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place 

Plan and how these appropriately pick up the detail of the Vision for the village.   

 Movement: 49% agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan that relate to 

movement.  

 Streetscape: 61% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan that 

concern the streetscape. 

 Public Realm: 59% of respondents agree or strongly agree with the objectives of the Place Plan 

which concern the public realm. 

Document Pack Page 205



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   22 

 
 

4.8 When asked their opinions regarding pages 56 and 57 of the Place Plan, 55% agree with the options 

identified within the village centre as illustrated on the spatial framework diagram. 

4.9 Exactly 50% of respondents state that they agree with the proposals relating to Traffic, Transport and 

Public realm on Ashley road, with respondents agreeing that measures need to be taken and traffic 

needs to be addressed. 

4.10 The majority of respondents (50%) agree with the proposals identified within the Movement Strategy 

(pages 78-81), whilst 33% do not agree with the proposals and the remaining neglected to answer. 

4.11 When asked if they agree with the introduction of a formal Shopfront Strategy design guide as detailed 

on pages 84-87, 71% stated that they did agree with the introduction of such a strategy and cited that 

it would improve coherence and coordination of the shopfronts. 

4.12 Furthermore, 47% of respondents agree with the actions set out within the action plan, with an 

additional 30% stating that they agree with the action plan ‘in part’. 

Preferred Options 

Hale Village Centre around the Hale Village Bowling Green 

4.13 Of the 74% who answered when asked which option for the Hale Village Centre and Bowling Green 

they preferred, 53% of respondents prefer Option 1, whilst 47% of respondents prefer Option 2. 

Hale Clock Tower Square 

4.14 Of the 48% who chose a preferred option for the Hale Clock Tower Square, 46% prefer Option 1 whilst 

54% prefer Option 2. 

4.15 36% stated that they did not have a preference between the two options.  

Additional Comments 

4.16 When asked if they had any additional comments in respect of the Hale Village Place Plan, several 

comments raised common topics including: 

 Parking; 

Document Pack Page 206



 

  

 

Hale Village Plan Summary of Survey Results 

 
 

 

Trafford Council   23 

 
 

 Further consideration of families and catering for young children; 

 Sustainable transport; 

 Pedestrianisation; 

 Speed Limits; 

 Development Options; 

 Support for small independent traders; and 

 Climate friendly measures. 

 

 

Document Pack Page 207



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Nexus Planning 

Manchester 

 

Eastgate 
2 Castle Street 
Castlefield 
Manchester 
M3 4LZ 

 

T: 0161 819 6570 

nexusplanning.co.uk 

Document Pack Page 208



 

 

 

Document Pack Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



 TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 

DATE OF DECISION 
 

28 September 2020 
 

DECISION MAKER 
 
Executive (Virtual Meeting) (Councillors 
Participating: A. Western, Adshead, Freeman, 
Harding, Hynes, Patel, Ross, Slater, Whitham and 
Wright) 
 

DECISION 
REFERENCE 
 

 
E/28.09.20/9 

RECORD OF THE DECISION 
 
Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans 
 
1. That the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans be approved. 
 
2. That the Action Plans for Sale Moor and Hale be approved and that the measures identified to 
improve both District Centres be explored. 
 
3. That the main improvement areas identified in the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans be agreed. 
 

REASONS FOR THE DECISION  
 
To enable delivery of the vision and objectives for both centres. 
 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED AT THE MEETING/BY MEMBERS 
 
Do nothing, rely on the new Local Plan or prepare a different strategy. Doing nothing would not deliver 
the change required in Sale Moor and Hale to create successful and viable centres in the long term that 
will support local communities and ensure businesses are able to thrive. Sale Moor and Hale centres are 
not identified as Strategic Locations in the adopted Core Strategy and so both centres need area 
specific proposals to bring forward appropriate regenerative development in the area. To rely on the new 
Local Plan to bring forward the proposals for Sale Moor and Hale would present too much risk of a delay 
as this document is reliant on the production of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) and 
its associated timetable. A different strategy could be approved; however the final Place Plans 
presented have been prepared to reflect the consultation feedback received. 
 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST DECLARED AND ANY ASSOCIATED DISPENSATION 
 
None. 
 

 

Scrutiny Call in Deadline 
 
7 October 2020 
 
Implementation will be on the following 
working day 
 
 
 
 

 PUBLICATION DATE   
 

30 September 2020 
 

  

 RECORDED BY:  
 

Corporate Director, Governance & Community 
Strategy 

 

Document Pack Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



REQUEST FOR CALL IN OF AN EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
ON COMPLETION BY CALL-IN MEMBERS THIS PROFORMA SHOULD BE FORWARDED AS 

SOON AS POSSIBLE DIRECTLY TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES (2nd Floor, TTH) FOR 
RECORDING AND REFERRAL TO THE CHAIRMAN OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
[N.B. NO EXECUTIVE DECISION MAY BE CALLED IN PRIOR TO PUBLICATION] 

 
TO:   CHAIRMAN OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
From:  COUNCILLORS: John Lamb, Karen Barclay, and John Holden 
 
Date: 01/10/2020 

              
[Notes:  (1)  Only Overview & Scrutiny Councillors are entitled to request call-in of a decision. 

(2) The Chairman or, where appropriate, the Vice-Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee can be asked by 
any 3 Overview & Scrutiny Members to exercise the right to request that the Chief Executive call in a 
decision. 
(3) The Chairman can exercise the right to request call in of a decision under his / her own authority.] 
             

  

EXECUTIVE DECISION TO BE CALLED IN: (Title & Ref. No.) 
SALE MOOR AND HALE PLACE PLANS - E/28.09.20/9 

 

DECISION TAKER: Executive DATE OF MEETING / DECISION 
28 September 2020 

Decision: 
 
1. That the Sale Moor and Hale Place Plans be approved. 
 
2. That the Action Plans for Sale Moor and Hale be approved and that the 
measures identified to improve both District Centres be explored. 
 
3. That the main improvement areas identified in the Sale Moor and Hale 
Place Plans be agreed. 
 
 
 
 

Criteria checklist (MUST be specified):  
 
a) Inaccurate information of a substantial nature given to decision taker     ____      
 

b) Inadequate consultation was carried out          

 
c) Alternative options were not given sufficient consideration   ____ 

 
d) Insufficient information was available       ____ 

 

Reasons for call-in: 

Document Pack Page 213



 
Inadequate consultation was carried out: As was heard at the Executive Meeting on 
Monday 28th September, whilst some 600 responses had been made to the consultation 
exercise there was a considerable amount of concern being expressed by residents and 
local businesses about the insufficiency of the consultation exercise and that a significant 
number of people are concerned with what is being proposed.   
 
 

 
PLEASE NOW FORWARD THIS PROFORMA DIRECTLY TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES (2ND 

FLOOR, TTH) FOR RECORDING AND REFERRAL TO THE CHAIRMAN OF SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

I accept that one or more of the above criteria is met in relation to this decision. The criteria accepted, 
from those specified in the call-in request is b. I therefore request that the Chief Executive calls in this 
matter for consideration by the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Signed ___D,Acton_________________ 
 
Chairman, Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date ___7th October 2020_____________ 
 
 

* I have not upheld this call-in request for the following reasons: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any additional comments from the Chairman: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Note for the Chairman: On completion, please forward this form to Democratic Services (2nd Floor, 
TTH) for immediate attention.] 

 
Last Updated 12.08.14 

Document Pack Page 214


	Agenda
	4a Executive Decision Report
	S App 1 Sale Moor Village Place Plan
	S App 2 Hale Village Place Plan
	S App 3 Sale Moor Survey Summary
	S App 4 Hale Survey Summary

	4b Executive Decision Statement
	4c Call In Proforma

